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PARTI
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

When used in this Annual Report the words or pledsdl likely result”, “are expected to”, “will catinue”, “is anticipated”, “estimate”, "project” aimilar expression are intended to identify “forddooking
statements” within the meaning of the Private SiéegrLitigation Reform Act of 1995. Such statertseare subject to certain risks and uncertainBgsidentifying these forwardboking statements for you
this manner, the Company is alerting you to thesihilgty that its actual results and financial cdimh may differ, possibly materially, from the #@ipated results and financial condition indicatedhes:
forward-looking statements. Important factors thaild cause the Company’s actual results and fiahoondition to differ from those indicated in tfward-looking statements include, among others:
= credit quality and the effect of credit quality tve adequacy of our allowance for loan los:
deterioration in financial markets that may regulimpairment charges relating to our securitiegfptio;
competition in our primary market aree
significant government regulations, legislation aodential changes there!
a reduction in our ability to generate or orig;neevenue-producing assets as a result of conggliewith heightened capital standards;
increased cost of operations due to greater atgyl oversight, supervision and examination ofkdsaand bank holding companies, and higher depusitrance premiums;
the limitation on our ability to expand consurpenduct and service offerings due to anticipateidtsr consumer protection laws and regulations: an
other risks described herein and in the otheontsand statements we file with the SEC.

These risks and uncertainties should be consideregtaluating forwardeoking statements and undue reliance should nqildeed on such statements. The Company wishesutiion readers not to ple
undue reliance on any such forward-looking statamjemhich speak only as of the date made. The @ompvishes to advise readers that the factorsdliateove could affect the Compasyfinancia
performance and could cause the Compsagtual results for future periods to differ mity from any opinions or statements expresseth wespect to future periods in any current statésaeAdditionally
all statements in this document, including forwérdking statements, speak only as of the date #éineynade, and the Company undertakes no obligatiapdate any statement in light of new informatio

future events.

ITEM 1: BUSINESS

GENERAL

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the "Company") is a Fatlgrchartered midier holding company headquartered in Oswego, NerkY The primary business of the Company is itegtment in Pathfinder Ba
(the "Bank"). The Company is majority owned byHfaider Bancorp, M.H.C., a federalthartered mutual holding company (the "Mutual HoetdCompany"). At December 31, 2010, the Mutualdihgy
Company held 1,583,239 shares of the Company’s ammstock (“Common Stock’and the public held 901,593 shares of Common Stk "Minority Stockholders"). At December 31, BQPathfinde
Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries had total asse$@8.5 million, total deposits of $326.5 millioncashareholders' equity of $30.6 million.

The Company's executive office is located at 2140Fast Street, Oswego, New York and the telephunmeber at that address is (315) 343-0057.
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Pathfinder Bank

The Bank is a New Yorkhartered savings bank headquartered in Oswego,Yelu The Bank operates from its main office aallvas seven branch offices located in its marke& @onsisting of Oswe
County and the contiguous counties. The severdhdbr was added in Cicero, New York and opened éoptiblic on February 1, 2011. The Bank's depasitsinsured by the Federal Deposit Insur.
Corporation ("FDIC"). The Bank was chartered &éeav York savings bank in 1859 as Oswego City SaviBgnk. The Bank is a customaiented institution dedicated to providing mortgdgans and oth
traditional financial services to its customerdieBank is committed to meeting the financial nesfdss customers in Oswego County, New York, amel¢ontiguous counties.

The Bank is primarily engaged in the business waeting deposits from the general public in thexBs market area, and investing such depositsthiegevith other sources of funds, in loans secimedne-
to fourfamily residential real estate and commercial esthte. At December 31, 2010, $216.3 million, 6%70of the Bank's total loan portfolio consistedladns secured by real estate, of which $1
million, or 68%, were loans secured by one- to flamily residences and $69.1 million, or 32%, weeewsed by commercial real estate. Additionally5.®2million, or 9%, of total loans, were securec
second liens on residential properties that arssifiad as consumer loans. The Bank also originatenmercial and consumer loans that totaled $88llion and $3.4 million, respectively, or 15%, tife
Bank's total loan portfolio at December 31, 20The Bank invests a portion of its assets in seesrissued by the United States Government anagiésicies and sponsored enterprises, state andipal
obligations, corporate debt securities, mutual fynahd equity securities. The Bank also investsnortgagebacked securities primarily issued or guaranteedUbjted States Government sponst
enterprises. The Bank's principal sources of fuarésdeposits, principal and interest paymentand and investments, as well as borrowings fromespondent financial institutions. The principalirce ¢
income is interest on loans and investment seesritThe Bank's principal expenses are interedtgradeposits, and employee compensation and benefi

Pathfinder Bank also operates through a limitegppse commercial bank subsidiary, Pathfinder ComialeBank, which serves the depository needs ofipuitities in its market area.

The Bank has Pathfinder REIT, Inc., a New York cogtion, as its whollyawned real estate investment trust subsidiaryDét¢ember 31, 2010, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. held $1ilfion in mortgages ar
mortgage related assets. All disclosures in tbisnF10-K relating to the Bank's loans and investimémclude loans and investments that are helddtlfldder REIT, Inc.

The Bank also has 100% ownership in Whispering Qaeelopment Corp., a New York corporation, whishiétained in case the need to operate or develeplbsed real estate emerges. This subsidi
currently inactive.

Finally, the Company has a neonsolidated Delaware statutory trust subsidiaathfhder Statutory Trust II, of which 100% of tbemmon equity is owned by the Company. Pathfir8tatutory Trust Il we
formed in connection with the issuance of trusfgmed securities.

Employees

As of December 31, 2010, the Bank had 95 full-tiemployees and 21 paithe employees. The employees are not represdayteal collective bargaining unit and we consider mlationship with ot
employees to be good.

MARKET AREA AND COMPETITION
The economy in the Bank's market area is manufactariented and is also significantly dependent ugen $tate University of New York College at Oswedde major manufacturing employers in

Bank's market area are Entergy Nuclear Northeastels, Constellation, NRG and Huhtamaki. The Balthe largest depository institution headquadedre Oswego County. The Bank's business
operating results are significantly affected by glemeral economic conditions prevalent in its maskeas.
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The Bank encounters strong competition both iraeting deposits and in originating real estate @hér loans. Its most direct competition for defsolas historically come from commercial banksirsge
banks, savings associations and credit unionssimarket area. Competition for loans comes frochdinancial institutions as well as mortgage bagkcompanies. The Bank competes for deposi
offering depositors a high level of personal sexaad a wide range of competitively priced finahs&vices. The Bank competes for real estateslpaimarily through the interest rates and loars ieeharge
and advertising, as well as by originating and ngJdn its portfolio mortgage loans which do notassarily conform to secondary market underwrisitejmdards. The turmoil in the residential mortgseeto
of the United States economy has caused certaipetitors to be less effective in the market plad¢hile Central New York did not experience the lesfespeculative lending and borrowing in residehtea
estate that has adversely affected other regions orational basis, certain mortgage brokers andnfie companies in our area are either no longeratipg, or have limited aggressive lenc
practices. Additionally, as certain money centarsl large regional banks grapple with current endooconditions and the related credit crisis, thebility to compete as effectively has b
muted. Management believes that these conditiane kereated a window of reduced competition fomlammmunity and regional banks in residential \zend to a lesser extent, commercial real €
loans. Of course, there are others, includingeteempt credit unions, that are aggressively takihgantage of that window.

REGULATION AND SUPERVISION
General

The Bank is a New York-chartered stock savings bemk its deposit accounts are insured up to agpédamits by the FDIC through the Deposit Insurarfund (“DIF ”). The Bank is subject to extens
regulation by the New York State Banking Departmiginé¢ “Department”)as its chartering agency, and by the FDIC, aséfsodit insurer and primary federal regulator. Bk is required to file repoi
with, and is periodically examined by, the FDIC ahéd Superintendent of the Department concernma@dtivities and financial condition and must obteégulatory approvals prior to entering into cie
transactions, including, but not limited to, mesyeiith or acquisitions of other banking institutlonThe Bank is a member of the Federal Home LaamkBf New York (“FHLBNY”) and is subject to certz
regulations by the Federal Home Loan Bank System.

The Company and the Mutual Holding Company are ridtjechartered. Consequently, they are currestlpject to regulations of the Office of Thrift Suyision ("OTS") as savings and loan holc
companies. However, under the Dodd-Frank Wall $Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the “DoddrkrAct”), which is discussed further below, the OF unctions relating to savings and loan hol
companies will be transferred to the Federal ResBoard by July 21, 2011, unless extended by wgxtmonths by the Secretary of the Treasury.

Regulatory requirements applicable to the Bank,Goenpany and the Mutual Holding Company are reteteebelow or elsewhere herein. This descriptibrstatutory and regulatory provisions does
purport to be a complete description of all suctiges and regulations applicable to the Mutuadithg Company, the Company, or the Bankny change in these laws or regulations, whethe€byggress ¢
the applicable regulatory agencies, could have temahadverse impact on the Bank, the CompanphemMutual Holding Company.

Dodd-Frank Act

The DoddFrank Act will significantly change the current laregulatory structure and affect the lending, stugent, trading and operating activities of finah@nstitutions and their holding companies.
Dodd-Frank Act will eliminate the current primargderal regulator of the Company and the Mutual igdCompany, the OTS. Under the Doldink Act, the Federal Reserve Board will superase
regulate all savings and loan holding companiesh s the Company and the Mutual Holding Compamyddition to bank holding companies, which thedfatiReserve Board currently regulates. .
result, the Federal Reserve Boaradurrent regulations applicable to bank holdinghpanies, including holding company capital requieets, will apply to savings and loan holding conipariike tht
Company, unless an exemption exists. The bankifmkbmpany capital requirements are substantgifhylar to the capital requirements currently apglile to the Bank, as described Reulatory Capiti
Requirements.” The DodBrank Act also requires the Federal Reserve Boarset minimum capital levels for bank holding comipa that are as stringent as those required frirtiured deposito
subsidiaries, and the components of Tier 1 capitalld be restricted to capital instruments that@mently considered to be Tier 1 capital for ieglidepository institutions. Bank holding companigth
assets of less than $500 million are exempt froesehcapital requirements. Under the Dédank Act, the proceeds of trust preferred se@sitire excluded from Tier 1 capital unless suchritexs wer:
issued prior to May 19, 2010 by bank or savingslaad holding companies with less than $15 billidrassets. The legislation also establishes a ftwocapital of insured depository institutionstftannot b
lower than the standards in effect today, and thréee federal banking regulators to implement fewerage and capital requirements within 18 monffisese new leverage and capital requirements take
into account offealance sheet activities and other risks, includisks relating to securitized products and deiwest Moreover, the Mutual Holding Company wilbtere the approval of the Federal Res
Board before it may waive the receipt of any divide from the Company, and there is no assurantétthdederal Reserve Board will approve futuréddind waivers or what conditions it may impost
such waivers. See “Federal Holding Company RemuiatWaivers of Dividends by Mutual Holding Comparty&low.
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The Dodd-Frank Act also creates a new ConsumemEiabProtection Bureau with broad powers to suiserand enforce consumer protection laws. The @ues Financial Protection Bureau has broad rule-
making authority for a wide range of consumer prtiee laws that apply to all banks and savingsitsons such as Pathfinder Bank, including thehatity to prohibit “unfair, deceptive or abusivatts an
practices. The Consumer Financial Protection Butess examination and enforcement authority ovdraalks and savings institutions with more than Billion in assets. Banks and savings institutiasith

$10 billion or less in assets will be examined git applicable bank regulators. The new legistatilso weakens the federal preemption availabledtional banks and federal savings associatems give
state attorneys general the ability to enforceiapple federal consumer protection laws.

The DoddFrank Act also broadens the base for Federal Deprssirance Corporation insurance assessmentesasents will now be based on the average consadidatal assets less tangible equity ca
of a financial institution. The legislation alsermanently increases the maximum amount of depwairance for banks, savings institutions and ¢tnediions to $250,000 per depositor, retroactivéaouar
1, 2008, and non-interest bearing transaction atsduave unlimited deposit insurance through Deeer8lh, 2012. Lastly, the Dodélank Act will increase stockholder influence obeards of directors |
requiring companies to give stockholders a non+bipdiote on executive compensation and so-calleddén parachutepayments, and authorizing the Securities and Exgdnd@@ommission to promulg:
rules that would allow stockholders to nominate anticit votes for their own candidates using a pany’s own proxy materials. The legislation also diseitte Federal Reserve Board to promulgate
prohibiting excessive compensation paid to banklinglcompany executives, regardless of whetheconepany is publicly traded or not.

New York State Banking Law and FDIC Regulation

The Bank derives its lending, investment and othehority primarily from the applicable provisionENew York State Banking Law and the regulatiohshe Department, as limited by FDIC regulatiom
particular, the applicable provisions of New Yorat® Banking Law and regulations governing the stwent authority and activities of an FDIC insustdteechartered savings bank have been substar
limited by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatimprovement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") and the FDI@gulations issued pursuant thereto. Under these #nd regulations, savings banks, including
Bank, may invest in real estate mortgages, consamercommercial loans, certain types of debt seesriincluding certain corporate debt securitied abligations of federal, state and local govemisan:
agencies, certain types of corporate equity séesrénd certain other assets. New York State eteattsavings banks may also invest in subsidiameer their service corporation investment autior
savings bank may use this power to invest in cafiams that engage in various activities authoriftedsavings banks, plus any additional activitihjch may be authorized by the Banking Board. &f
FDICIA and the FDIC’s implementation of regulatiotise Bank’s investment and service corporatioiviiets are limited to activities permissible fonational bank unless the FDIC otherwise permits it
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The FDIC and the Superintendent have broad enfaeneauthority over the Bank. Under this authorbe FDIC and the Superintendent have the abiitissue formal or informal orders to correct viaat
of laws or unsafe or unsound banking practices.

FDIC Insurance on Deposits

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, or FIM€yres deposits at FDIC insured financial insitlis such as the Bank. Deposit accounts in th&kBag insured by the FDIC generally up to a maxir
of $250,000 per separately insured depositor antbup maximum of $250,000 for selfrected retirement accounts. The FDIC chargesrtbered financial institutions premiums to maintéiie Depos
Insurance Fund.

Under the FDIC'’s current riskased assessment system, insured institutionssaignad to one of four risk categories based oersigory evaluations, regulatory capital levels aedain other risk factol
The rates for nearly all of the financial institrts industry vary between five and seven centsvery $100 of domestic deposits.

As part of its plan to restore the Deposit InsueaRand in the wake of the large number of bankifad following the financial crisis, the FDIC impasa special assessment of 5 basis points foreitene
quarter of 2009. In addition, the FDIC has requiiedl insured institutions to prepay their quastaitk-based assessments for the fourth quarter of 20@Pfa all of 2010, 2011 and 2012. As part of
prepayment, the FDIC assumed a 5% annual growttreiassessment base and applied a 3 basis paieasecin assessment rates effective January 1, Z2&paid assessments for 2010 totaled $477,000.

In February 2011, the FDIC published a final ruteler the Dodd=rank Act to reform the deposit insurance assesssyamtem. The rule redefines the assessment tsaskfar calculating deposit insura
assessments effective April 1, 2011. Under the néey assessments will be based on an institutiamérage consolidated total assets minus avesagébte equity as opposed to total deposits. Stineaev
base will be much larger than the current basefFDIE also lowered assessment rates so that thkeawtount of revenue collected from the industrly mat be significantly altered. The new rule ipected t
benefit smaller financial institutions, which typlty rely more on deposits for funding, and shifona of the burden for supporting the insurance ftmthrger institutions, which have greater acdesson-
deposit sources of funding.

The Dodd-Frank Act also extended the unlimited dé@pasurance on non-interest bearing transactemouants through December 31, 2012. Unlike the FBMMemporary Liquidity Guarantee Program,
insurance provided under the Dodd-Frank Act doesrtend to low-interest NOW accounts, and ther@iseparate assessment on covered accounts.

In addition to the FDIC assessments, the FinanCiagoration (“FICO”)is authorized to impose and collect, with the appl®f the FDIC, assessments for anticipated paysyéssuance costs and custc
fees on bonds issued by the FICO in the 1980sc@pitalize the former Federal Savings and Loanrbrste Corporation. The bonds issued by the FICQlaeeto mature in 2017 through 2019. During the
ended December 31, 2010, the Bank paid $35,008eis ffelated to the FICO.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the Rlpigh a finding that an institution has engagedrisafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe aruntscondition to continue operations or has velan:
applicable law, regulation, rule, order or conditimposed by the FDIC. We do not currently knovany practice, condition or violation that may leadermination of our deposit insurance.

Regulatory Capital Requirements
The FDIC has adopted ridkased capital guidelines to which the Bank is sutbj€he guidelines establish a systematic analyfieenework that makes regulatory capital requirateemore sensitive
differences in risk profiles among banking orgatiaas. The Bank is required to maintain certairelewof regulatory capital in relation to regulatoisk-weighted assets. The ratio of such regulatory ahfu

regulatory risk-weighted assets is referred toh@sBank's "risk-based capital ratio." Risk-basepitearatios are determined by allocating asset specified off-balance sheet items to four ngsightec
categories ranging from 0% to 100%, with higheels\wf capital being required for the categories@eed as representing greater risk.
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These guidelines divide a savings bank's capitaltimo tiers. The first tier (“Tier I") includes ronon equity, retained earnings, certain momulative perpetual preferred stock (excludingtiaacrate issue
and minority interests in equity accounts of coitibd subsidiaries, less goodwill and other inifalegassets (except mortgage servicing rights amgdhased credit card relationships subject to it
limitations). Supplementary ("Tier I1") capital icles, among other items, cumulative perpetuallang-term limitedlife preferred stock, mandatory convertible sedesitcertain hybrid capital instrumer
term subordinated debt and the allowance for loahlease losses, subject to certain limitatiorss lequired deductions. Savings banks are reqtdgredhintain a total riskased capital ratio of at least 8%,
a Tier | risk based capital level of at least 4%.

In addition, the FDIC has established regulatiorsgribing a minimum Tier | leverage ratio (Tiesdpital to adjusted total assets as specifiedénré¢igulations). These regulations provide for aimmirm Tier |
leverage ratio of 3% for banks that meet certagc#jed criteria, including that they have the régghexamination rating and are not experiencingnticipating significant growth. All other bankseaequire:
to maintain a Tier | leverage ratio of 3% plus aldiional cushion of at least 100 to 200 basis f0iffhe FDIC and the other federal banking regutabave proposed amendments to their minimumal
regulations to provide that the minimum leveragpited ratio for a depository institution that haselm assigned the highest composite rating of 1ruhéeUniform Financial Institutions Rating Systeviil be
3% and that the minimum leverage capital ratiodioy other depository institution will be 4% unleshigher leverage capital ratio is warranted byghgicular circumstances or risk profile of thepdsitory
institution. The FDIC may, however, set highereleage and riskased capital requirements on individual institesiovhen particular circumstances warrant. Saviregsk® experiencing or anticipat
significant growth are expected to maintain capibs, including tangible capital positions, wedtiove the minimum levels.

Limitations on Dividends and Other Capital Distributions

The FDIC has the authority to use its enforcementgrs to prohibit a savings bank from paying divide if, in its opinion, the payment of dividendsul constitute an unsafe or unsound practice. &d
law also prohibits the payment of dividends by akbthat will result in the bank failing to meet @pplicable capital requirements on a pro formasbalew York law also restricts the Bank from deilg ¢
dividend that would reduce its capital below theoant that is required to be maintained by statedad regulation. The Company is also subjecteoQf'S capital distribution rules by virtue of beimgy OT¢
regulated savings and loan holding company.

Since the Company has chosen to patrticipate ifteasury’s CPP program, its ability to increasadéimds to its stockholders is limited without pragsproval by the United States Treasury Department.
Prompt Corrective Action

The federal banking agencies have promulgated atigns to implement the system of prompt correctiedion required by federal law. Under the redafet, a bank shall be deemed to be (i) "
capitalized" if it has total risk-based capitall@® or more, has a Tier | ridkased capital ratio of 6% or more, has a Tier étage capital ratio of 5% or more and is not sutfie@any written capital order
directive; (ii) "adequately capitalized" if it hastotal risk based capital ratio of 8% or more,ier T risk-based capital ratio of 4% or more and a Tier | lege capital ratio of 4% or more (3% under ce
circumstances) and does not meet the definitiotwefl capitalized"; (iii) "undercapitalized" if ihas a total risk-based capital ratio that is leban 8%, a Tier | rislbbased capital ratio that is less than 4%
Tier | leverage capital ratio that is less than @% under certain circumstances); (iv) "signifidgntndercapitalized" if it has a total risk-basexpital ratio that is less than 6%, a Tier | risksed capital rat
that is less than 3% or a Tier | leverage capdébrthat is less than 3%; and (v) “critically unchpitalized" if it has a ratio of tangible equity total assets that is equal to or less than B&deral law ar
regulations also specify circumstances under whitdderal banking agency may reclassify a welltediped institution as adequately capitalized aray mequire an adequately capitalized institutioocamply
with supervisory actions as if it were in the nkaxter category (except that the FDIC may not resifgsa significantly undercapitalized institutios eritically undercapitalized).
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The Bank currently meets the criteria to be clésdias a "well capitalized" savings institution.

Transactions With Affiliates and Insiders

Under current federal law, transactions betweerosiégry institutions and their affiliates are gaved by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Resketaand its implementing regulations. An affiliaaé a
savings bank is any company or entity that contielsontrolled by, or is under common control wiitle savings bank, other than a subsidiary of éivings bank. In a holding company context, at aimmimn,
the parent holding company of a savings bank, aydcampanies that are controlled by such parerdihglcompany, are affiliates of the savings banén&ally, Section 23A limits the extent to whicle
savings bank or its subsidiaries may engage inéi@/transactions" with any one affiliate to an anteequal to 10% of such savings bank's capitaksamd surplus and contains an aggregate limitlcsual
transactions with all affiliates to an amount eea20% of such capital stock and surplus. The taorered transaction” includes the making of loansther extensions of credit to an affiliate; thechase «
assets from an affiliate, the purchase of, or aestment in, the securities of an affiliate; theegatance of securities of an affiliate as colldtésaa loan or extension of credit to any personjssuance of
guarantee, acceptance, or letter of credit on belian affiliate. Section 23A also establishescifie collateral requirements for loans or extemsiof credit to, or guarantees, acceptances cerdetf cred
issued on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23B regsiithat covered transactions and a broad listherespecified transactions be on terms substintita same, or no less favorable, to the savirsgstor it
subsidiary as similar transactions with nonaffédit

Further, Section 22(h) of the Federal Reserve Adtits implementing regulations restrict a savibgsak with respect to loans to directors, executifficers, and principal stockholders. Under Sec@@gh)
loans to directors, executive officers and stoctacd who control, directly or indirectly, 10% or ramf voting securities of a savings bank and aerlated interests of any of the foregoing, may exceec
together with all other outstanding loans to suetspns and affiliated entities, the savings batokad unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplusti®a 22(h) also prohibits loans above amountsgiiesd by
the appropriate federal banking agency to direc&xscutive officers, and stockholders who conti@} or more of voting securities of a stock savibgek, and their respective related interests,ssnéeic
loan is approved in advance by a majority of tharbd®f directors of the savings bank. Any "inteee§tdirector may not participate in the voting. ther, pursuant to Section 22(h), loans to directexgcutiv:
officers and principal stockholders must generallymade on terms substantially the same as offearedmparable transactions to other persons. Se@2gg) of the Federal Reserve Act places addit
limitations on loans to executive officers.

Supervisory Agreement

During May 2009, the Company entered into a SugeryiAgreement with the OTS. The agreement waets# connection with the identification of centaiolations of applicable statutory and regulatory
restrictions on capital distributions and transawgiwith affiliates. As a result of the identifielations, the Company recorded $41,000 of incoetating to certain transactions with its uncoidated parent
company Pathfinder Bancorp, MHC. In addition tte®any is prohibited from accepting or directinghfiader Bank to declare or pay a dividend or ottegpital distributions without the prior written
approval of the Office of Thrift Supervision. Adiolations have been corrected and the Compang\ediit is in compliance with the Agreement.

Federal Holding Company Regulation
General . The Company and the Mutual Holding Company amdirsified savings and loan holding companie$inithe meaning of the Home Owners' Loan Act. Toepany and the Mutual Holdi
Company are registered with the OTS and are sutje@fT'S regulations, examinations, supervision rmbrting requirements. As such, the OTS has eafoent authority over the Company and the Mi

Holding Company, and their n@avings institution subsidiaries. Among other gfsinthis authority permits the OTS to restrict oohpbit activities that are determined to be a@ssirisk to the subsidie
savings institution. Upon the sunset of the OT8,&ompany, and the Mutual Holding Company, wilrégulated by the Board of Governors of the FedReslerve. See “The Dodd-Frank Act” above.
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Permitted Activities . Under OTS regulation and policy, a mutual holdecgmpany and a federally chartered rtiat- holding company, such as the Company, may gmda the following activitie:
(i) investing in the stock of a savings associati@hacquiring a mutual association through therger of such association into a savings assoniatibsidiary of such holding company or an intesawing:
association subsidiary of such holding companyj); rfierging with or acquiring another holding compaane of whose subsidiaries is a savings assoniafiv) investing in a corporation, the capitadck of
which is available for purchase by a savings assioti under federal law or under the law of anyestahere the subsidiary savings association orcéetsuns share their home offices; (v) furnishim
performing management services for a savings assmeisubsidiary of such company; (vi) holding, ragimg or liquidating assets owned or acquired feosavings subsidiary of such company; (vii) hol
or managing properties used or occupied by a saasgociation subsidiary of such company; (viitjraras trustee under deeds of trust; (ix) any o#ogivity (A) that the Federal Reserve Board, égulation
has determined to be permissible for bank holdmgmanies under Section 4(c) of the Bank Holding @any Act of 1956, unless the Director of the OTBrégulation, prohibits or limits any such activftyr
savings and loan holding companies; or (B) in whialitiple savings and loan holding companies weith@ized (by regulation) to directly engage on deb, 1987; (x) any activity permissible for fingad
holding companies under Section 4(k) of the Bankdihg Company Act, including securities and inswaminderwriting; and (xi) purchasing, holding, espibsing of stock acquired in connection wi
qualified stock issuance if the purchase of suobksby such savings and loan holding company isaygu by the Director. If a mutual holding compaguires or merges with another holding companme
holding company acquired or the holding companyilte® from such merger or acquisition may onlyésvin assets and engage in activities listed)ith(ough (xi) above, and has a period of two ye¢e
cease any nonconforming activities and divest gfranconforming investments.

The Home Owners' Loan Act prohibits a savings arash lholding company, directly or indirectly, ordbgh one or more subsidiaries, from acquiring amogiavings association or holding company the
without prior written approval of the OTS. It alpeohibits the acquisition or retention of, withrtagn exceptions, more than 5% of a nonsubsidiamngs association, a nonsubsidiary holding company
nonsubsidiary company engaged in activities othan those permitted by the Home Owners' Loan Acgoguiring or retaining control of an institutitimt is not federally insured. In evaluating apgiion:
by holding companies to acquire savings associsithe OTS must consider the financial and manalgersources, future prospects of the company asacéation involved, the effect of the acquisit@nthe
risk to the insurance fund, the convenience andsieéthe community and competitive factors.

The OTS is prohibited from approving any acquisittbat would result in a multiple savings and Ibatding company controlling savings associationmore than one state, subject to two exceptiohshg
approval of interstate supervisory acquisitionsshyings and loan holding companies, and (i) thguisition of a savings institution in another stédtéhe laws of the state of the target savingditimgon
specifically permit such acquisitions. The statasy in the extent to which they permit interstséeings and loan holding company acquisitions.

Waivers of Dividends by Mutual Holding Company . The Mutual Holding Company currently waives itshtigo receive its dividends on its shares of thenBany, which means that the Company has
cash resources to pay dividends to our public $tolclers than if the Mutual Holding Company accepstech dividends. OTS regulations allow federalartered mutual holding companies to waive divig
without taking into account the amount of waivedidiénds in determining an appropriate exchange rfatthe event of a conversion of a mutual holdingipany to stock form. The Mutual Holding Comp
is required to obtain OTS approval before it mayweats receipt of dividends. However, under thedB&rank Act, the powers and duties of the OTS regpttnmutual holding companies will be transferre
the Federal Reserve Board, and the Mutual Holdiagn@any will be required to give the Federal Res&ward notice before waiving the receipt of dividen The Dodd-rank Act also sets forth the stand:
for granting a waiver, including a requirement thatved dividends be considered in determining gprepriate exchange ratio in the event of a conerrsf the mutual holding company to stock formhe
DoddFrank Act, however, further provides that the Fatl®eserve Board may not consider waived dividendfetermining an appropriate exchange ratio immversion to stock form by any federal mu
holding company, such as the Mutual Holding Compahgt has waived dividends prior to December DR0The Federal Reserve Board historically hasggly not allowed mutual holding companie
waive the receipt of dividends, and there can bassurance as to the conditions, if any, the FéiRaserve Board will place on future dividend waivequests by grandfathered mutual holding coms
such as the Mutual Holding Company. The Mutualdita Company has not requested a current dividesides and is not planning to waive future dividemad shis time.
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Conversion of the Mutual Holding Company to Stock Form . OTS regulations permit the Mutual Holding Compamyonvert from the mutual form of organizatiorthe capital stock form of organizatior
"Conversion Transaction"). There can be no assaramen, if ever, a Conversion Transaction willlwcand the Board of Directors has no current itie@nor plan to undertake a Conversion Transactione
Conversion Transaction a new holding company wdaa/dormed as the successor to the Company (the 'Wi@ding Company"), the Mutual Holding Company'spmrate existence would end, and cel
depositors of the Bank would receive the rightubssribe for additional shares of the New Holdingr@any. In a Conversion Transaction, each shammimon stock held by stockholders other thai
Mutual Holding Company ("Minority Stockholders") wiol be automatically converted into a number ofreiaof common stock of the New Holding Company aheieed pursuant to an exchange r
(determined by an independent valuation) that essstirat Minority Stockholders own the same perggntzf common stock in the New Holding Company &y thwned in the Company immediately prio
the Conversion Transaction. The total numbeshaires held by Minority Stockholders after a Cosir Transaction also would be increased by anghasges by Minority Stockholders in the stock offg
conducted as part of the Conversion Transaction.

Federal Securities Law

The common stock of the Company is registered ti¢hSEC under the Securities Exchange Act of 1884mended (“Exchange Act'The Company is subject to the information, proxjc#tation, inside
trading restrictions and other requirements ofSE€ under the Exchange Act.

The Company Common Stock held by persons who éitiai@ls (generally officers, directors and pringigtockholders) of the Company may not be resafdout registration or unless sold in accordanct
certain resale restrictions. If the Company meeexified current public information requiremergach affiliate of the Company is able to sell ie fublic market, without registration, a limitednnioer o
shares in any three-month period.

Federal Reserve System

The Federal Reserve Board requires all depositwsijtiitions to maintain noninterelséaring reserves at specified levels against themsaction accounts (primarily checking, money agament and NO'
checking accounts). At December 31, 2010, the Beaxkin compliance with these reserve requirements.

Federal Community Reinvestment Regulation

Under the Community Reinvestment Act, as amendesl€RA"), as implemented by FDIC regulations, @rsgs bank has a continuing and affirmative obligatconsistent with its safe and sound opere
to help meet the credit needs of its entire comtyuimcluding low and moderate income neighborhootlse CRA does not establish specific lending meguents or programs for financial institutions
does it limit an institution's discretion to develthe types of products and services that it beBeare best suited to its particular community,sestant with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIG
connection with its examination of a savings insiiin, to assess the institution's record of megtiire credit needs of its community and to takéngecord into account in its evaluation of certajgplication
by such institution. The CRA requires the FDICpimvide a written evaluation of an institution's £Rerformance utilizing a foutiered descriptive rating system. The Bank's ta@RA rating wa
"satisfactory."
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New York State Community Reinvestment Regulation

The Bank is subject to provisions of the New Yot&t8 Banking Law which impose continuing and affitime obligations upon banking institutions orgaeizn New York State to serve the credit needss
local community ("NYCRA") which are substantiallimslar to those imposed by the CRA. Pursuant ®YCRA, a bank must file an annual NYCRA report @opies of all federal CRA reports with
Department. The NYCRA requires the Department &xera biennial written assessment of a bank's danga with the NYCRA, utilizing a foutiered rating system and make such assessmenalaleaib th
public. The NYCRA also requires the Superintendentonsider a bank's NYCRA rating when reviewinbaak's application to engage in certain transastiincluding mergers, asset purchases ar
establishment of branch offices or automated teflachines, and provides that such assessment mayaea basis for the denial of any such apptioati

The Bank's NYCRA rating as of its latest examinaticas "satisfactory.”
The USA PATRIOT Act

The USA PATRIOT Act (“the PATRIOT Act"was signed into law on October 26, 2001. The PATRAct gives the federal government new powersdmrass terrorist threats through enhanced don
security measures, expanded surveillance powersedsed information sharing and broadened rantiey laundering requirements. The PATRIOT Acbakxuires the federal banking agencies to tala
consideration the effectiveness of controls designecombat money laundering activities in deteingrwhether to approve a merger or other acquisiéipplication of a financial institution. Accordily, if
the Company were to engage in a merger or otharisitigns, its controls designed to combat moneyntkering would be considered as part of the apgiegprocess. The Company and the Bank
established policies, procedures and systems dmbigncomply with these regulations.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“Sarbanes Oxleyd} wigned into law on July 30, 2002. SarbanesyOsla law that addresses, among other issuespr@iggovernance, auditing and accounting, exeeutiv
compensation, and enhanced and timely disclosucerpbrate information. As directed by Section @)df Sarbanes-Oxley, the Company’s Chief Exeeu@fficer and Chief Financial Officer are each
required to certify that the Company’s quarterlg amnual reports do not contain any untrue statéwfesamaterial fact. The rules have several mrepents, including having these officers certifgtttthey

are responsible for establishing, maintaining agltarly evaluating the effectiveness of our in&wcontrols; they have made certain disclosuresitcauditors and the audit committee of the Bodrd o
Directors about our internal controls; and theyéhancluded information in our quarterly and anmegdorts about their evaluation and whether theve lheen significant changes in our internal costoolin
other factors that could significantly affect imat controls subsequent to the evaluation. Asgfatie Dodd-Frank Act, the outside auditor atieh requirement on internal controls of compamiéh less

than $75 million in market capitalization, like ti@mpany, was rescinded. Disclosure of manageategstations on internal control over financialagimg will continue to be required for smaller cefing
companies, including the Company. We have exigtlgcies, procedures and systems designed to gowifh these regulations, and continue to furth@race and document our policies, procedures and
systems to ensure continued compliance with thegelations.

Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2008
The Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 200BESA") was enacted on October 3, 2008. EESA enahkedederal government, under terms and condittonise developed by the Secretary of
Treasury, to insure troubled assets, including gamébacked securities, and collect premiums from pigdiing financial institutions. EESA includes, angoother provisions: (a) the $700 billion Trouk

Assets Relief Program ("TARP"), under which ther8&ry of the Treasury is authorized to purchassyrie, hold, and sell a wide variety of financratiuments, particularly those that are based oelatec
to residential or commercial mortgages originatetssued on or before March 14, 2008; and (b) are@mse in the amount of deposit insurance provigeitie FDIC.
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Under the TARP, the United States Department o3uey authorized a voluntary Capital Purchase Rrogio purchase up to $250 billion of senior preférshares of qualifying financial institutions 1
elected to participate by November 14, 2008. ptegram was developed to attract broad participatip strong financial institutions, to stabilizeetfinancial system and increase lending to bettditnatione
economy and citizens of the United States. Thedotdirectors and management analyzed the potenééits of participating in the Capital Purchasedg?am (“CPP”) of the Treasury DepartmenTARP. |
was the general view of the board and managemantirththe present national economic risk environtmenhancing the Comparsytapital ratios is both prudent, given the curdimate, and potential
opportunistic as we move into the next businesdecyddditionally, any increase to capital will dotue to support the Comparsylending activities to individuals, families, amdisinesses in o
community. Companies participating in the CPPrarpiired to adopt certain standards relating t@etkee compensation. The terms of the CPP alsii tiertain uses of capital by the issuer, includivith
respect to repurchases of securities and incréastgidends.

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered intarehBse Agreement with the Treasury Departmentuaimtsto which the Company has issued and sold éastiy: (i) 6,771 shares of the Company’
Series A Preferred Stock, having a liquidation anmtqer share equal to $1,000, for a total pric&&#71,000; and (ii) a Warrant to purchase 1548%tes of the Comparsytommon stock, par value $0
per share, at an exercise price per share of $6.58.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Finan€¥ficer are required to certify compliance witletbompensation provisions of the CPP program. d@rtifications are appended to this K@a Exhibit 99.1
and 99.2.

Securities and Exchange Commission Reporting

The Company maintains an Internet website locatediav.pathfinderbank.cormon which, among other things, the Company make#adle, free of charge, various reports that diwith or furnishes to tl
Securities and Exchange Commission, including msual Report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports onnfrdi0-Q, and current reports on FornK8-These reports are made available as soon asmahl
practicable after these reports are filed with wmished to the Securities and Exchange Commissitve Company has also made available on its welisitAudit Committee Charter, Compensa
Committee Charter, Governance Guidelines (whickiesas the Nominating / Governance Committee’s enpaind Code of Ethics.

The Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K may bessed on the Company's website at www.pathfindétbam/annualmeeting

FEDERAL AND STATE TAXATION

Federal Taxation

The following discussion of federal taxation iseintled only to summarize certain pertinent federabine tax matters and is not a comprehensive géiscriof the tax rules applicable to the Companyhe
Bank.

Bad Debt Reserves . Prior to the Tax Reform Act of 1996 (“the 1996tActhe Bank was permitted to establish a reserve &adr debts and to make annual additions to the reséFliese additions cou
within specified formula limits, be deducted iniaimg at the Bank's taxable income. As a resuthef1996 Act, the Bank must use the small banlkeegpce method in computing its bad debt deduction.

Taxable Distributions and Recapture . Prior to the 1996 Act, bad debt reserves creptid to January 1, 1988 were subject to recapghiretaxable income should the Bank fail to mestain thrift asset ar

definitional _tests. New federal legislation eliminated thegétthelated recapture rules. However, under aurtew, pre1988 reserves remain subject to recapture shoel@#nk cease to retain a banl
thrift charter or make certain non-dividend distitibns.
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Minimum Tax . The Internal Revenue Code imposes an altematinimum tax ("AMT") at a rate of 20% on a baserefular taxable income plus certain tax prefersr{talternative minimum taxak
income" or "AMTI"). The AMT is payable to the extiesuch AMTI is in excess of an exemption amouxét operating losses can offset no more than 902dwfI. Certain payments of alternative minim
tax may be used as credits against regular taiifiab in future years.

Net Operating Loss Carryovers. A financial institution may carry back net opiamg losses to the preceding two taxable yearsfarveard to the succeeding 20 taxable years.

State Taxation

New York Taxation . The Bank is subject to the New York State Frésefax on Banking Corporations in an annual ameaogl to the greater of (i) 7.1% of the Bank'stitemet income" allocable to Ne
York State during the taxable year, or (ii) the laggble alternative minimum tax. The alternativenimum tax is generally the greater of (a) 0.01%hef value of the Bank's assets allocable to Nevk Btate
with certain modifications, (b) 3% of the Bank'dtéanative entire net income" allocable to New Y@&tate, or (c) $250. Entire net income is simitafederal taxable income, subject to certain miodifon:
and alternative entire net income is equal to emtét income without certain modifications. Neergiing losses arising in the current period candseed forward to the succeeding 20 taxable years

Neither the Internal Revenue Service or New YokShave examined our federal or state tax retwithgn the past 5 years.

ITEM 1A: RISK FACTORS

Not required of a smaller reporting company.

ITEM 1B: UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 2: PROPERTIES

The Bank conducts its business through its maiiceffocated in Oswego, New York, six branch offidesated in Oswego County, and a new branch, opdfegtuary 1, 2011, in Onondz
County. Management believes that the Barfitilities are adequate for the business condud@tiee following table sets forth certain infornmaticoncerning the main office and each branch effitthe Ban
at December 31, 2010. The aggregate net book dltiee Bank's premises and equipment was $9.4omillt December 31, 2010. For additional informatiegarding the Bank's properties, see Notes
15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

OPENING
LOCATION DATE OWNED/LEASED
Main Office 1874 Owned
214 West First Stret
Oswego, New York 1312

Plaza Brancl 1989 Owned (1
Route 104, Ames Pla:
Oswego, New York 1312

Mexico Branck 1978 Owned
Norman & Main Street
Mexico, New York 1311«

Oswego East Branc 1994 Owned
34 East Bridge Stre:
Oswego, New York 1312

Lacona Brancl 2002 Owned
1897 Harwood Drive
Lacona, New York 1308

Fulton Branct 2003 Owned (2
5 West First Street Sou
Fulton, New York 1306!

Central Square Branc 2005 Owned
3025 East Avt
Central Square, New York 130

Cicero Branct 2011 Owned

6194 State Route ¢
Cicero, New York 1303

(1) The building is owned; the underlying land is lehgéth an annual rent of $21,0!
(2) The building is owned; the underlying land is lehgéth an annual rent of $30,0!
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ITEM 3 : LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are various claims and lawsuits to whichGbenpany is periodically involved that are incidéntathe Company's business. In the opinion of agament, such claims and lawsuits in the aggreage
not expected to have a material adverse impadt@Cbmpany's consolidated financial condition aslilts of operations

ITEM 4 : (REMOVED AND RESERVED)

PART I
ITEM 5: MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, REL ATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.'s common stock currertiglés on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symB8HC". There were 476 shareholders of recordfddarch 18, 2011. The following table <
forth the high and low closing bid prices and dends paid per share of common stock for the pefitdisated:

Dividend
Quarter Ended: High Low Paid
December 31, 201 $ 8.50( $ 7.75( $ 0.030(
September 30, 201 8.00( 6.03( 0.030(
June 30, 201 6.69( 6.00( 0.030(
March 31, 201( 8.00( 5.60( 0.030(
December 31, 200 $ 7.00( $ 5.55( $ 0.030(¢
September 30, 20C 7.98( 5.43( 0.030(
June 30, 200 8.00( 4.95(C 0.060(

March 31, 200¢ 8.20( 4.75( -

Dividends and Dividend History

The Company has historically paid regular quartedgh dividends on its common stock, and the Bo&iirectors presently intends to continue the paghof regular quarterly cash dividends, subje¢ht
need for those funds for debt service and othepgmes. Payment of dividends on the common stoskibigect to determination and declaration by tharBf Directors and will depend upon a numbe
factors, including capital requirements, regulatbmyitations on the payment of dividends, Pathfin@ank and its subsidiaries results of operatiom$ #nancial condition, tax considerations, and egel
economic conditions. Given deteriorating econoauinditions, and the Company'’s focus on the reteraiod growth of capital, it is unlikely that futureearterm dividends will replicate the historical divitii
payouts of 2008 and prior years. The Company'siatutolding company, Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C.yneéect to waive or receive dividends each time @wempany declares a dividend. The electic
waive the dividend receipt has required prior nbjection of the OTS in the past. Following the senof the OTS, dividend waivers must receive the-objection of the Federal Reserve. Historically
Federal Reserve has not provided its mbjection to the waiver of dividends by mutual hingilcompanies. The Mutual Holding Company did waive the right to receive its portion of the caktidend:
declared during 2010 or 2009.
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ITEM 6: SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The Company is the parent company of the Bank attififder Statutory Trust I. The Bank has threerapng subsidiaries Pathfinder Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, Iremd Whispering O¢
Development Corp.

The following selected consolidated financial dsgds forth certain financial highlights of the Caang and should be read in conjunction with the ctidated financial statements and related notes th
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of FinanCiahdition and Results of Operations" included elsese in this annual report on Form 10-K.

201( 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢€

Year End (In thousands)
Total asset $ 408,54¢ $ 371,69: $ 352,76( $ 320,69: $ 301,38:
Loans receivable, ni 281,64¢ 259,38° 247,40( 221,04t 201,71
Deposits 326,50: 296,83¢ 269,43t 251,08! 245,58t
Equity 30,59: 29,23¢ 19,49t 21,70« 20,85(
For the Year (In thousands)
Net interest incom $ 13,33: $ 11,777 $ 10,67¢ $ 8,667 $ 8,34¢
Core noninterest income ( 2,85¢ 2,72¢ 2,78¢ 2,622 2,39¢
Net gains/(losses) on sales, redemptions

impairment of investment securiti 211 112 (2,19)) 37¢ 29¢
Net (losses) gains on sales of loans

foreclosed real esta (45) 54 (44) 42 (80)
Noninterest expense ( 11,27« 10,38! 9,88: 9,79¢ 9,64¢
Regulatory assessmet 51& 74t 53 39 22
Net income 2,50¢ 1,61F 36¢ 1,122 1,02¢
Per Share
Net income (basic $ 0.82 $ 0.61 $ 0.1t $ 0.4£ $ 0.42
Book value per common she 9.81 9.31 8.04 8.74 8.4%
Tangible book value per common share 8.2€ 7.71 6.5C 7.1¢ 6.82
Cash dividends declar¢ 0.1z 0.1z 0.41 0.41 0.41
Ratios
Return on average ass 0.64% 0.45% 0.11% 0.3€% 0.34%
Return on average equi 8.07 7.04 1.7¢C 5.27 4.8€
Return on average tangible equity 9.2C 8.4E 2.07 6.47 6.04
Average equity to average ass 7.8¢ 6.4C 6.32 6.82 7.0
Dividend payout ratio (d 11.9C 18.4¢ 232.6: 62.0° 66.72
Allowance for loan losses to loans receive 1.2¢ 1.17 0.9¢ 0.7€ 0.74
Net interest rate spre: 3.5¢ 3.4C 3.22 2.81 2.9z
Noninterest income to average as: 0.77 0.81 0.1€ 0.9¢ 0.87
Noninterest expense to average as 3.0C 3.1C 2.91 3.1t 3.21
Efficiency ratio (e) 71.9¢ 76.3€ 73.0Z 85.8¢ 88.71

(a) Exclusive of net gains (losses) on sales and impeit of investment securities and net gains (IQssesales of loans and foreclosed real es

(b) Exclusive of regulatory assessmel

(c) Tangible equity excludes intangible ass

(d) The dividend payout ratio is calculated using divids declared and not waived by the Mutual Hol@ogpany, divided by net incom

(e) The efficiency ratio is calculated as noninteregtemse, including regulatory assessments, dividethé sum of taxablequivalent net interest income and noninterestrire@xcluding net gai
(losses) on sales, redemptions and impairmentvelstment securities and net gains (losses) on shleans and foreclosed real estate.
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ITEM 7: MANAGEMENT'’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

INTRODUCTION

Throughout Management'’s Discussion and Analysis@{®A") the term, “the Company”refers to the consolidated entity of Pathfinder &ap, Inc. Pathfinder Bank and Pathfinder Stagufbrust Il are
wholly owned subsidiaries of Pathfinder Bancorpg. Ihowever, Pathfinder Statutory Trust Il is nohsolidated for reporting purposes (see Note 1€hefconsolidated financial statements). Pathfi
Commercial Bank, Pathfinder REIT, Inc. and WhispgrOaks Development Corp. are wholly owned subs@baof Pathfinder Bank. At December 31, 2010hfdader Bancorp, M.H.C, the Compasy’
mutual holding company parent, whose activitiesrareincluded in the consolidated financial stateteer the MD&A, held 63.7% of the Compasydutstanding common stock and the public held%6o!
the outstanding common stock.

The Company's business strategy is to operateveallacapitalized, profitable and independent comityubank dedicated to providing valaelded products and services to our customers. r&lgnehe
Company has sought to implement this strategy hyhasizing retail deposits as its primary sourcéuntls and maintaining a substantial part of itets locallyeriginated residential first mortgage loe
loans to business enterprises operating in its etarland in investment securities. Specificatig, Company's business strategy incorporates tlenioly elements: (i) operating as an independentrnanity-
oriented financial institution; (i) maintaining jgigal in excess of regulatory requirements; (ii)ghasizing investment in one-tour family residential mortgage loans, loans taBrbusinesses and investm
securities; and (iv) maintaining a strong retappasit base.

The Company's net income is primarily dependenitomet interest income, which is the differencéasen interest income earned on its investmentadrtgage and other loans, investment securitie
other assets, and its cost of funds consistinguiefrést paid on deposits and borrowings. The Cayipanet income also is affected by its provision [ban losses, as well as by the amount of noréa
income, including income from fees, service chamyes servicing rights, net gains and losses orssaid redemptions of securities, loans and forediosal estate, and noninterest expense such deyase
compensation and benefits, occupancy and equipotets$, data processing costs and income taxesingarof the Company also are affected signifigahtt general economic and competitive conditi
particularly changes in market interest rates, guwent policies and actions of regulatory authesitiof which these events are beyond the contrthefCompany. In particular, the general leveinairke
rates tends to be highly cyclical.

APPLICATION OF CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Company's consolidated financial statementpeapared in accordance with accounting princigleserally accepted in the United States and folpoactices within the banking industry. Applicatic
these principles requires management to make estimassumptions and judgments that affect the ataaeported in the financial statements and acemyipg notes. These estimates, assumptiol
judgments are based on information available athefdate of the financial statements; accordingly this information changes, the financial statemeould reflect different estimates, assumption
judgments. Certain policies inherently have a gereliance on the use of estimates, assumptiodguaigments and as such have a greater possiilityoducing results that could be materially efiéint th:
originally reported. Estimates, assumptions amfgjjoents are necessary when assets and liabiliesequired to be recorded at fair value or whermsgset or liability needs to be recorded continggrun
future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at falue inherently results in more financial staent volatility. The fair values and informatiased to record valuation adjustments for certasetsal
liabilities are based on quoted market prices ermovided by other thirgarty sources, when available. When third parfgrimation is not available, valuation adjustments estimated in good faith
management.

The most significant accounting policies followeyl the Company are presented in Note 1 to the cifeell financial statements. These policies, alith the disclosures presented in the other fira
statement notes and in this discussion, providermétion on how significant assets and liabilites valued in the consolidated financial statemantshow those values are determined. Based ovathetio
techniques used and the sensitivity of financialeshent amounts to the methods, assumptions ainthéss underlying those amounts, management hatifidd the allowance for loan losses, deferrebin
taxes, pension obligations, the evaluation of gdbder impairment, the evaluation of investmentaseéties for other than temporary impairment anel ¢éistimation of fair values for accounting and Idisar
purposes to be the accounting areas that requérmtist subjective and complex judgments, and as socld be the most subject to revision as nearin&tion becomes available.
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The allowance for loan losses represents manag&nestimate of probable loan losses inherent indae portfolio. Determining the amount of the alimnce for loan losses is considered a critical actin
estimate because it requires significant judgmedtthe use of estimates related to the amountiemidg of expected future cash flows on impairechieestimated losses on pools of homogeneous bzest
on historical loss experience, and consideratioounfent economic trends and conditions, all ofalihinay be susceptible to significant change. Baa Iportfolio also represents the largest asset typtt
consolidated statements of condition. Note 1 &odbnsolidated financial statements describes #thaodology used to determine the allowance for loases, and a discussion of the factors driviranges
the amount of the allowance for loan losses isigket! in this report.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are rdgteed using the liability method. Under this nedh the net deferred tax asset or liability is mrdeed for the future tax consequences attributéd
differences between the financial statement cagrgimounts of existing assets and liabilities arairthespective tax bases as well as net operatidgcapital loss carry forwards. Deferred tax asset
liabilities are measured using enacted tax ratpfieapto taxable income in the years in which thtesaporary differences are expected to be recovarséttled. The effect on deferred tax assetdiabilities
of a change in tax rates is recognized in incomeetgense in the period that includes the enactdetet To the extent that current available evidembout the future raises doubt about the likelihof ¢
deferred tax asset being realized, a valuatiomaliwe is established. The judgment about the lefvklture taxable income, including that whichcinsidered capital, is inherently subjective andeigewec
on a continual basis as regulatory and businegsriachange. A valuation allowance of $458,000 was maintaineBatember 31, 2010, as management believes it magemerate sufficient capital gains
offset its capital loss carry forward. The Comparsffective tax rate differs from the statutoryeralue to nortaxable income from investment securities and b@amked life insurance offset, in 2009, by
valuation allowance established on a portion ofctgital loss carry forwards.

Pension and posetirement benefit plan liabilities and expenseskzased upon actuarial assumptions of future eviersiding fair value of plan assets, interesesatrate of future compensation increase:
the length of time the Company will have to providese benefits. The assumptions used by managerediscussed in Note 11 to the consolidated drfimaacial statements.

Management performs an annual valuation of the Gawip goodwill for possible impairment. Based on thsutes of this testing, management has determinatittte carrying value of goodwill is r
impaired as of December 31, 2010. The valuationaayh is described in Note 8 of the consolidatedritial statements.

The Company carries all of its investments at Yailue with any unrealized gains or losses repontetdof tax as an adjustment to shareholders' eqentyept for the creditelated portion of debt secur
impairment losses and other-themporary impairment of equity securities, whick aharged to earnings. The Company's ability ty fiealize the value of its investments in vari@esurities, includin
corporate debt securities, is dependent on therlyiatg creditworthiness of the issuing organizatidn evaluating the debt security portfolio fohet-thantemporary impairment losses, management con:

(1) if we intend to sell the security; (2) if it fsore likely than not'we will be required to sell the security beforeaeery of its amortized cost basis; or (3) if thegent value of expected cash flows is
sufficient to recover the entire amortized costidadn determining whether OTTI has occurred dquity securities, the Company considers the apiplicfactors described above and the length of the
equity security’s fair value has been below therydag amount. Management continually analyzes poetfolio to determine if further impairment hascaoed that may be deemed as other-than-
temporary. Further charges are possible deperatirfgture economic conditions.
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The estimation of fair value is significant to sealeof our assets, including investment securiéiesilable for sale, the interest rate derivatimamgible assets and foreclosed real estate, dssvéie value «
loan collateral when valuing loans. These areedbrded at either fair value or the lower of castair value. Fair values are determined basedchad party sources, when available. Furthermorepanting
principles generally accepted in the United Stagegiire disclosure of the fair value of financiastruments as a part of the notes to the consetidfsancial statements. Fair values may be inftedrby i
number of factors, including market interest raprepayment speeds, discount rates and the shapeldturves.

Fair values for securities available for sale draimed from an independent third party pricing/eer. Where available, fair values are based artegliprices on a nationally recognized securitiehange. |
quoted prices are not available, fair values arasueed using quoted market prices for similar bemaok securities. Management made no adjustmenteettair value quotes that were provided by theimpg
source. The fair values of foreclosed real estaie the underlying collateral value of impairedrisare typically determined based on appraisalthigt parties, less estimated costs to sell. Ifessary
appraisals are updated to reflect changes in madatitions.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Total deposits increased 10.0%, to $326.5 millioacember 31, 2010, while the average balanceepbsits increased $29.4 million to $317.9 millian the year ended December 31, 2010. Overe
Oswego County, Pathfinder Bank has the majoritthefcurrent deposit market share. The Companycwiitinue to focus on building market share in tleat€al Square and Fulton markets, while emphas
the development of a new share of the market in Giheero area of Onondaga County. The Bank consintee develop core deposit relationships in all retgkby developing demand dep
relationships. Efforts will also be focused on éxpansion of commercial deposit relationships whth Bank’s existing commercial lending customers.

Total assets increased 9.9% from December 31, 800®cember 31, 2010, primarily in the loan poitfolThe loan portfolio increased 8.6% with netwtio primarily in the commercial loan and residet
mortgage loan categories. The Company expectsrioetrate on continued commercial mortgage and aneiad loan portfolio growth during 2011. Increasithe commercial loan portfolio will incree
inherent risk in the loan portfolio, but the Compasontinues to diversify its loan portfolio and aglsses the higher risk by monitoring the levelhs allowance for loan losses and making provisias
necessary.

The ratio of non-performing assets to total aseets 1.54% at December 31, 2010, compared to 0.8 grior year end. Noperforming loans increased $3.6 million and foreehb real estate increa:
$194,000 since December 31, 2009. The increasmrirperforming loans was primarily the result of thdimfguency of a small number of relatively largemouercial loan relationships. The increas
foreclosed real estate is a reflection of a lovwantnormal level of foreclosed real estate in theryear.

Net income for 2010 was $2.5 million, as compame#.6 million in 2009. Net income available tavamon shareholders, after preferred stock dividemdkdiscount accretion, was $2.0 million, or $(@i
share, compared to $0.61 per share for the prewieas. The improvement in income was primarilg tlesult of a $1.6 million increase in net interiesbme during 2010The income improvement w
partially offset by increased noninterest operagérgenses of $663,000, or 6%.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net income for 2010 was $2.5 million, an increa68890,000, or 55.1%, compared to net income o8 $dillion for 2009. Basic and diluted earnings pbare increased to $0.82 per share for the yehat
December 31, 2010 from $0.61 per share, for the greded December 31, 2009. Return on averageyeguieased to 8.07% in 2010 from 7.04% in 2009.

Net interest income, on a tax equivalent basisiei®ed $1.7 million, or 14.2%, resulting from trembination of volume increases in all loan categ®@nd rate decreases applied to all intdreating
liabilities, with the exception of the junior suldarated debentures. The provision for loan loésethe year ended December 31, 2010 increased,®1J4or 19.9%. The elevated level of provisionfrygthe
Company during the prior two years reflects manageis assessment of the increased inherent risk asstaidth increasing commercial lending activitiése overall growth in the total loan portfolio ¢
deteriorated economic conditions. The Company eapeed a 4.5% increase in noninterest income, hwhias primarily due to an increase in income freamkbowned life insurance. Noninterest expe
increased 6% primarily due to increases in persocosts.
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income is the Company's primary soofcgperating income for payment of operating exgesnand providing for possible loan losses. tlhésamount by which interest earned on inteeasting
deposits, loans and investment securities, excéedfterest paid on deposits and borrowed mo@hanges in net interest income and the net intenesgin ratio result from the interaction betwebe
volume and composition of earning assets and isttdrearing liabilities, and their respective yiedsl funding costs.

Net interest income, on a taxuivalent basis, increased $1.7 million, or 14.8%413.5 million for the year ended December 3M,® as compared to $11.8 million for the year erdecember 31, 2009. T
Company's net interest margin for 2010 increase8l 78% from 3.56% in 2009. The increase in netrggt income is attributable to a decrease in tis¢ af interesbearing liabilities, partially offset by
increase in the average balance of interest-bea@pgsits. Although the average balance of intexaming assets increased 9.3%, the decline inigieé gn those assets partially offset the overallme
increase, resulting in only a 2.6% increase inrggkeincome earned, on a tax-equivalent basis.

The average balance of interest-earning assetsased $30.7 million, or 9.3%, during 2010 and therage balance of interelséaring liabilities increased by $22.8 million, ©6%. The increase in t
average balance of interest earning assets primasiulted from an $18.8 million increase in therage balance of the loan portfolio and an $11.Hamiincrease in the average balance of the sgt
investment portfolio, combined with a $629,000 gase in the average balance of interest earningsidspThe increase in the average balance ofeisttbearing liabilities primarily resulted from a $2
million, or 9.9%, increase in the average balarfogeposits, offset by a $3.2 million, or 7.6%, dsase in the average balance of borrowed fundsresitincome, on a taeguivalent basis, increased $465,!
or 2.6%, during 2010. The decrease in yield onrésteearning assets to 5.05% in 2010 from 5.3820D0 was offset by the 9.3% increase in volumeerést expense on deposits decreased $1.0 midi
23.1%, as the cost of deposits dropped 51 basigptn 1.18% in 2010 from 1.69% in 2009. Intermegtense on borrowings decreased $196,000, or 12i8fitig 2010 as the 7.6% decrease in the av
balance of borrowed funds was combined with a @eserén the cost of borrowed funds to 3.56% in 204 3.75% in 2009.
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Average Balances and Rates

The following table sets forth information conceigniaverage interest-earning assets and intebestring liabilities and the yields and rates themetnterest income and resultant yield informatiorthe table
is on a fully taxequivalent basis using marginal federal incomergtes of 34%. Averages are computed on the daiyage balance for each month in the period dividgdhe number of days in the peri
Yields and amounts earned include loan fees. Neniatloans have been included in interest-earrasgets for purposes of these calculations.

For the Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
Average Average Average
Average Yield / Average Yield / Average Yield /
(Dollars in thousands Balance Interest Cosi Balance Interest Cosi Balance Interest Cosi
Interest-earning assets:
Real estate loans resident $138,49° $ 7,67: 5,54 $133,44. $ 7,467 5.5¢% $130,70: $ 7,527 5.7¢%
Real estate loans commerc 65,12( 4,04¢ 6.21% 58,42« 4,02¢ 6.8%% 49,04( 3,62( 7.38%
Commercial loan: 37,70( 1,89¢ 5.02% 31,66¢ 1,607 5.08% 27,03t 1,751 6.48%
Consumer loan 29,50¢ 1,77¢ 6.01% 28,48 1,767 6.2(% 26,291 1,91¢ 7.2%
Taxable investment securiti 75,66( 2,54¢ 3.3% 71,45t 2,94z 4.12% 74,10¢ 3,36¢ 4.5%
Tax-exempt investment securiti 8,587 39¢ 4.65% 1,46¢ 65 4.4% 5,252 25E 4.86%
Interes-earning deposit 8,14( 7 0.0%% 7,511 6 0.06% 2,851 61 2.14%
Total interes-earning asse! 363,21( 18,33¢ 5.05%  332,44¢ 17,87: 5.3¢%  315,27: 18,49¢ 5.87%
Noninterest-earning assets:
Other asset 32,087 29,70« 30,27
Allowance for loan losse (3,420 (2,73) (2,006)
Net unrealized gains (losse
on available for sale securiti 1,51 (620 (1,690
Total asset $ 393,39( $ 358,80: $ 341,85:
Interest-bearing liabilities:
NOW accountt $ 29,81¢ 79 0.2€% $ 26,05t 72 0.2¢% $ 23,76: 95 0.4(%
Money management accoul 12,10: 39 0.32% 11,037 35 0.32% 10,57 52 0.4%%
MMDA accounts 50,72: 33¢€ 0.6€% 35,57: 24¢€ 0.6%% 29,181 57C 1.95%
Savings and club accour 57,81( 84 0.15% 53,72¢ 87 0.1€% 52,48 16€ 0.32%
Time deposit: 137,97 2,871 2.06% 135,96! 3,99¢ 2.90% 124,26° 4777 3.84%
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 164 3.1&% 5,15¢ 14¢ 2.89% 5,15¢ 257 4.9%
Borrowings 34,10: 1,23t 3.62% 37,34( 1,44¢ 3.87% 45,23¢ 1,75¢€ 3.8t%
Total interes-bearing liabilities 327,68 4,80¢ 1.47% _ 304,84¢ 6,02¢ 1.98% _ 290,66( 7,67 2.6%
Noninterest-bearing liabilities:
Demand deposit 29,47¢ 26,11 25,49
Other liabilities 5,178 4,88¢ 4,08¢
Total liabilities 362,33( 335,85 320,24
Shareholders' equit 31,057 22,95( 21,611
Total liabilities & shareholders'
equity $ 393,39( $ 358,80: $ 341,85:
Net interest income $ 13,53 $ 11,84¢ $ 10,81¢
Net interest rate spre: 3.5¢% 3.4(% 3.2:%
Net interest margin 3.7:% 3.56% 3.42%
Ratio of average intere-earning assel
to average interest-bearing liabilities 110.8% 109.0%% 108.4%
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Interest Income

Changes in interest income result from change$énaverage balances of loans, securities and #tteagning deposits and the related yields on thadances. Interest income on a emuivalent bas
increased $465,000, or 2.6%. Average loans inetk@s5% in 2010, with yields decreasing 22 basistpdo 5.68%. The Company's average residentiatgage loan portfolio increased $5.1 million, 08%.
when comparing 2010 to 2009. The average yieldhenresidential mortgage loan portfolio decreasdsh&is points to 5.54% in 2010. The average balafi@®mmercial real estate loans increased
million, or 11.5%, while the yield decreased 68iba®ints to 6.21% in 2010 from 6.89% in 2009. Aage commercial loans increased $6.0 million, oL%Yand the taequivalent yield decreased to 5.029
2010 compared to 5.08% in 2009. The average balahconsumer loans increased $1.0 million, or 3v%n compared to 2009. The average yield decrdasg@1% from 6.20% in 2009.

Interest income on investment securities decreas¥¥ from 2009. The average yield decreased 63 Ipadnts to 3.50% in 2010 from 4.13% in 2009, dffsgan increase in the average balance of inveg
securities (taxable and tax-exempt) of $11.3 millior 15.5%, to $84.2 million in 2010 from $72.9limh in 2009.

Interest Expense

Changes in interest expense result from changd®iaverage balances of deposits and borrowingshentcelated interest costs on those balancesrelsttexpense decreased $1.2 million, or 20.3%010
when compared to 2009. The decrease in the cdahds resulted from a decrease in the averageofasterestbearing liabilities of 51 basis points, to 1.47%2B10 from 1.98% in 2009, partially offset b
$22.8 million increase in the average balance wfréstbearing liabilities during 2010. The average adsieposits decreased 51 basis points to 1.189%gl2010 from 1.69% for 2009. The average bal
of interestbearing deposits increased $26.0 million to $288illon in 2010 from $262.4 million in 2009. Thedrease in the average balance of deposits resuttedincreases in all deposit categories.
largest increases in average deposits came from6&adincrease in MMDA accounts, a 14.4% increadaterestbearing demand deposit accounts, a 9.6% increasetirey management accounts, and a
increase in savings accounts. The cost of juniosdinated debentures underlying our trust pretesecurities increased 29 basis points, and repexs the only increase in rates affecting liaib#it I
resulted in an increase in interest expense of0B05 due to the interest rate swap entered inta portion of the subordinated debentures. The swaperted $2.0 million of the debentures from djustabl
rate being tied to LIBOR to a fixed rate of 4.96%he fixed rate paid during 2010 was significartigher than the floating rate paid in 2009, primentering into the swap. The average baland®owbwec
funds decreased $3.2 million to $34.1 million il@drom $37.3 million in 2009. The average cosbofrowed funds decreased 25 basis points, to 3i622010 from 3.87% in 2009.
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Rate/Volume Analysis

Net interest income can also be analyzed in terfrth@impact of changing interest rates on inte-earning assets and interelsearing liabilities and changes in the volume orcamt of these assets ¢
liabilities. The following table represents theenttto which changes in interest rates and chargéke volume of interest-earning assets and irstiebearing liabilities have affected the Companiyiteres
income and interest expense during the periodsatdd. Information is provided in each categoryhwiéspect to: (i) changes attributable to changesalume (change in volume multiplied by prior )ai@)
changes attributable to changes in rate (changeste multiplied by prior volume); and (iii) totahcrease or decrease. Changes attributable to baté and volume have been allocated ratably.

Years Ended December 31,

2010 vs. 2009 2009 vs. 2008
Increase/(Decrease) Due to Increase/(Decrease) Due to
Total Total
Increase Increase
(In thousands Volume Rate (Decrease Volume Rate (Decrease
Interest Income:

Real estate loans resident $ 271 $ ©8 $ 20¢ % 156  $ (222) $ (64)
Real estate loans commerc 43¢ (41¢) 20 657 (259) 404
Commercial loan 30€ 19 287 281 (425) (144
Consumer loan 62 (55) 7 151 (299) (14%)
Taxable investment securiti 16E (559) (399 117 (304) (421)
Tax-exempt investment securit 331 3 334 170 (20) (190)
Interes-earning deposit 1 2 8 40 (97) (57)
Total interest incom 1,58( (1,11%) 467 1,00( (1,620) (620)

Interest Expense:
NOW account: 12 (5) 7 8 (31) (23)
Money management accoul 4 - 4 2 19 ()]
MMDA accounts 101 (11) 90 104 (42¢) (329
Savings and club accour 4 @) ®3) 4 (85) 81)
Time deposit: 58 (1,18)) (1,123) 417 (1,200 (783)
Junior subordinated debentu - 15 15 - (10¢) (109)
Borrowings (121) (90) (211) (305) (5) (310
Total interest expens 58 (1,279 (1,227) 23C (1,87¢) (1,646
Net change in net interest incot $ 152: $ 166 $ 1,68t $ 77C  $ 25¢€ $ 1,02¢

Provision for Loan Losses

The provision for loan losses increased $174,008Lta million for the year ended December 31, 2@k0compared to the prior year. This increadeatsfadditional provisions recorded throughoutytear

to address an increase in delinquency of commelimaals and a growing loan portfolio that is moravily weighted to commercial term and commerciall estate loans. These loans generally have higher
inherent risk characteristics than a traditionaidential real estate portfolio. It has been tl@n@any’s intention to continue to provide for figupan losses at a consistently higher level ihtligf the
general weakening in economic conditions and olesslet quality. All of the increase in the prasmishas been allocated to commercial lending. Chepany's ratio of allowance for loan losses tagoer

end loans increased to 1.28% at December 31, 20t6rapared to 1.17% at December 31, 2009. Noreeifig loans to period end loans increased to 2.882tecember 31, 2010 from 0.88% at December
31, 2009. The increase in non-performing loansimarily the result of an increase in delinquenéyasmall number of relatively large commerciall restate loan relationships. Management belielvat t
the existing allowances provided on these loansafficient to cover anticipated losses.
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Noninterest Income

The Company's noninterest income is primarily casgat of fees on deposit account balances and taoss, loan servicing, commissions, and net gairlesses on securities, loans and foreclosedestate
The following table sets forth certain information noninterest income for the years indicated.

For the Years Ended December 3

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Service charges on deposit accot $ 1,37% $ 1,49¢
Earnings and gains on bank owned life insurz 434 22¢
Loan servicing fee 20€ 2332
Debit card interchange fe 31€ 28C
Other charges, commissions and f 522 49C
Noninterest income before gains (loss 2,852 2,72¢
Net gains on sales, redemptions and impairmenmtw@stment securitie 211 112
Net (losses) gains on sales of loans and foreclosadestat: (45) 54
Total noninterest incom $ 3,02C $ 2,89

For the year ended December 31, 2010, noninterestrie before gains (losses) increased $130,0808&%, when compared with the year ended Decemhe2®B. The increase was comprised of incre
in earnings and gains on bank owned life insuradebjt card interchange fees, and other chargesamunissions and fees, which were offset by deeseas service charges on deposit accounts anc
servicing fees. Earnings and gains on bank owifiednisurance increased $209,000, or 92.9%, whigitimarily due to insurance proceeds received refatd the death benefit associated with life insae
coverage on a former directorThe increase in debit card interchange feesiéstd increased customer activity, which is dribgrthe debit card rewards program that was estadigate in the third quarter
2009. As a result of the Dod#ank Act mandated limits on interchange fees afdainstitutions, and market pressure on the Complaat may follow, debit card interchange fee meomay decrease in 1
future. The $33,000 increase in other chargesntissions and fees was attributable to an increaseviestment services revenue and automated te@hine fees due to increased activity. The irgm
were partially offset by a $121,000 decrease inisercharges on deposit accounts associated witbceease in customer use of the Company’s exteadediraft program. The customemsage of tt
program was negatively impacted by the Federal Red®oards issuance, during November 2009, of a final reldsing the provisions of Regulation E. As partltdse revisions, financial institutions w
prohibited from charging consumers fees for payimgrdrafts on automated teller machine (ATM) and-time debit card transactions, unless a consumeserus, or opts in, to the overdraft service fost
types of transactions. The final rule became eiffeain July 1, 2010.

Net gains and losses from the sale, redemptiompairment of securities increased to a net gaf2dfl,000 for the year ended December 31, 2010mpaed to a net gain of $112,000 for the same e
2009. The increase is due to gains recognizedthersale of securities and from cash redemptions fiee SHAY Assets large cap equity fund and ulb@rsmortgage fund, as compared to the recordil
other-thantemporary impairment charges during 2009. Netdsgsom the sales of loans and foreclosed realeesitaled $45,000 for the year ended Decembe@10, as compared to a net gain of $54
when compared to the same period in 2009. Theedse is due to losses recognized on the saleredlésed properties in 2010 compared to the gdiaswere recognized on loan sales to the seco
market of 30-year fixed rate residential mortgadesng 2009.
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Noninterest Expense

The following table sets forth certain information noninterest expense for the years indicated.

For the Years Ended December 3

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Salaries and employee bene $ 6,12¢ $ 5,571
Building occupancy 1,281 1,24¢€
Data processin 1,37z 1,307
Professional and other servic 831 844
FDIC assessmen SilE 745
Other expense 1,664 1,407
Total noninterest expen: $ 11,78¢ $ 11,12¢

Noninterest expenses increased $663,000, or 6.0%hdoyear ended December 31, 2010. The incre@aseninterest expense is due to an increase of,38@9n salaries and employee benefits, a $25'
increase in other expenses, a $65,000 increasatanpdocessing and a $35,000 increase in buildicgmancy. These increases were partially offset 230,000 decrease in FDIC assessments. Theas
in salaries and employee benefits was due to tHitian of 6 fulltime equivalent positions, annual merit based wadjestments and other incentive based compensat&ts. The increase in other expens
partially due to expenses related to the Compadgbit card rewards program, which was not ingfac the most of 2009. FDIC assessments decresised compared to 2009 due to a special assessif
$165,000 levied during 2009, as well as adjustmerade to reflect a change in the structure and amofuthe regular regulatory assessment. As dtresthe DoddFrank Act and other Federal and S
government regulatory initiatives, additional corapte costs are anticipated in the future.

Income Tax Expense

In 2010, the Company reported income tax expensgldf million compared with $1.1 million in 2009he effective tax rate decreased to 28.7% in 2Qdfipared to a tax rate of 39.4% in 2009.
consistency in income tax expense, despite theehigtetax income earned in 2010, was the resuhefower effective tax rate. The Compatéx rate has decreased primarily as a resuléfefriced tax ass
valuation allowance adjustments recorded in therprear, combined with an increase in tax-exemporme from the investment portfolio and the receiptax-exempt life insurance proceewdating to th
death benefit associated with coverage on a fodinector . See Note 13 to the consolidated finarstiatements for the reconciliation of the statutax rate to the effective tax rate.

CHANGESIN FINANCIAL CONDITION
Investment Securities

The investment portfolio represents 21% of the Camyfs average earning assets and is designed to geref@torable rate of return consistent with saéétgrincipal while assisting the Company in meg
its liquidity needs and interest rate risk stragsgiAll of the Companyg’ investments are classified as available for s@lee Company invests primarily in securities isbigy United States Governm
agencies and sponsored enterprises, morthagked securities, state and municipal obligatiomstual funds, equity securities, investment gredeporate debt instruments, and common stock isbyettie
Federal Home Loan Bank of New York (FHLBNY). Bwasting in these types of assets, the Company esdahe credit risk of its asset base, but mustpdower yields than would typically be available
loan products. Our mortgage backed securitiedgiimrtis comprised predominantly of pagsough securities guaranteed by Fannie Mae, Feellidic or Ginnie Mae and does not, to our knowledugsyde
any securities backed by sub-prime or other higk-mortgages.
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At December 31, 2010, investment securities in@e@ds’.2% to $87.5 million from $74.7 million at @eaber 31, 2009. There were no securities thatesbaxk 10% of consolidated shareholdesguity. Se
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statementsutther discussion on securities.

The following table sets forth the carrying valdehe Company's investment portfolio at December 31

(In Thousands 201( 200¢
Investment Securities:

US treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 20,02 $ 14,53:

State and political subdivisiol 18,97¢ 8,92¢

Corporate 5,60( 4,96¢

Residential mortga-backec 37,24¢ 36,94(

Mutual funds 3,02¢ 4,81¢

Equity securitie: 45E 372

Other - 2,202

Total investments in securiti $ 85,321 $ 72,75¢

Certain individual securities have been reclassifie the prior year table above to conform to therent year presentation. The reclassificationd iha effect on the total investment portfolios poesly
reported.

The following table sets forth the scheduled mé&asj amortized cost, fair values and average gidtit the Company's investment securities at Deeedib, 2010. Yield is calculated on the amortizest ¢c
maturity and adjusted to a fully tax-equivalentisas

One Year or Less One to Five Years Five to Ten Years
Annualized Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted Amortized Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cosi  Avg Yield Cost  Avg Yield Cosi  Avg Yield
Debt investment securities:
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ - - $ 17,107 158%$  2,03( 2.0¢%
State and political subdivisiol 96 1.5(% 2,19t 2.3% 8,37« 4.04%
Corporate 502 5.17% 3,12€ 5.12% - -
Total 59€ 4.58% 22,42¢ 2.12% 10,40¢ 3.65%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec 264 4.1(% 62¢ 4.41% 5,63¢ 3.5%
Total 264 4.1(% 62¢ 4.41% 5,63¢ 3.52%
Other non-maturity investments:
Mutual funds 2,84¢ 3.4% - - - -
Equity securitie: 45C 2.02% - - - -
Total 3,29¢ 2.9€% - - - -
Total investment securitie $  4,15¢ 3.4%$  23,05: 2.1%$  16,04¢ 3.61%
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Total
Investment
More Than Ten Years Securities
Annualized Annualized
Amortized Weighted Amortized Fair  Weighted
(Dollars in thousands Cost  Avg Yield Cosl Value Avg Yield
Debt investment securities:
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 1,00¢ 52(%$ 20,137 $ 20,02¢ 1.76%
State and political subdivisiol 8,567 4.56% 19,227 18,97¢ 4.0€%
Corporate 2,231 0.9(% 5,86¢ 5,60( 3.52%
Total 11,79¢ 3.92% 45,22¢ 44,60: 2.91%
Mortgage-backed securities:
Residential mortga-backec 29,99¢ 3.86% 36,53( 37,24¢ 3.82%
Total 29,99¢ 3.86% 36,53( 37,24¢ 3.82%
Other non-maturity investments:
Mutual funds - - 2,84« 3,02¢ 3.4%
Equity securitie: - - 45C 45E 2.02%
Total - - 3,29¢ 3,47¢ 3.24%
Total investment securitie $ 41,79 3.86%$  85,05: $ 8532 3.35%

The above noted yield information does not giveefto changes in fair value that are reflectedccumulated other comprehensive loss in consotidgttareholders’ equity.

Loans Receivable

Loans receivable represent 69% of the Compmaayerage earning assets and account for the gr@ateion of total interest income. The Compampbasizes residential real estate financing andipates
continued commitment to financing the purchasengrovement of residential real estate in its madteti. The Company also extends credit to busisesghin its marketplace secured by commercidl
estate, equipment, inventories, and accounts rabksy It is anticipated that small business legdimthe form of mortgages, term loans, leases,liaed of credit will provide the most opportunftyr balanc
sheet and revenue growth over the near term. Coamh@nd municipal loans comprise 14% of the tétaah portfolio. At December 31, 2010, 76% of thempanys total loan portfolio consisted of lo¢
secured by real estate, and 24% of the total loatiglio consisted of commercial real estate loans.

December 31

(In thousands 201C 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢€
Residential real estate ( $ 147,72 $135,10: $136,21¢ $126,66¢ $118,49:
Commercial real esta 69,06( 62,25( 55,06: 45,49( 40,501
Commercial and municipi 39,83: 35,447 30,68¢ 25,28¢ 23,001
Home equity and junior lier 25,27: 26,08¢ 24,39: 21,37¢ 18,05¢
Consume 3,41( 3,58( 3,51¢ 3,92¢ 3,15¢

Total loans receivabl $ 285,29t $262,46! $249,87: $222,74¢ $203,20¢

(1) Includes loans held for sale. (None at Decerdie010, 2009, 2008 and 2007.)
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The following table shows the amount of loans antding as of December 31, 2010 which, based oniréngascheduled repayments of principal, are du¢hia periods indicated. Demand loans havini
stated schedule of repayments and no stated mgtarid overdrafts are reported as one year or ledjustable and floating rate loans are includedtie period on which interest rates are next sohemtitc
adjust rather than the period in which they contredly mature, and fixed rate loans are includedtie period in which the final contractual repayrhendue.

Due Unde Due 1-5 Due Ove
(In thousands One Yea Year: Five Year: Total
Real estate
Commercial real esta $ 22,10 $ 42,32 $ 4,63t $ 69,06(
Residential real esta 12,19t 24,91: 110,61! 147,72:
34,29¢ 67,23¢ 115,25( 216,78:
Other Commercie 31,89( 7,31z 631 39,83
Home Equity and junior lien 14,55: 96C 9,75¢ 25,27:
Consume 643 2,34: 42E 3,41(
Total loans $ 81,38 $ 77,84t $ 126,06! $ 285,29t
Interest rates
Fixed $ 6,43¢ $ 10,68¢ $ 121,08. $ 138,21(
Variable 74,94 67,16 4,981 147,08t
Total loans $ 81,38 $ 77,84¢ $ 126,06 $ 285,29t

Total loans receivable increased 8.7% when comparéide prior year. Residential real estate ldanseased $12.6 million, or 9.3%, during 2010.e Thsidential real estate portfolio consists of 7ieéd-
rate mortgages and 26% adjustatsltee mortgages. There was a 6% shift to fixed nabetgages from adjustable rate mortgages when acedpto the portfolio composition as of December Z109. Th
increase in the fixed rate mortgage portfolio reiifrom increased demand for fixed rate produaots o the historically low interest rate environm#rat was prevalent during 2010. The Company e
originate sub-prime, Alt-A, negative amortizingather higher risk structured residential mortgages.

Commercial real estate loans increased $6.8 mjlbori0.9%, from the prior year as new loan proslactd relationships were added to the portfolio.

Commercial loans, including loans to municipalitieereased 12.4% over the prior year to $39.8ionilat December 31, 2010. The increase in comm@elmans was primarily the result of new lenc
relationships with an expanding commercial custobese. The Company has continued its effortsasform its more traditional thrift balance sheegtjch emphasized residential real estate lending
more diversified balance sheet, which includeseatgr proportion of commercial lending products.

Consumer loans, which include second mortgage Jdense equity lines of credit, direct installmentaevolving credit loans, decreased 3.3% to $28l6on at December 31, 2010. The decrease red
from an decrease in home equity lines of cred# essult of the current market and economic coorakti

Page 29




Table of Contents

Non-performing Loans and Assets

The following table represents information concegnthe aggregate amount of non-performing assets:

December 31

(In thousands 201( 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢
Non-accrual loans:

Commercial real estate and commer $ 422¢  $ 1,021 $ 1458 % 521 $ 481

Consumel 36E 111 254 15C 12t

Residential real esta 1,33¢ 1,181 614 92C 56€
Total nor-accrual loan: 5,92¢ 2,318 2,328 1,591 1,172

Total nor-performing loan: 5,92¢ 2,31t 2,32 1,591 1,172

Foreclosed real esta 37E 181 33E 865 471

Total nor-performing asset $ 6,29¢ $ 2,49¢  $ 2,65¢ $ 2,45¢ $ 1,64:

Nor-performing loans to total loal 2.08% 0.8¢% 0.9%% 0.71% 0.57%
Nor-performing assets to total ass 1.54% 0.67% 0.75% 0.71% 0.5%
Interest income that would have been recol

under the original terms of the loa $ 26C $ 112 $ 131 $ 71 $ 53

Total non-performing loans increased approxima$@y million at December 31, 2010, when comparede¢oember 31, 2009. The increase in penforming loans was primarily the result of théimtguency
of a small number of relatively large commerciaraelationships. These large commercial relakigrssare monitored closely by management and ntétovi a regular basis to work out repayment plam
alternative strategies for collection. It is masagnt's intention to work closely and patientlylwihe small business owners as they adapt to tivemarket dynamics. Management continues to monitor
react to national and local economic trends as agljeneral portfolio conditions, which may impthet quality of the portfolio. In response to receends and risk management the Bank has increths
provision for loan losses, maintaining the Comparsttict loan underwriting standards and carefoibnitoring the performance of the loan portfolio.

The current level of non-performing assets woulthave fallen outside of the Bank's historic leivehds were it not for the inclusion of three laogenmercial relationships. The increase in norfgparing
loans since December 31, 2009 is comprised of pifynéiese three large relationships totaling $8iilion. The largest of these relationships tet&2.2 million in non-performing loans at DecemBgr
2010. Of the balance outstanding, approximatel® $2illion is secured by commercial real estate eqdipment. A current evaluation of the comman®al estate and equipment was obtained fronrc th
party in June 2010. Management believes that pipeagsed fair value of the underlying collaterakodunted for selling costs, along with the asgedigyuarantees of business principals and theirxist
allowance provided against these loans of $313,688,adequate to cover the carrying amounts ofddues. During the third quarter of 2010, two othelatively large commercial relationships, with a
combined loan balance of approximately $1.0 millidrecame non-performing. Both lending relationshgre secured by commercial real estate and eqoipnas well as personal and SBA
guarantees. Management believes that the collatecaring these loans, along with the guarantéegtteer business principals or government entitigsl the existing allowance specifically allocatedthe
loans of $42,400, are adequate to cover the carsnounts of the loans.

Appraisals are obtained at the time a real estatersd loan is originated. Collateral is reevadathould the loan become 45 days delinquent todedermine the ban&’level of exposure. For commern
real estate held as collateral, the property ipeénted every two years. When evaluating our gltiditcollect from secondary sources, appraisedesaére adjusted to reflect the age of appraisalctmdition o
the property, the current local real estate marked, cost to sell. Properties areampraised when our evaluation of the current ptgpasndition and the local real estate market satgyealues may not
accurate.
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The Company generally places a loan on aocrual status and ceases accruing interest wiaenplayment performance is deemed unsatisfactoryhentban is past due 90 days or more. There @lean:
that are past due 90 or more and are still accrintegest. The Company considers a loan impairednybased on current information and events,ptadable that the Company will be unable to coltee
scheduled payments of principal and interest whenatcording to the contractual terms of the loan.

The measurement of impaired loans is generallydapen the present value of future cash flows disted at the historical effective interest rategept that all collateratlependent loans are measurec
impairment based on the fair value of the colldtefde Company used the fair value of collatesafieasure impairment on commercial and commerealestate loans. At December 31, 2010 and 26€
Company had $7.0 million and $3.2 million in loandiich were deemed to be impaired, having valuasitowances of $1.1 million and $79,000, respetyive

Management has identified additional potential peobloans totaling $3.5 million as of December 3210, compared to $5.0 million in potential problemans as of December 31, 2009. These loans
been internally classified as special mention dasgandard, yet are not currently considered pastiduwaired or in nomccrual status. Management has identified potecrialit problems which may result
the borrowers not being able to comply with therent loan repayment terms and which may result being included in future past due reporting. Mgaraent believes that the current allowance for
losses is adequate to cover probable credit lassks current loan portfolio.

In the normal course of business, Pathfinder Baask $old residential mortgage loans and patrticipatiterests in commercial loans. As is typicaltie industry, the bank makes certain representatiox
warranties to the buyer. Pathfinder maintains alityuaontrol program for closed loans and has neween asked to repurchase a sold loan. Therefomeagement considers the risks and uncerta
associated with potential repurchase requirementetminimal. There are no known or alleged dsfétthe securitization process or in the mortgdgeumentation. Any future risk of exposure woug
immaterial.

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is established thraiarges to expense in the form of a provisioridan losses and reduced by loan chafjenet of recoveries. The allowance for loars&srepresents t
amount available for probable credit losses inGoenpanys loan portfolio as estimated by management. Tovagany maintains an allowance for loan losses baped a monthly evaluation of known ¢
inherent risks in the loan portfolio, which incligda review of the balances and composition of ¢la Iportfolio as well as analyzing the level ofidgliencies in each segment of the loan portfolibe
Company uses a general allocation method for thieleatial real estate and consumer loan pools,dbagen a methodology that uses loss factors appdiddan balances and reflects actual loss expesi
delinquency trends and current economic conditioftee Company individually reviews commercial reatate and commercial loans greater than $150@ate not accruing interest and that are riséc
under the Compang'risk rating system as special mention, substandiubtful or loss to determine if the loans reguain allowance for impairment. Large residental estate loans may also be include
this individual loan review. If impairment is ndtethe Company establishes a specific allocatibime specific allocation is determined based onrtost recent valuation of the loantollateral and tt
customer’s ability to pay. For all other commefceial estate and commercial loans, the Company theegeneral allocation method that establishesllawance for each riskating category. The gene
allocation method for commercial real estate androercial loans considers the same factors that@isidered when evaluating residential real estateconsumer loan pools. The allowance for loasd
reflects management’s best estimate of probabtellwsses at December 31, 2010.

The allowance for loan losses at December 31, 20002009 was $3.6 million and $3.1 million, or 228nd 1.17% of total period end loans, respectivgst loan charge-offs were $480,000 during 20%0, a

compared to $270,000 in 2009. The majority ofitteeease in current year charge-off activity is tbsult of the write off of a $200,000 loan thatswrart of the largest non-performing commerciatiehship
previously discussed.
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The following table sets forth the allocation dbatance for loan losses by loan category for thequs indicated. The allocation of the allowangedategory is not necessarily indicative of futlosses an
does not restrict the use of the allowance to absosses in any category.

2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

Percen Percer Percer Percen Percer

Allocation of  Allocation of  Allocation of  Allocation of  Allocation of

of the Loans t of the Loans tc of the Loans tc of the Loans t of the Loans tc

Total Total Total Total Total

(Dollars in thousands Allowance Loan: Allowance Loan: Allowance Loan: Allowance Loans:  Allowance Loans
Residential real esta $ 75C 51.8% $ {68 51.5% $ 67¢ 54.5% $ 464 56.9% $ 17z 58.2%
Commercial real esta 1,20¢ 24.2% 1,00¢ 23. 1% 907 22.(% 614 20.5% 62€ 19.¢%
Commercial and municipi 1,082 13.%% 864 13.5% 50& 12.2% 34z 11.2% 357 11.2%
Home equity and junior lier 424 8.9% 39C 9.5% 332 9.8% 23¢ 9.6% 28¢ 8.5%
Consumer loan 8¢ 1.2% 76 1.4% 48 1.4% 44 1.8% 50 1.6%

Unallocatec 98 (24) - - -

Total $  3,64¢ 100.(% $  3,07¢ 100.(% $ 2,472 100.(% $  1,70¢ 100.(% $  1,49¢ 100.(%

The following table sets forth the allowance faaridosses for the periods indicated, and relatettbsea

(In thousands 201C 200¢ 200¢ 2007 200¢
Balance at beginning of year $ 307 $ 2472 $ 1,70¢ $ 1,49 $ 1,67¢
Provisions charged to operating exper 1,05(C 87€ 82C 365 23
Recoveries of loans previously charged-off:
Commercial real estate and commer 55 - 17 - -
Consumel 36 20 30 27 18
Residential real esta 19 3 - 23 4
Total recoverie: 11C 23 47 50 22
Loans charged off:
Commercial real estate and commer (385) (74) (46) (85) (1149
Consume| (157) (1349) (52) 77 (89)
Residential real esta (48) (85) - (46) (25)
Total charge-off (590) (293) (98) (208) (22€)
Net charg-offs (480) (270) (51) (15€) (20€)
Balance at end of year $ 3646 $ 307¢ $ 247: $ 1,700 $ 1,49¢
Net charg-offs to average loans outstand 0.18% 0.11% 0.02% 0.08% 0.11%
Allowance for loan losses to y«-end loans 1.28% 1.17% 0.9$% 0.7€% 0.74%
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Deposits

The Company’s deposit base is drawn from severstilice offices in its market area and will expéméihclude an eighth office opened in Cicero, Nearkyon February 1, 2011. The deposit base consi
demand deposits, money management and money méekeisit accounts, savings and time deposits. D200, 57% of the Company's average deposit base3d7.9 million consisted of cc
deposits. Core deposits, which exclude time dépaaie considered to be more stable and provel€tmpany with a lower cost source of funds tharetdeposits. The Company will continue to empte
retail core deposits by maintaining its networkfulf service offices and providing depositors wihfull range of deposit product offerings. In aidi, Pathfinder Commercial Bank, our commerciahk
subsidiary, will seek business growth by focusingte local identification and service excellendtathfinder Commercial Bank had an average balah$é7.4 million in municipal deposits in 2010, parily
concentrated in money market deposit accounts.

Average deposits increased $29.4 million, or 10.@#en compared to 2009. The increase in averagesits primarily related to a $7.1 million incredsethe average balance of municipal deposits ¢
$22.3 million increase in retail deposits.

The Company's average deposit mix in 2010, as coedp® 2009, reflected a similar product line cosifon. The Company's average demand deposith, ibterest and noninterest bearing acco
represented 18% of total average deposits for 200tD2009. The Company's average MMDA accountsgclwhirew 43% in 2010, represented 16% of total dépdsr 2010 and 12% for 2009. Savil
accounts and money management accounts remainatstemm at 19% and 4% of average deposits, respégtifor both 2010 and 2009. The Compantime deposit accounts represented 43% of
deposits for 2010 and 47% for 2009. The Companynptes its MMDA accounts by offering competitiveasito retain existing and attract new customers.

At December 31, 2010, time deposits in excess 60FID0 totaled $57.4 million, or 40%, of time deiand 18% of total deposits. At December 31,%2@0ese deposits totaled $53.4 million, or 38%re
deposits and 18% of total deposits.

The following table indicates the amount of the @amy’s certificates of deposit of $100,000 or mioyetime remaining until maturity as of December 3Q10:

(In thousands
Remaining Maturity:

Three months or les $ 18,83¢
Three through six montt 8,03¢
Six through twelve month 10,771
Over twelve month 19,74¢

Total $ 57,39¢
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Borrowings

Short-term borrowings are comprised primarily ofatces and overnight borrowing at the FHLBNY. A¢dember 31, 2010, there were $13.0 million in skerh borrowings outstanding. There were¢
short-term borrowings outstanding at December 8092

The following table represents information regagdéimort-term borrowings during 2010, 2009 and 2008:

(Dollars in thousands 201( 200¢ 200¢
Maximum outstanding at any month € $ 13,00 $ 1,400 $ 23,79:
Average amount outstanding during the y 74E 1,72¢ 14,15:
Average interest rate during the y: 0.47% 1.84% 2.85%

Long-term borrowed funds consist of advances apdrehase agreements from the FHLBNY and Citi Grang junior subordinated debentures. Léegn borrowed funds and junior subordinated debee
totaled $33.2 million at December 31, 2010 as carmpéo $41.2 million at December 31, 2009.

Capital

Shareholders' equity at December 31, 2010, was$$80lion as compared to $29.2 million at Decem®&r 2009. The Company added $2.5 million to refdisarnings through net income. The increase in
retained earnings was offset by an increase of $D4in accumulated other comprehensive loss, wincteased to $1.9 million from $1.4 million at @eeber 31, 2009. Unrealized holding losses on
securities, net of tax, resulted in an increasaccumulated other comprehensive loss of $85,00@ddtlition, unrealized losses on the interestdetévative, net of tax expense, added $66,000 aticement
plan losses and transition obligation amortizatioet, of tax expense, added $363,000 to accumutstest comprehensive loss. Common stock divideretsaded reduced capital by $298,000. Preferred
stock dividends paid to the United States Treasumger the terms of the agreement entered int®@9 Zs part of the Company’s $6.8 million partitipa in the Capital Purchase Plan, reduced capital
$339,000.

Risk-based capital provides the basis for which all lseanie evaluated in terms of capital adequacy. t&leguilequacy is evaluated primarily by the useatibs which measure capital against total asssteed
as against total assets that are weighted base@fored risk characteristics. The Compangbal is to maintain a strong capital positiomsistent with the risk profile of its subsidiaryniba that suppor
growth and expansion activities while at the saime texceeding regulatory standards. At DecembefB10, Pathfinder Bank exceeded all regulatoryireg minimum capital ratios and met the regule
definition of a “well-capitalized” institution, i.ea leverage capital ratio exceeding 5%, a TidsK-based capital ratio exceeding 6% and a tositbiased capital ratio exceeding 10%. As a resutie Dodd-
Frank Act, the Compang’ability to raise new capital through the useroét preferred securities may be limited becaussetsecurities will no longer be included in Tiezabital. In addition, our ability
generate or originate additional revenue produesgpts may be constrained in the future in ordeonaply with anticipated heightened capital staddaequired by state and federal regulation. Sée 1o tc
the consolidated financial statements for furtiecalssion on regulatory capital requirements.

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity management involves the Compasibility to generate cash or otherwise obtain fuatireasonable rates to support asset growth, depetsit withdrawals, maintain reserve requiremesus
otherwise operate the Company on an ongoing bdsis. Company's primary sources of funds are depdsitrrowed funds, amortization and prepaymenbaifi$ and maturities of investment securities
other shorterm investments, and earnings and funds provided bperations. While scheduled principal repayts@m loans are a relatively predictable sourcinéls, deposit flows and loan prepaym:
are greatly influenced by general interest ratesnemic conditions and competition. The Companyagas the pricing of deposits to maintain a desitegbsit balance. In addition, the Company im
excess funds in short-term interest-earning andrathsets, which provide liquidity to meet lendiaguirements.
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The Company's liquidity has been enhanced by itsbeeship in the Federal Home Loan Bank of New Yerkpse competitive advance programs and linesegficprovide the Company with a safe, reli:
and convenient source of funds. A significant dase in deposits in the future could result inGoenpany having to seek other sources of fundsidaidity purposes. Such sources could include doatno
limited to, additional borrowings, trust preferrgecurity offerings, brokered deposits, negotiatet tdeposits, the sale of "available-&ale" investment securities, the sale of secudtipans, or the sale
whole loans. Such actions could result in highégriest expense costs and/or losses on the ssgeofities or loans.

The Company has a number of existing credit faedit Total credit available under the existingediris approximately $93 million. At December 301@, the Company had $41 million outstanding u
existing credit facilities with $52 million availsh

The Asset Liability Management Committee of the @amy is responsible for implementing the policiesl guidelines for the maintenance of prudent lewdldiquidity. As of December 31, 20!
management reported to the Board of Directorsttt@Company is in compliance with its liquidity oyl guidelines.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

The Company is also a party to financial instrureemith off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesseet the financing needs of its customers.s&Himancial instruments include commitme
to extend credit and standby letters of credit.D&tember 31, 2010, the Company had $30.1 millioouitstanding commitments to extend credit andditpetters of credit. See Note 15 in the accongrey
consolidated financial statements.

ITEM 7A : QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES  ABOUT MARKET RISK

Not required of a smaller reporting company.
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MANAGEMEN"S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RERRBT

The Company’'s management is responsible for estdbfi and maintaining adequate internal controlr direncial reporting, as such term is defined inlé® 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Because oftierémt limitations, internal control over financiaporting may not prevent or detect misstatemeXito, projections of any evaluation of effectivesgo
future periods are subject to the risk that costrohy become inadequate because of changes irtioosdbr that the degree of compliance with peBodr procedures may deteriorate. The Companyésnat
control over financial reporting is a process desiyunder the supervision of the Company’s prifagacutive officer and principal financial officer provide reasonable assurance regarding thebiléty of
financial reporting and the preparation of the Camps financial statements for external reportingposes in accordance with United States genemattgpted accounting principles.

Under the supervision and with the participatiom@inagement, including the Company’s principal esige officer and principal financial officer, t@ompany conducted an evaluation of the effectivenés

its internal control over financial reporting basedthe framework itnternal Control — Integrated Framewoigsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatafrise Treadway Commission. Based on its
evaluation under that framework, management coedutat the Company'’s internal control over finahecéporting was effective as of December 31, 20i@ddition, based on our assessment, management
has determined that there were no material weakséssthe Company'’s internal controls over finah@gorting.

This annual report does not include an attestagmort of the Company’s independent registeredipwaicounting firm regarding internal control o¥arancial reporting pursuant to the rules of thedBo
Frank Act that exempts the Company from such atiest and requires only management’s report.

/sl Thomas W. Schneider /s/ James A. Dowd
Thomas W. Schneidt James A. Dowt
President & Chief Executive Offict Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi

Oswego, New York
March 24, 2011
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders
Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednseates of condition of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. autbsidiaries (the “Companygs of December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the relatesbtidate:
statements of income, changes in shareholderstyegoi cash flows for each of the years in the ywar period ended December 31, 2010. Pathfindec@g, Inc.5 management is responsible for tt
consolidated financial statements. Our resporitilidl to express an opinion on these consolidétexhcial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversighamio(United States). Those standards requireviegplan and perform the audit to obr
reasonable assurance about whether the consolifiatedial statements are free of material misstate. The Company is not required to have, noewe engaged to perform, an audit of its interoatol|
over financial reporting. Our audits included ddesation of internal control over financial regog as a basis for designing audit proceduresateatppropriate in the circumstances, but notfemurpose «
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of thenganys internal control over financial reporting. Acdargly, we express no such opinion. An audit afsdudes examining, on a test basis, evid
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the diolaged financial statements, assessing the actmuptinciples used and significant estimates ntademanagement, as well as evaluating the overahfiia
statement presentation. We believe that our apdit¢ide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial stateteereferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the consolidated financial positionPathfinder Bancorp, Inc. and subsidiaries ¢
December 31, 2010 and 2009, and the consolidagedtseof their operations and their cash flowsdach of the years in the twear period ended December 31, 2010 in conformitlg mccounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of America.

[Missing Graphic Reference]

Syracuse, New York
March 24, 2011
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CON SOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CONDITION

December 3

(In thousands, except share da 201( 200¢
ASSETS:

Cash and due from ban $ 6,366 $ 8,67¢

Interest earning depos 7,397 5,952

Total cash and cash equivale 13,76: 14,63!

Investment securities, at fair val 85,327 72,75¢

Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at ¢ 2,13¢ 1,89¢

Loans 285,29¢ 262,46!

Less: Allowance for loan loss: 3,64¢ 3,07¢

Loans receivable, ne 281,64¢ 259,38"

Premises and equipment, | 9,432 7,172

Accrued interest receivab 1,70¢ 1,482

Foreclosed real esta 37¢ 181

Goodwill 3,84( 3,84(

Bank owned life insuranc 6,91¢ 6,95¢€

Other asset 3,402 3,38¢

Total asset $ 408,54 $ 371,69:

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Deposits:
Interes-bearing $ 295,78« $ 269,53¢
Noninteres-bearing 30,71¢ 27,30(
Total deposit: 326,50: 296,83¢
Shor-term borrowings 13,00( 0
Long-term borrowings 28,00( 36,00(
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15t 5,15¢
Other liabilities 5,29¢€ 4,46(
Total liabilities 377,95¢ 342,45

Shareholders' equit'
Preferred stock, par value $0.01 per share; $1j0ation preference; 1,000,000 shares

authorized; 6,771 shares issued and outstar 6,22¢ 6,101
Common stock, par value $0.01; authorized 10,0@sb@res; 2,972,119 and 2,484,832 shares

issued and outstanding, respectiv 30 30

Additional paid in capita 8,61¢ 8,61¢

Retained earninc 24,167 22,41¢

Accumulated other comprehensive I (1,939 (1,425

Treasury stock, at cost; 487,287 sh: (6,507) (6,507)

Total shareholders' equi 30,59: 29,23¢

Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 408,54¢ $ 371,69:

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statemer
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CO NSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

Years Ended December &

(In thousands, except per share de 201( 200¢
Interest and dividend income:
Loans, including fee $ 15,31¢ $ 14,81¢
Debt securities
Taxable 2,32¢ 2,602
Tax-exempt 264 43
Dividends 22C 33¢
Federal funds sold and interest earning dep 7 6
Total interest incom 18,13¢ 17,80¢
Interest expense!
Interest on deposit 3,40¢ 4,432
Interest on sho-term borrowings 4 32
Interest on lon-term borrowings 1,39¢ 1,56:
Total interest expen 4,80¢ 6,02¢
Net interest incon 13,33! 11,771
Provision for loan losse 1,05( 87¢€
Net interest income after provision foah losse 12,28 10,90!
Noninterest income:
Service charges on deposit accot 1,37¢ 1,49¢
Earnings and gains on bank owned life insurz 434 22¢
Loan servicing fee 20€ 2332
Losses on impairment of investment securi - (693
Net gains on sales and redemptions of investmentisies 211 80¢
Net (losses) gains on sales of loans and foreclosadestat (45) 54
Debit card interchange fe 31€ 28C
Other charges, commissions & fe 522 49C
Total noninterest incon 3,02( 2,89(
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee bene 6,12¢€ 5,571
Building occupancy 1,281 1,24¢€
Data processin 1,372 1,307
Professional and other servic 831 844
FDIC assessmen 51E 745
Other expense 1,664 1,407
Total noninterest expens 11,78¢ 11,12¢
Income before income tax 3,51z 2,66¢
Provision for income taxe 1,007 1,05(
Net income 2,50¢ 1,61F
Preferred stock dividends and discount accre 462 96
Net income available to common shareholders $ 2,04: $ 1,51¢
Earnings per common share- basic $ 0.82 $ 0.61
Earnings per common share- diluted b 0.82 b 0.61
Dividends per common share $ 0.12 $ 0.12

The accompanying notes are an integral part oftimsolidated financial statemer
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CON SOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQ UITY

Preferrer Commor
Stock

(In thousands, except share da Stock

Accumulater

Additional
Paid ir Retaine:
Capita Earning:

Other Con-
prehensiv Treasur

Loss Stock  Total

Balance, January 1, 201(
Comprehensive incom

$ 61018

30$% 8,61t $2241¢ $

(1,425 $ (6,507) $29,23¢

Net income 2,50¢ 2,50¢
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of
Unrealized holding losses on securit
available for sale (net of $56 tax bene (85) (85)
Unrealized holding loss on financi
derivative (net of $44 tax benef (66) (66)
Retirement plan net losses and transi
obligation recognized in plan expen:
(net of $242 tax benefit) (363) (369
Total comprehensive incor 1,991
Preferred stock discount accreti 124 (124) -
Preferred stock dividenc (339) (339)
Common stock dividends declared ($0.12 per st (29¢) (29€)

Balance, December 31, 2010 $ 6,22t $ 30$ 8,61F $24,16: $ (1,939 $ (6,502) $30,59:
Balance, January 1, 200¢ $ -$ 30$ 7,90¢ $21,19¢ $ (3,140 $ (6,502) $19,49¢
Comprehensive incom
Net income 1,61¢ 1,61F
Other comprehensive income, net of t
Unrealized holding gains on securit
available for sale (net of $371 tax exper 1,30z 1,302
Retirement plan net gains and transit
obligation recognized in plan expen:
(net of $275 tax expense) 413 413
Total comprehensive incor 3,33(
Preferred stock an
common stock warrants issu 6,06% 70€ 6,771
Preferred stock discount accreti 36 (36) -
Preferred stock dividenc (60) (60)
Common stock dividends declared ($0.12 per st (29¢) (29€)

Balance, December 31, 20C $ 6,101 $

30$ 861f $2241¢ $

(1,425) $ (6,507) $29,23¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part oféimsolidated financial statements.
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CON SOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended December

31,
(In thousands 201( 200¢
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income $ 250 $ 1,61f
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskiges by operating activitie!
Provision for loan losse 1,05(C 87€
Deferred income tax expen 2632 704
Proceeds from sales of loa 264 9,65¢
Originations of loans he-for-sale (25€) (9,540
Realized losses (gains) on sales
Real estate acquired through foreclos 53 65
Loans 8) 2
Premises and equipme 1 (119)
Available-for-sale investment securiti (211) (80%5)
Impairment writ-down on availab-for-sale securitie - 692
Depreciatior 644 657
Amortization of mortgage servicing rigk 28 32
Amortization of deferred loan cos 23C 24C
Earnings on bank owned life insurar (279) (225)
Realized gain on proceeds from bank owned liferarsce (155) -
Net amortization of premiums and discounts on ihwesit securitie 31¢ 254
(Increase) decrease in accrued interest recei (227) 19€
Net change in other assets and liabili 162 (3,209)
Net cash provided by operating activities 4,384 1,101
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of investment securities avail-for-sale (60,45%) (43,66¢)
Net (purchases of) proceeds from the redemptidfederal Home Loan Bank sto (235) 65C
Proceeds from maturities and principal reductiohnswestment securities availa-for-sale 37,431 22,151
Proceeds from sale ¢
Available-for-sale investment securiti 10,20¢ 22,43(
Real estate acquired through foreclos 21C 49¢
Premises and equipme 24 1
Proceeds from bank owned life insurai 474 -
Net increase in loar (24,007 (13,48¢)
Purchase of premises and equipn (2,928 (383)
Net cash used in investing activities (39,27¢) (11,807
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Net increase in demand deposits, NOW accountspgs\dccounts
money management deposit accounts, MMDA accourtgacrow deposit 36,75 18,12¢
Net (decrease) increase in time depc (7,090 9,272
Net proceeds from (repayments on) s-term borrowings 13,00( (17,57%
Payments on lor-term borrowings (12,000 (5,400
Proceeds from lor-term borrowings 4,00( 7,00(
Proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock amiron stock warran: - 6,771
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehol (339) (60)
Cash dividends paid to common shareholi (298) (478)
Net cash provided by financing activities 34,02¢ 17,65¢
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivale (869) 6,952
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Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of p¢ 14,63 7,67¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of peric $ 13,767 $ 14,63
CASH PAID DURING THE PERIOD FOR:

Interest $ 484 $ 6,051

Income taxe: 402 524
NON-CASH INVESTING ACTIVITY

Transfer of loans to foreclosed real es 46C 38t

The accompanying notes are an integral part ofdimsolidated financial statemer
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Operations

The accompanying consolidated financial statememside the accounts of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inte (tCompany”) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Riailer Bank (the “Bank”).The Bank has thrt
wholly owned operating subsidiaries, Pathfinder @wrcial Bank, Whispering Oaks Development Corp. &adhfinder REIT, Inc. All intecompany accounts and activity have been eliminat
consolidation. The Company has seven offices émtat Oswego County and a new branch, which opésreldusiness on February 1, 2011 in northern OagadCounty. The Company is primarily enge
in the business of attracting deposits from theegainpublic in the Company’s market area, and itimgssuch deposits, together with other sourceinds, in loans secured by oneftanr family residentic
real estate, commercial real estate, businesssasetin investment securities.

Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.C., (the “Holding Company’)mutual holding company whose activity is not irtdd in the accompanying financial statements, oapoximately 63.7% of the outstanc
common stock of the Company. Salaries and emplbgeefits approximating $113,000 were allocatedhftbe Company to the Holding Company during 2089. personnel expense was allocated tc
Holding Company in 2010. The Holding Company relear $24,000 as rental income from the Bank in 20d $15,000 for 2009. As of December 31, 2010Bidwek had a loan receivable from the Holc
Company of $1,217,000.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial $tements

The preparation of financial statements in conftymuith accounting principles generally acceptedhie United States of America requires managenemtake estimates and assumptions that affe:
reported amounts of assets and liabilities andaBsce of contingent assets and liabilities atdhee of the financial statements and the reponteduats of revenues and expenses during the repgrériod
Actual results could differ from those estimatésanagement has identified the allowance for loasssés, deferred income taxes, pension obligatidres evaluation of goodwill for impairment and
evaluation of investment securities for other themporary impairment to be the accounting areaisrétuire the most subjective and complex judgmeans as such, could be the most subject to revis
new information becomes available.

The Company is subject to the regulations of varigovernmental agencies. The Company also undegédic examinations by the regulatory agenwaieish may subject it to further changes with res
to asset valuations, amounts of required loss alfmes, and operating restrictions resulting froenrigulators' judgments based on information abkeleo them at the time of their examinations.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company' activities are with customers located primanilyOswego and parts of Onondaga counties of New %take. Note 3 discusses the types of securhiastie Company invests in. N
4 discusses the types of lending that the Compaggges in. The Company does not have any signifmancentrations to any one industry or customer.

Advertising

The Company follows the policy of charging the sost advertising to expense as incurred. Adveisiosts included in other operating expenses %268,000 and $353,000 for the years ended Dece
31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The advertiskgerse in 2009 was higher as a result of marketifayts associated with the Bank’s celebration®® Years of operation.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on handjramdue from banks and interest-bearing deposith riginal maturity of three months or less).
Investment Securities

The Company classifies investment securities adadble-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities aeported at fair value, with net unrealized gaind losses reflected as a separate component rehshders’
equity, net of the applicable income tax effectnd@f the Company’s investment securities have btsssified as trading or held-to-maturity.

Gains or losses on investment security transactoadased on the amortized cost of the specifisrg@s sold. Premiums and discounts on secarétte amortized and accreted into income usingnteees
method over the period to maturity.

Note 3 to the consolidated financial statementhiges additional information about the Company’'scamting policies with respect to the impairmenimfestment securities.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal law requires a member institution of théefal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") system to hold staifkits district FHLB according to a predeterminednfiula. The stock is carried at cost.
Mortgage Loans Held-for-Sale

Mortgage loans held-for-sale are carried at theeloef cost or fair value. Fair value is determimedhe aggregate. There were no loans helds&be-or forward commitments outstanding as of Déxen31
2010 and 2009.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets, including salesoains and loan participations, are accounted fasadss when control over the assets has been serszhdControl over transferred assets is deemds
surrendered when (1) the assets have been isdlatadthe Company, (2) the transferee obtains thbtr{free of conditions that constrain it from tafiadvantage of that right) to pledge or exchaig
transferred assets, and (3) the Company does rintaimaeffective control over the transferred assbtough an agreement to repurchase them befeirentlaturity.

Loans

The Company grants mortgage, commercial and consloaaes to customers. Loans that management leamtiént and ability to hold for the foreseeabliifa or until maturity or papff are stated at the
outstanding unpaid principal balances, less thenalhce for loan losses and plus net deferred lognation costs. The ability of the Compasydebtors to honor their contracts is dependenn upe ree
estate and general economic conditions in the rhatea. Interest income is generally recognize@rwimcome is earned using the interest method. édondable loan fees received and related ¢
origination costs incurred are deferred and amexditiaver the life of the loan using the interesthodt resulting in a constant effective yield ovee toan term. Deferred fees are recognized intonrean
deferred costs are charged to income immediatedy wepayment of the related loan.

The loans receivable portfolio is segmented inwidential mortgage, commercial and consumer lodie residential mortgage segment consists of osfettr family firstlien residential mortgages &

construction loans. Commercial loans consist efftllowing classes: real estate, other commeauial industrial, lines of credit and municipal loat@onsumer loans include both home equity linesrefli
and loans with junior liens and other consumer $oan
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Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses represents managésnestimate of losses inherent in the loan portfaficof the date of the statement of condition arisl iecorded as a reduction of loans. The allaeat
increased by the provision for loan losses, andedsed by chargeffs, net of recoveries. Loans deemed to be uectiile are charged against the allowance for loases, and subsequent recoveries, if
are credited to the allowance. All, or part, of frincipal balance of loans receivable are chanfetb the allowance as soon as it is determiriead the repayment of all, or part, of the principalance i
highly unlikely. Nontesidential consumer loans are generally chargedoofater than 120 days past due on a contratiasik, unless productive collection efforts arevjgliog results. Consumer loans n
be charged off earlier in the event of bankruptcyjfdhere is an amount that is deemed uncollectilBecause all identified losses are immediatelyrgba off, no portion of the allowance for loan less:
restricted to any individual loan and the entilewaance is available to absorb any and all loasdes

The allowance for loan losses is maintained atvalleonsidered adequate to provide for losses ¢hatbe reasonably anticipated. Management perfarrgearterly evaluation of the adequacy of
allowance. The allowance is based on the Comparggsloan loss experience, known and inherens iiskhe portfolio, adverse situations that mageifthe borrowes ability to repay, the estimated valus
any underlying collateral, composition of the lopartfolio, current economic conditions and othelevant factors. This evaluation is inherently swive, as it requires material estimates that ine
susceptible to significant revision as more infotiorabecomes available.

The allowance consists of specific, general andlecegted components. The specific component relatdoans that are classified as impaired. Fandathat are classified impaired, an allowancetstdishe
when the discounted cash flows or collateral valihe impaired loan are lower than the carryinyeaf that loan.

The general component covers pools of loans, by tbass, including commercial loans not considénegkired, as well as smaller balance homogenouss|aaich as residential real estate, home equd
other consumer loans. These pools of loans areiaea for loss exposure based on historical lagssrfor each of these categories of loans, whieladjusted for qualitative factors. The quahtatfactor:
include:

. Lending policies and procedures, including undeiagistandards and collection, che-off and recovery practice

. National, regional and local economic and busimesslitions as well as the condition of various neadegments, including the value of underlyingatelial for collateral dependent loz

. Nature and volume of the portfolio and terms of lttens

. Experience, ability and depth of the lending mamnagyet and stai

. Volume and severity of past due, classified anc-accrual loans, as well as other loan modificati

. Quality of the Compar’s loan review system and the degree of oversighivéy¥ompan’'s Board of Director.
Each factor is assigned a value to reflect imprgystable or declining conditions based on managéseéest judgment using relevant information avadadt the time of the evaluation. Adjustments &
factors are supported through documentation of gbsin conditions in a narrative accompanying thewance for loan loss analysis and calculation.

Each portfolio class carries its own risk chardstms. Real estate loans, including residentiattgages, commercial real estate loans and homigyequmprise approximately 85% of the portfolio bott
2010 and 2009. Loans secured by real estate mah@lbest collateral protection and thus signifilyareduce the inherent risk in the portfolio.
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An unallocated component is maintained to covereuainties that could affect managemsrg'stimate of probable losses. The unallocatedpooent of the allowance reflects the margin of iegsior
inherent in the underlying assumptions used imtie¢éhodologies for estimating specific and generssés in the portfolio.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on ctiinrformation and events, it is probable that ttem®any will be unable to collect the scheduled pawyts of principal or interest when due accordintht
contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factomsidered by management in determining impairmeeitide payment status, collateral value and thealitity of collecting scheduled principal and irgs
payments when due. Loans that experience insagmifi payment delays and payment shortfalls geyeea# not classified as impaired. Management detess the significance of payment delays
shortfalls on a case-by case basis, taking intsidenation all of the circumstances surroundingltla® and the borrower, including the length arasom for the delay, the borrowsiprior payment record a
the amount of shortfall in relation to what is owddpairment is measured on a loanlbgn basis for commercial real estate loans andratbmmercial or industrial loans by either thespre value of tF
expected future cash flows discounted at the loefiéstive interest rate or the fair value of tmalerlying collateral if the loan is collateral depent.

An allowance for loan loss is established for apaimed loan if its carrying value exceeds its eated fair value. The estimated fair values of sadt&lly all of the Companyg'impaired loans are measu
based on the estimated fair value of the loan’atmial. For commercial loans secured by realtesestimated fair values are determined primdhitpugh thirdparty appraisals. When a real estate se:
loan becomes impaired, a decision is made regasditegher an updated certified appraisal of the estdte is necessary. This decision is based wougaconsiderations, including the age of the mesén
appraisal, the loan-tealue ratio based on the original appraisal, aedctindition of the property. Appraised valuesdiseounted to arrive at the estimated selling poicthe collateral, which is considerec
be the estimated fair value. The discounts alsluée estimated costs to sell the property.

For commercial and industrial loans secured by me@h-estate collateral, such as accounts receivimvientory and equipment, estimated fair valuesdatermined based on the borrowdimancial statemen
inventory reports, account receivable agings olipggant appraisals or invoices. Indications of eaftom these sources are generally discounted b@sée age of the financial information or the lgyaf
the assets.

Large groups of homogeneous loans are collectigegluated for impairment. Accordingly, the Compaloes not separately identify individual residentieortgage loans, home equity and other cons
loans for impairment disclosures, unless such Ibave significant balances or they are the sulbbgeattroubled debt restructuring agreement.

Loans whose terms are modified are classified esbted debt restructurings if the Company grantshshorrowers concessions and it is deemed thatetfmsrowers are experiencing finan
difficulty. Concessions granted under a troubledtdestructuring generally involve a temporaryuetin in the interest rate or an extension ofanle stated maturity date. Loans classified as texidiek
restructurings are designated as impaired and atealwas discussed above.

The allowance calculation methodology includesHertsegregation of loan classes into risk ratinggaries. The borrowes’overall financial condition, repayment sourcesargntors and value of 1
collateral, if appropriate, are evaluated annutdlycommercial loans or when credit deficiencieseon all loans. Credit quality risk ratings indé regulatory classifications of special mentgubhstandan
doubtful and loss. Loans classified as specialtimerave potential weaknesses that deserve mareadisnslose attention. If uncorrected, the potentiehkinesses may result in deterioration of the repay
prospects. Loans classified as substandard haedlalefined weakness or weaknesses that jeopardizéthiéation of debt. They include loans that anedequately protected by the current net wortt
paying capacity of the borrower or of the collatgrbedged. Loans classified as doubtful have ladl tveaknesses inherent in loans classified substdnaslith the added characteristic that collectio
liquidation in full, on the basis of current corndits and facts, is highly improbable. Loans chiedias loss are considered uncollectible and heeged to the allowance for loan losses. Loansateno
classified are rated pass.
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In addition, Federal regulatory agencies, as aggiail part of their examination process, periodjcadview the Companyg allowance for loan losses and may require the f@2omto recognize additions to
allowance based on their judgments about informadieailable to them at the time of their examinmatiwhich may not be currently available to managem®ased on managementomprehensive analy
of the loan portfolio, management believes theantrfevel of the allowance for loan losses is adégu

Income Recognition on Impaired and Non-accrual Loaa

For all classes of loans receivable, the accruahtefest is discontinued when the contractual pEymnof principal or interest has become 90 days$ gas or management has serious doubts about f
collectibility of principal or interest, even thoughe loan may be currently performing. A loan mesain on accrual status if it is in the procefssadlection and is either guaranteed or well sedurwhen
loan is placed on non-accrual status, unpaid istésereversed and charged to interest incomerdat received on naaecrual loans, including impaired loans, genergllgither applied against principal
reported as interest income, according to managémprdgment as to the collectibility of principaGenerally, loans are restored to accrual statusmvihe obligation is brought current, has perfornme
accordance with the contractual terms for a reaslergeriod of time and the ultimate collectibiliy the total contractual principal and interest@slonger in doubt. Noaecrual troubled debt restructurings
restored to accrual status if principal and intepayments, under the modified terms, are curmnsik consecutive months after modification.

When future collectibility of the recorded loan &ate is expected, interest income may be recognizedcash basis. In the case where aawmnual loan had been partially charged off, re¢agnof interes
on a cash basis is limited to that which would hbgen recognized on the recorded loan balanceeatathtractual interest rate. Cash interest rec@ipéxcess of that amount are recorded as receverithe
allowance for loan losses until prior charge-ofésé been fully recovered.

Off-Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instrumats

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyehasred into commitments to extend credit, inalgdcommitments under standby letters of creditchSiinancial instruments are recorded when the
funded.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, lesmatated depreciation. Depreciation is computed straightline basis over the estimated useful lives of #lated assets, ranging up to 40 years for prei
and 10 years for equipment. Maintenance and repeérsharged to operating expenses as incurred.a3$et cost and accumulated depreciation are sshfoym the accounts for assets sold or retiredasny
resulting gain or loss is included in the deterrtioraof income.

Foreclosed Real Estate

Properties acquired through foreclosure, or by dediéu of foreclosure, are recorded at their faitue less estimated disposal costs. Fair valdetisrmined based on a current appraisal and itispedCost
incurred in connection with preparing the forectbseal estate for disposition are capitalized ® ¢xtent that they enhance the overall fair valughe property. Write downs of, and expenses relate

foreclosed real estate holdings are included iemtioninterest expense and were $219,000 and $®()@D10 and 2009, respectively. The increagbénexpenses related to foreclosed property i€ hadue
to one commercial property.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquisiiver the fair value of the net assets acquif@dodwill is not amortized, but is evaluated anfyudlr impairment.
Mortgage Servicing Rights

Originated mortgage servicing rights are recordettheir fair value at the time of transfer and aneortized in proportion to and over the period stfreated net servicing income or loss. The cagyialue o
the originated mortgage servicing rights is pegady evaluated for impairment.

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation costs related to share-based paynaestttions are recognized based on the granfalatealue of the stockased compensation issued. Compensation costecrgnized over the period t
an employee provides service in exchange for trerdwNo options were granted during 2010 or 2@@@, all outstanding options were fully vested omudety 1, 2006 and, accordingly, there was no impe
the Company’s results of operations for the perjudsented.

Retirement Benefits

The Company has established tax qualified retirérpims covering substantially all full-time empéms and certain patitne employees. Pension expense under these igl@hsirged to current operatic
and consists of several components of net pensisnbased on various actuarial assumptions regafdtaore experience under the plans.

Gains and losses, prior service costs and creditsany remaining transition amounts that haveyabbeen recognized through net periodic benefit ace recognized in accumulated other compreherss
net of tax effects, until they are amortized asmponent of net periodic cost. Plan assets aridatlins are measured as of the Company’s stateofienindition date.

In addition, the Company has unfunded deferred @sation and supplemental executive retiremensglanselected current and former employees aridenff that provide benefits that cannot be paithfe
qualified retirement plan due to Internal Revenwel€restrictions. These plans are nonqualified utite Internal Revenue Code, and assets used dobfemmefit payments are not segregated from otheat:
of the Company, therefore, in general, a partidigasr beneficiary's claim to benefits under thelses is as a general creditor.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivatives are recorded on the statement of cimmdids assets and liabilities measured at theirviaiue. The accounting for increases and decreiast® value of derivatives depends upon the d
derivatives and whether the derivatives qualifyfedge accounting. The Company currently has iteeest rate swap, which has been determined #odash flow hedge. The fair value of cdlslv hedgin¢
instruments (“Cash Flow Hedge§ recorded in either other assets or other litgdsli On an ongoing basis, the statement of camdisi adjusted to reflect the then current faiueadf the Cash Flow Hedge. 1
related gains or losses are reported in other cehemsive income and are subsequently reclassiftedeiarnings, as a yield adjustment in the samimgén which the related interest on the hedgeth
(primarily a variable-rate debt obligation) affeetrnings. To the extent that the Cash Flow Hedgetigffective, the ineffective portion of the Cddbw Hedge is immediately recognized as interepease.
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Income Taxes

Provisions for income taxes are based on taxeewmilyrpayable or refundable and deferred incomegan temporary differences between the tax bésissets and liabilities and their reported amoimthe
consolidated financial statements. Deferred taetasand liabilities are reported in the consoliddteancial statements at currently enacted inctemerates applicable to the period in which theedefd ta
assets and liabilities are expected to be reabzeskttled.

Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per common share are computed ligirivnet income, after preferred stock dividendd areferred stock discount accretion, by the weiglaverage number of common shares outsta
throughout each year. Diluted earnings per shiamsgffect to weighted average shares that woeldutstanding assuming the exercise of issued stotiins using the treasury stock method.

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income

Accounting principles generally accepted in thetehiStates of America require that recognized reggaxpenses, gains and losses be included imemnie. Although certain changes in assets anilitied,
such as unrealized gains and losses on availableafe securities, the effective portion of cdlshiv hedges, and unrecognized gains and losses, ggivice costs and transition assets or obligatfor define

benefit pension and post-retirement plans are tefgas a separate component of the shareholelguity section of the consolidated statements oflitmn, such items, along with net income, are ponent
of comprehensive income.

The components of other comprehensive (loss) incamaethe related tax effect for the years endeceBéeer 31, are as follows:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Unrealized holding (losses) gains on securitiesl@vie for sale
Unrealized holding gains (losses) arising durirg pleriod $ 70 $ 1,78¢
Reclassification adjustment for net gains includgredet income (211) (112)
Net unrealized gains on securities available fte (141) 1,67%
Unrealized holding losses on financial derivati
Unrealized holding losses arising during the pe (170) -
Reclassification adjustment for interest expenstiged in net incom 60
Net unrealized losses on financial derivai (110) -
Defined benefit pension and post retirement pl
Additional plan (losses) gair (829) 40¢
Reclassification adjustment for amortization of &frplans' net los
and transition obligation recognized in net perogkpense 21¢ 27¢
Net change in defined benefit pl (605) 68¢
Other comprehensive income before (85€) 2,361
Tax effect 34z (64€)
Other comprehensive (loss) incol $ (519 $ 1,71f
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The components of accumulated other comprehenssge het of related tax effects, at December laaifollows:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Unrealized gains on securities available for saét ¢f tax

expense 201- $110; 200¢- $166) $ 164 $ 24¢
Unrealized losses on financial derivative (neteof

benefit 201(- $44) (66) -
Net pension losses and past service liability (fi¢ax

benefit 201(- $1,334; 200¢- $1,100) (2,001) (1,649
Net pos-retirement losses and past service liability (rff¢tn

benefit 201C- $25; 200¢- $17) (36) (25

$ (1,939 $ (1,425

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2009 consolidated finarstetements have been reclassified to conform teuhent year presentation. These reclassificatitat no effect on net income as previously regorte

NOTE 2: NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

The FASB has issued ASU 2010-@&ir Value Measurements and Disclosures (Topic 8RAproving Disclosures about Fair Value Measuretsefhis ASU requires some new disclosures and clargam
existing disclosure requirements about fair valleasurement as set forth in Codification Subtopi@-82. The FASBS objective is to improve these disclosures angs,tincrease the transparency in finar
reporting. Specifically, ASU 2010-06 amends Codifien Subtopic 820-10 to now require:

- A reporting entity to disclose separately the ants i significant transfers in and out of Levelridd_evel 2 fair value measurements and describecthsons for the transfers; e

. In the reconciliation for fair value measuremergig significant unobservable inputs, a reportintitg should present separately information abautpases, sales, issuances, and settlenr
In addition, ASU 2010-06 clarifies the requiremenitshe following existing disclosures:

. For purposes of reporting fair value measuremenééeh class of assets and liabilities, a repoeimtiy needs to use judgment in determining therggriate classes of assets and liabilities;

. A reporting entity should provide disclosures ahtbigt valuation techniques and inputs used to medaurvalue for both recurring and nonrecurrinig f@lue measurement
ASU 201006 was effective for interim and annual reportirgipds beginning after December 15, 2009, excephidisclosures about purchases, sales, issyarasettlements in the roll forward of acti
in Level 3 fair value measurements. Those disckssare effective for fiscal years beginning aftec@€mber 15, 2010, and for interim periods withiosth fiscal years. This standard has been adoptedie
not have an impact on the Company.

ASU 2010-18Receivables (Topic 310): Effect of a Loan ModifimatWhen the Loan Is Part of a Pool That Is Accedrfor as a Single Assendifies the consensus reached in EITF Issue N, Bffect of
a Loan Modification When the Loan Is Part of a Pbbét Is Accounted for as a Single Assdtie amendments to the Codification provide that ifieations of loans that are accounted for withipaol unde
Subtopic 31030 do not result in the removal of those loans fithen pool even if the modification of those loanswd otherwise be considered a troubled debt retstring. An entity will continue to t
required to consider whether the pool of assetstiith the loan is included is impaired if expectagh flows for the pool change. ASU 201®-does not affect the accounting for loans unberstcope ¢
Subtopic 310-30 that are not accounted for withanlp. Loans accounted for individually under Spitd31030 continue to be subject to the troubled debtuesiring accounting provisions within Subtc
310-40. ASU 2010-18 was effective prospectivelyrfwdifications of loans accounted for within poalsder Subtopic 3180 occurring in the first interim or annual periedding on or after July 15, 20
Early application is permitted. Upon initial adaptiof ASU 2010-18, an entity may make a one-tineet@n to terminate accounting for loans as a podler Subtopic 31890. This election may be applied
a pool-bypool basis and does not preclude an entity frontyapp pool accounting to subsequent acquisition¥oahs with credit deterioration. The Company oger pools loans and holds one single :
that consists of a very small number of individieains. The adoption of this standard did not keavémpact on the Company.
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ASU 2010-20Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures about the €1@dality of Financing Receivables and the Allowarfor Credit Lossesyill help investors assess the credit risk of a pany’s receivables
portfolio and the adequacy of its allowance fordiréosses held against the portfolios by expandirgglit risk disclosures.

This ASU requires more information about the cregliality of financing receivables in the disclosute financial statements, such as aging informagiod credit quality indicators. Both new and &xg
disclosures must be disaggregated by portfolio ssgnor class. The disaggregation of informatiorbéased on how a company develops its allowancecifedit losses and how it manages its ¢
exposure. The amendments in this Update appéyl toublic and nonpublic entities with financingcedvables. Financing receivables include loanstaame accounts receivable. However, shemt trad
accounts receivable, receivables measured atdaie\or lower of cost or fair value, and debt siiams are exempt from these disclosure amendméftis. effective date of ASU 20120 differs for public an
nonpublic companies. For public companies, theraiments that require disclosures as of the endreparting period were effective for periods endargor after December 15, 2010. The amendment
require disclosures about activity that occurs iy reporting period are effective for periodsibeing on or after December 15, 2010. This upda&s been adopted and required the Company todg
additional disclosures related to loan receivahtes credit quality.

The FASB has issued ASU 2011-01, which amends ABWL0220, Receivables (Topic 310): Disclosures about the @r€uiality of Financing Receivables and the Allowarfor Credit LossesThe
amendments in this Update temporarily delay theotffe date of the disclosures about troubled destructurings in Update 2010-20 for public ensitiender the existing effective date in Update 2200
public-entity creditors would have provided disclosuresuiliroubled debt restructurings for periods endimgor after December 15, 2010. The delay is intent allow the Board time to complete
deliberations on what constitutes a troubled debtructuring. The effective date of the new disates about troubled debt restructurings for puétitities and the guidance for determining what titutss ¢

troubled debt restructuring will then be coordimat€urrently, that guidance is anticipated to Heative for interim and annual periods ending aftene 15, 2011. The deferral in this amendmeefféctive
upon issuance.
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NOTE 3: INVESTMENT SECURITIES — AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE

The amortized cost and estimated fair value ofshwent securities are summarized as follows:

December 31, 201

Gros: Gros: Estimate:
Amortizec Unrealize Unrealize( Fair
(In thousands Cos Gains Losse Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 20,137 $ 13¢ % (259 20,02:
State and political subdivisiol 19,227 174 (422) 18,97¢
Corporate 5,86t 22¢ (4993 5,60(
Residential mortga-backec- agency 35,71« 934 (239) 36,40¢
Residential mortga-backec- private labe 81€ 21 - 837
Total 81,75¢ 1,49¢ (1,407) 81,84¢
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,532 26 - 1,55¢
Large cap equity fun 1,12¢ 93 - 1,22
Other mutual fund 182 61 - 244
Common stocl- financial services industi 45( 5 - 45E
Total 3,29¢ 18t - 3,47¢
Total investment securitie $ 85,05! $ 1,681 $ (1,407 85,321
December 31, 200
Gros:t Gros: Estimate:
Amortizec Unrealize Unrealize( Fair
(In thousands Cos Gains Losse Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ 14,52¢  $ 3¢ $ (26) 14,53
State and political subdivisiol 8,98¢ 2C (81) 8,92¢
Corporate 5,33¢ 194 (562) 4,96¢
Residential mortga¢-backec- agency 34,83¢ 98¢ (144) 35,68:
Residential mortga-backec- private labe 1,28¢ - (29) 1,257
Total 64,97 1,23: (842) 65,36¢
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 2,51¢ - - 2,51¢
Large cap equity fun 2,08¢ - - 2,08¢
Other mutual fund 182 24 - 207
Common stocl- financial services industt 37z - - 37z
Total 5,162 24 - 5,18€
Other investment 2,202 - - 2,20
Total investment securitie $ 7233 $ 1,257 $ (842) 72,75¢
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of daltistments at December 31, 2010 by contractuslnipaare shown below. Expected maturities magedifrom contractual maturities because borrowers
may have the right to call or prepay obligationthvar without penalties.

Amortizec Estimate:
Cos Fair Value

(In thousands
Due in one year or le¢ $ 59¢ $ 611
Due after one year through five ye. 22,42¢ 22,56¢
Due after five years through ten ye 10,40« 10,33¢
Due after ten yeai 11,79¢ 11,092
Mortgagebacked securitie 36,53( 37,24¢
Totals $ 81,75¢ $ 81,84¢

The Company’s investment securitiggbss unrealized losses and fair value, aggredstéavestment category and length of time thatvithlial securities have been in a continuous urezedlloss position,
as follows:

December 31, 201

Less than Twelve

Months Twelve Months or Mor¢ Total

Unrealizet Fair  Unrealize( Fair  Unrealizet Fair
Losse Value Losse Value Losse Value

(In thousands
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ (259 $ 9,260 $ - 8 - 8 (2539 $ 9,26(
State and political subdivisiol (422) 10,17 - - (422) 10,17:
Corporate - - (499) 1,47: (493 1,47:
Residential mortga-backed- agency (239) 8,861 - - (239) 8,861

$ (914 $ 2829 $ (499 $ 147: $ (1,400 $_ 2976,

December 31, 200

Less than Twelve

Months Twelve Months or Mor¢ Total

Unrealize Fair  Unrealize( Fair  Unrealize( Fair
Losse Value Losse Value Losse Value

(In thousands
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ (26) $ 499 $ - 8 - 8 (26) $  4,99€¢
State and political subdivisiol (81) 2,98¢ - - (81) 2,98¢
Corporate - - (562) 1,40z (562) 1,40z
Residential mortga-backed- agency (144) 8,95/ - - (144) 8,95£
Residential mortga-backed- private labe (5) 711 (24) 54E (29) 1,25¢€

$ (2560 $ 1764 $ (5860 $ 1947 $ (842 $ 1950
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We conduct a formal review of investment securitiesa quarterly basis for the presence of othem-teanporary impairment (“OTTI")We assess whether OTTI is present when the fairevaf a debt secur
is less than its amortized cost basis at the stteof condition date. Under these circumstanc@g;|@ considered to have occurred (1) if we intémdell the security; (2) if it is “more likely #im not"we will
be required to sell the security before recoverjtobmortized cost basis; or (3) the present vafuexpected cash flows is not sufficient to reaoe entire amortized cost basis. The guidancaires) the
credit-related OTTI is recognized in earnings wiite-credit-related OTTI on securities not expedtetle sold is recognized in other comprehensigerite (*OCI”). Non-creditrelated OTTI is based on ot
factors, including illiquidity. Presentation of OT® made in the consolidated statement of income @ross basis, including both the portion recogphiin earnings as well as the portion recorde@@i
Normally, the gross OTTI would then be offset bg #tmount of non-credit-related OTTI, showing thé aethe impact on earnings. All OTTI charges hiaen creditelated to date, and therefore no o
has been presented on the consolidated statenféntome.

At December 31, 2010, eight U.S. government agemcy GSE bonds are in unrealized loss positionseélbf these holdings are callable agency bulletibassued by the Federal Home Loan Bank an
Federal National Mortgage Association. All three AAA rated by Moodys and S&P. One bond has been in an unrealizedlusition for three months with an unrealized lis8.9% of the current carryi
value. The second bond has been in an unrealizsdlosition for two months with an unrealized l062.6% of the current carrying value. The thirchddas been in an unrealized loss position formaett
and has an unrealized loss of 6.2%. The unreala=ss relate principally to changes in interessaubsequent to the acquisition of the specddfonisties. No OTTI is deemed present on thesergiesu O
the remaining five government agency and GSE bond®ntly in unrealized loss positions, only ore been in an unrealized loss position for mora tire month. The largest unrealized loss on these:
is 2.8% of the current carrying value. All five jitaens are AAA rated. No OTTI is deemed presentteese securities.

At December 31, 2010, 15 state and political subitim securities are in unrealized loss positidivgo of the securities represent taxable offerirsgsied by Ennis Texas Economic Development Corpla
city of Columbus, Ohio. The securities are AA+dakAA rated by S&P respectively. The Ennis Texasifion is insured with an underlying rating of A-The maximum unrealized loss for any of
thirteen remaining state and political holdingdeiss than 5% of the related book value and only @ivthese holdings have been in unrealized losg&ipos for more than two months. Municipal valweat
have been negatively impacted by a 680-basis point increase in the longer term portibthe municipal bond yield curve over the past@nths. The unrealized losses relate principallghtanges in intere
rates subsequent to the acquisition of the spesifiurities. No other than temporary impairmenteismed present on these securities.

At December 31, 2010, two corporate securities Vierngnrealized loss positions and represent trostepred issuances from large money center finditséitutions. The JP Morgan Chase floating tatet-
preferred security has a carrying value of $985,800 a fair value of $781,000. The Bank of Ameficating rate truspreferred security has a carrying value of $981,800 a fair value of $691,000. 1
securities are rated A2 and Baa3 by Moadyespectively. The securities are both floatatg notes that adjust quarterly to LIBOR. Thesristies are reflecting a net unrealized loss dueurrent simile
offerings being originated at higher spreads to@RB as the market currently demands a greatemgrigiemium for the associated risk. Managemenpka®rmed a detailed credit analysis on the undieg
companies and has concluded that neither issuedst impaired. Due to the fact that each security approximately 16 years until final maturitydananagement has determined that there is nedetaedi
impairment, the associated pricing risk is managjedlar to long-term, low yielding, 15 and 30-ydixed rate residential mortgages carried in the @any’s loan portfolio. The risk is managed througt
Companys extensive interest rate risk management proceddree Company expects the present value of expeetsh flows will be sufficient to recover the atized cost basis. Thus, the securities ar
deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired.

Eight government agency and government sponsortaipgise (GSE) residential mortgabaeked security holdings have an unrealized losefd3ecember 31, 2010. The securities were isdiethe

Government National Mortgage Association, Federafidhal Mortgage Association and Federal Home Lbtomtgage Corporation. The unrealized losses haenhbn place for three months or less.
securities are AAA rated. The unrealized losseates|principally to changes in interest rates sylpset to the acquisition of the specific securitNo OTTI is deemed present on these securities.
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In determining whether OTTI has occurred for equiggurities, the Company considers the applicadtofs described above and the length of time djuétyesecuritys fair value has been below the carn
amount. Management has determined that we havietérg and ability to retain the equity securitfes a sufficient period of time to allow for recaye The Company holds one equity security that &dalit
value less than the carrying value at December2810. A small common stock investment in The Pho€ompanies has an unrealized loss of less tHa@08. Due to the relatively small size of
unrealized loss and short duration of the lossogero OTTI is deemed present in relation to thisusity.

The following table presents a roll-forward of #a@ount related to credit losses recognized in agsifior the years ended December 31:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Beginning balanc- January 1 $ 87t $ 87t
Initial credit impairmen - 29¢
Subsequent credit impairmer - -
Reductions for amounts recognized in earnings duetént or requirement to st - (299)

Reductions for securities sc -
Reductions for increases in cash flows expectdutoollectec - -
Ending balanc- December 3: $ 87t $ 87t

Gross realized gains (losses) on sales, redemptiodsimpairment of securities for the year endedeédnber 31 are detailed below:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Realized gain $ 212 $ 814
Realized losse 1) 9)
Other than temporary impairme - (693)

$ 211 $ 112

As of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009risesuvith an amortized cost of $47.5 million a4b.7 million, respectively, were pledged to catalize certain deposit and borrowing arrangements.

Management has reviewed its mortgage-backed siesupbrtfolio and determined that, to the besttsfknowledge, little or no exposure exists to stbp or other highisk residential mortgages. T
Company is not in the practice of investing in thgges of loans.
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NOTE 4: LOANS

Major classifications of loans at December 31,aéollows:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Residential mortgage loar
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 143,66 $ 131,92¢
Constructior 3,56¢ 2,39¢
147,23( 134,32¢
Commercial loans
Real estatt 69,04% 62,22¢
Lines of credil 14,12: 12,821
Other commercial and industri 20,77¢ 18,96¢
Municipal loans 4,82¢ 3,654
108,76¢ 97,67¢
Consumer loans
Home equity and junior lier 25,16¢ 26,08¢
Other consume 3,411 3,58(
28,57¢ 29,66¢
Total loans 284,57¢ 261,67(
Net deferred loan cos 71¢ 795
Less allowance for loan loss (3,64¢) (3,07¢)
Loans receivable, ni $ 281,64¢ $ 259,38

The Company grants residential mortgage, commeacidlconsumer loans to customers throughout Osaedgarts of Onondaga counties. Although the Compas a diversified loan portfolio, a substar
portion of its debtors’ abilities to honor theirnteacts is dependent upon the counties’ employraedteconomic conditions.

Loan Origination / Risk Manageme

The Company has lending policies and procedurgdaice that are designed to maximize loan incomkiw#n acceptable level of risk. Management resiewd approves these policies and procedure:
regular basis. A reporting system supplements¢h@w process by frequently providing managemeitit veports related to loan production, loan gyaliban delinquencies, ngmerforming and potenti
problem loans. Diversification in the loan porifols a means of managing risk associated withtdiations in economic conditions.

The loan portfolio is segregated into risk ratimgegories based on the borrovgenverall financial condition, repayment sourcasrgntors, and value of collateral, if appropriafée risk ratings are evalua
at leastannually for commercial loans or when credit deficies arise, such as delinquent loan paymentsofomercial, residential mortgage or consumer lo&@redit quality risk ratings include regulat
classifications of special mention, substandardibtfol and loss. Loans classified as loss areidensd uncollectible and are charged to the allmedior loan loss. Loans not classified are ratesspSe
further discussion of risk ratings in Note 1.
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The following table presents the classes of the featfolio summarized by the aggregate pass ratimthe classified ratings of special mentionstafdard and doubtful within the Company's interiski
rating system as of December 31, 2010:

Specia
(In thousands Pas: Mentior Substandar  Doubtful Total
Residential mortgage loar
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $138,43: $ 1,72¢ $ 3,501 $ - $143,66:
Constructior 3,56¢ - - - 3,56¢
142,00: 1,72t 3,501 - 147,23(
Commercial loans
Real estats 63,83¢ 524 4,68¢ - 69,04:
Lines of credit 13,28( 28 814 - 14,12
Other commercial and industri 19,851 162 75¢ - 20,77¢
Municipal loans 4,82¢ - - - 4,82¢
101,79 71E 6,257 - 108,76¢
Consumer loans
Home equity and junior lier 23,55¢ 31€ 1,292 25,16¢
Other consume 3,271 3C 11C 3,411
26,83( 34€ 1,40° - 28,57¢
Total loans $27063: $ 2,78¢ $ 11,16 $ - $284,57¢

Management has reviewed its loan portfolio andrdetesd that, to the best of its knowledge, littten@ exposure exists to sub-prime or other high-residential mortgages. The Company is ndhépractic
of originating these types of loans.

Related Party Loan

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyghasted loans to certain directors, executivecef8 and their affiliates (collectively referredas “related parties”)These loans were made on substani
the same terms, including interest rates and eoifitas those prevailing at the time for comparatainsactions with other unaffiliated parties dnchot involve more than normal risk of collectityil

The following represents the activity associatethwéans to related parties during the year endeceber 31, 2010:

(In thousands

Balance at the beginning of the yt $ 5,882
Originations 957
Principal payment (833
Charger-off (196)

Balance at the end of the ye $ 5,81(
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The related loan chargeff is on a commercial loan made to an affiliateooe of the directors. Although the loan was seduwith receivables and inventory, the value ot ttwllateral is minimal ar
collection is questionable. The loan has beenggthoff due to the poor financial condition of twmpany that is the primary borrower, and the malioollateral value, but collection efforts continwith the
guarantors of the loan. The director and four pthesiness principals guarantee this loan, as aseinother $1.6 million noperforming loan in the relationship. Managemeriiebes that the appraised 1
value of the underlying collateral, discounted $elling costs, along with the associated guarargébsisiness principals and the existing allowameevided against these loans, are adequate to pmtentia
losses that may occur.

Nor-accrual and Past Due Loans
Loans are considered past due if the required jpahand interest payments have not been receivhitvthirty days of the payment due date.

An age analysis of past due loans, segregatedasg off loans, as of December 31, 2010, was asv®llo

3059 60-89 Total

Days Days Ovel Total Loans

(In thousands PastDu PastDu 90 Day: PastDu Curren Receivabl
Residential mortgage loar

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 2,04t $ 1,07¢ $ 1,335 $ 4,45¢ $139,20: $ 143,66:

Constructior - - - - 3,56¢ 3,56¢

2,04% 1,07¢ 1,33t 4,45¢ 142,77: 147,23(

Commercial loans -
Real estat 23¢ 90€ 3,68( 4,82¢ 64,21¢ 69,04:

Lines of credil 20& - 69 274 13,84¢ 14,12:
Other commercial and industri 734 301 47¢E 1,51( 19,26¢ 20,77¢
Municipal loans - - - - 4,82¢ 4,82¢

1,177 1,20¢ 4,22¢ 6,61(  102,15¢ 108,76¢

Consumer loans - -
Home equity and junior lier 58¢€ 371 30z 1,26( 23,90¢ 25,16¢
Other consume 15 7 62 84 3,321 3,411

601 37€ 36¢ 1,344 27,23t 28,57¢

Total loans $ 382 $ 2665 $ 592¢ $ 1241; $272,16¢ $ 284,57t
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Year-end non-accrual loans, segregated by clalemof were as follows:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Residential mortgage loar
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 1,33¢ 1,181
Constructior - -
1,33% 1,181
Commercial loans
Real estat 3,68( 892
Lines of credit 69 -
Other commercial and industri A7t 12¢
Municipal loans - -
4,22¢ 1,021
Consumer loans
Home equity and junior lier 302 111
Other consume 62 -
365 111
Total nor-accrual loan: 5,92¢ 2,31:

There were no loans past due ninety days or matestiihaccruing interest at December 31, 2010G02
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Impaired Loans
The following table summarizes impaired loans infation by portfolio class as of December 31, 2010:
Unpaic Average Interes

Recorde  Principa Relatec  Recorde Income
Investmen Balance Allowance Investmer Recognize

With no related allowance recorded:

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage $ 188 ¢ 18t $ - $ 441 $ 14
Residential mortgage constructi - - - - -
Commercial real esta 1,91¢ 1,91¢ - 2,28¢ 91
Commercial lines of cred - - - - -
Other commercial and industri 96 96 - 73 13
Municipal - - - - -
Home equity and junior lier 411 411 - 11¢ 16

Other consume - o - - -
With an allowance recorded:

1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 1,21t 1,21¢ 25E 682 61
Residential mortgage constructi - - - - -
Commercial real esta 2,23: 2,322 352 1,262 18
Commercial lines of cred 30C 30C 30C 27¢ 10
Other commercial and industri 34€ 34€ 78 22t 4
Municipal - - - - -
Home equity and junior lier 252 252 11C 59 8
Other consume - - - - -
Total:
1-4 family first-lien residential mortgage 1,40( 1,40( 25¢ 1,122 75
Residential mortgage constructi - - - - -
Commercial real esta 4,152 4,241 352 3,55( 10¢
Commercial lines of cred 30C 30C 30C 27¢ 10
Other commercial and industri 442 442 78 29¢€ 17
Municipal - - - - -
Home equity and junior lier 6632 6632 11C 17¢ 24

Other consume - - -
$ 6957 $ 7046 $ 109 $ 5424 $ 23t

As of December 31, 2009, the total recorded investnn impaired loans was $3.2 million, of which88900 had a related allowance for loan losse8f@R0 and $2.3 million had no related allowanai
loan losses. The average recorded investmentpained loans for the year ended December 31, 2@GE9$2.9 million. Total interest recognized on imge loans was $159,000 for the year ended Dece
31, 2009.
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There was no interest recognized using the casis-beethod of accounting for the years ended DeceBbe2010 or 2009.

NOTE 5: ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan losses for tlee gaded December 31, 2010 are summarized as ®llow

1-4 family
first-lien Residentie Othel
residentic mortgagt Commercie Commercie commercie
lines o anc
mortgag:  constructiol real estat credit industria

Allowance for credit losses

Beginning Balanc: $ 76 $ - $ 1,00¢ $ 37¢ % 48€
Charg-offs (48) - (162) (19€) 27)
Recoverie! 19 - 55| -
Provisions 1€ - 302 39¢ 42

Ending balanc $ 75C % - $ 1,20¢ $ 57¢ $ 501

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairmel $ 258 $ - $ 35z $ 30C $ 78

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairmel $ 498 $ - $ 85z $ 27¢ % 423

Loans receivables:

Ending balanci $ 14366: $ 356¢ $  69,04: $  1412; $ 20,77¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairmel $ 1400 $ - $ 4,15. $ 30C $ 447

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairmel $ 142,26 $ 356 $ 6489( $ 13,82: $ 20,33
Home
equity Othel
and junio
Municipal liens Consume  Unallocates Total

Allowance for credit losses:

Beginning Balanci $ 2 3 39C % 7€ $ (24 $  3,07¢
Charg-offs - (76) (812) - (590
Recoverie: - 5 31 - 11C
Provisions 1 10E 63 122 1,05(

Ending balanci $ 3 3 424 $ 8¢ $ 98 $ 3,64¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairmer $ - $ 11¢C  $ -3 - $ 1,09¢
Ending balance: collective
evaluated for impairmel $ 3 $ 314 % 8¢ $ 98 $ 2,55:¢

Loans receivables:

Ending balanc $ 482¢ $ 25166 $ 3,411 $ 284,57¢

Ending balance: individuall

evaluated for impairmel $ - 3 662 $ - $ 6,95

Ending balance: collective

evaluated for impairmel $ 482¢ $ 24508 3 3,411 $ 277,62
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Changes in the allowance for loan losses for thee gaded December 31, 2009 are summarized as fllow

NOTE 6: SERVICING

Loans serviced for others are not included in tbeompanying consolidated statements of conditibime unpaid principal balances of mortgage and olihems serviced for others were $37,746,000
$46,225,000 at December 31, 2010 and 2009, resphctiThe balance of capitalized servicing rigitluded in other assets at December 31, 2010 868, 2vas $35,000 and $61,000, respectively.

(In thousands 200¢
Balance at beginning of ye $ 2,472
Recoveries credite(

Commercia -

Mortgage 3

Consume| 20
Total recoverie: 23
Loans charge-off:

Commercia (74)

Mortgage (85)

Consume| (134)
Total charge-off (293)
Net charg-offs (270)
Provision for loan losse 87€
Balance at end of ye. $ 3,07¢

The following summarizes mortgage-servicing rigtapitalized and amortized:

NOTE 7: PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

A summary of premises and equipment at Decembes 3, follows:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Mortgage servicing rights capitaliz: $ 2 $ 78
Mortgage servicing rights amortiz $ 28 $ 32
(In thousands 201( 200¢
Land $ 1,22¢ $ 1,22¢
Buildings 7,181 7,10C
Furniture, fixtures and equipme 7,531 7,34%
Construction in progres 2,761 15E
18,69¢ 15,82!

Less: Accumulated depreciati 9,267 8,65(
$ 9432 $ 7,17
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The increase in premises and equipment is thetrestile construction of the new branch locatiorCinero, New York and the remodeling of the maiartwh lobby in Oswego, New York.

NOTE 8: GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess cost of an acquuis@iver the fair value of the net assets acquiBathdwill is not amortized, but is evaluated annuédr impairment. Management performs an annualatidr
of the Company’s goodwill to determine whether ot any impairment of the carrying value may exigtis valuation utilizes a threstep approach to determine three potential faivesl which are the
weighted based upon their level in the fair valiexdrchy to determine the fair value of the repaytunit for the impairment calculation. For purppsé this valuation, management considers the Caspac
its subsidiaries as a whole to be the reporting Baised on the results of this testing, manageim@mntietermined that the carrying value of goodwitiot impaired as of December 31, 2010 and 2009.
NOTE 9: DEPOSITS

A summary of deposits at December 31, is as follows

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Savings account $ 55,96¢ $ 52,66
Time account: 85,24(  87,80¢
Time accounts over $100,0 57,39t  53,42:
Money management accoul 12,59 11,327
MMDA accounts 54,79¢  35,78¢
Demand deposit intere-bearing 26,44¢ 25,36
Demand deposit noninter-bearing 30,71¢ 27,30(
Mortgage escrow func 3,34¢ 3,16¢

$326,50: $296,83¢

At December 31, 2010, the scheduled maturitiegnd tleposits are as follows:

(In thousands
Year of Maturity:

2011 $ 83,14
2012 13,32t
2013 14,71:
2014 26,19:
2015 1,841
Thereattel 3,421

$142,63!
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NOTE 10: BORROWED FUNDS

The composition of borrowings (excluding junior sutlinated debentures) at December 31, is as follows

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Shor-term:

FHLB Advances $13,000 $ -
Long-term:

FHLB advance: $23,00C $31,00(

Citigroup Repurchase agreeme 5,000 5,00(

Total lon¢-term borrowings $28,000 $36,00(

The principal balances, interest rates and magsritf the above fixed rate borrowings at Decemltie810 is as follows:

Term Principa Rate:
(Dollars in thousands
Shor-term advances with FHL $ 13,00( 0.36%-0.6E%
Long-term:
Repurchase agreements (due in 2( $ 5,00( 2.95%
Advances with FHLE
due within 1 yea 6,00( 2.33%4.1%
due within 2 year 4,00( 2.70%-4.91%
due within 3 year 4,00( 4.46%4.52%
due within 4 year 5,00( 2.85%-3.07%
due within 5 year 2,00( 2.7%
due within 7 year 2,00( 2.56%
Total advances with FHLI 23,00(
Toal lon¢-term borrowings $ 28,00(

The repurchase agreement with Citi Group is calldied by certain investment securities havingaying value of $6,569,000 at December 31, 200e collateral is under the Compasycontrol. Th
Company also has access to Federal Home Loan Bhmees, under which it can borrow at various teams interest rates. Residential mortgage loatts avcarrying value of $71,080,000 and FHLB s
with a carrying value of $2,134,000 have been péeldgy the Company under a blanket collateral agee¢o secure the Compasyborrowings. The total outstanding indebtednesteuborrowing facilitie
with the FHLB cannot exceed the total value ofdlsets pledged under the blanket collateral agneeniénie Company has a $6.1 million line of crediailable at December 31, 2010 with the FederabRe
Bank of New York through its Discount Window andshgledged various corporate and municipal secariéigainst the line. The Company has an $11.0 miliiee of credit available with three otl

correspondent banks. $4.0 million of that line oédit is available on an unsecured basis and tmaireng $7.0 million must be collateralized with nketable investment securities. Interest on theslin
determined at the time of borrowing.
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The Company has a non-consolidated subsidiary, tRahfinder Statutory Trust Il, of which the Compaowns 100% of the common equity. The Trust ids$® 000,000 of 30 year floating rate Company-
obligated pooled capital securities of Pathfindet®ory Trust Il. The Company borrowed the pratseef the capital securities from its subsidiaryisgsuing floating rate junior subordinated defeteahteres
debentures having substantially similar terms. Tpital securities mature in 2037 and are treatedier 1 capital by the Federal Deposit Insura@ogporation and the Office of Thrift Supervisiofihe

capital securities of the trust are a pooled tprsferred fund of Preferred Term Securities VI, .L&hd are tied to the 3-month LIBOR plus 1.65% 4%9at December 31, 2010) with a fiyear cal
provision. The Company guarantees all of thesergess.

The Company's equity interest in the trust subsyda $155,000 is reported in "Other assets". fegulatory reporting purposes, the Federal ResBoard has indicated that the preferred securitigi
continue to qualify as Tier 1 Capital subject teypously specified limitations, until further nogiclf regulators make a determination that Trusfétred Securities can no longer be consideredgdulaton
capital, the securities become callable and the f2ow may redeem them.

NOTE 11: EMPLOYEE BENEFITS AND DEFERRED COMPENSATI ON AND SUPPLEMENTAL RETIREMENT PLANS

The Company has a noncontributory defined benefitsfpn plan covering substantially all employedse Plan provides defined benefits based on yeasewfice and final average salary. In addition
Company provides certain health and life insurapeeefits for a limited number of eligible retirethployees. The healthcare plan is contributory weitinticipants’contributions adjusted annually; the
insurance plan is noncontributory. Employees \Wétis than 14 years of service as of January 1,, 28850t eligible for the health and life insurametirement benefits.

The following tables set forth the changes in theg' benefit obligations, fair value of plan assand the plans’ funded status as of December 31:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi

(In thousands 201( 200¢ 201( 200¢
Change in benefit obligation

Benefit obligations at beginning of ye $ 609 $ 549 $ 33z % 36¢

Service cos 261 22¢ - 8

Interest cos 37€ 332 20 22

Actuarial loss (gain 954 18¢ 37 (39)

Benefits paic (147) (14€) (25) (24)
Benefit obligations at end of ye 7,53¢ 6,09t 364 332
Change in plan asse

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of y 6,257 3,461 - -

Actual return on plan asse 722 937 - -

Benefits paic a47) (14¢€) (25) (24)

Employer contribution 1,06% 2,00( 25 24
Fair value of plan assets at end of y 7,89( 6,252 - -
Funded Statu- asset (liability} $ 351 $ 157  $ (3649 $ (332
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Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprekieriess as of December 31:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Unrecognized transition obligatic $ 20 $ 3
Net loss 3,37 2,75
3,39 2,79

Tax Effect 1,35 1,11
$ 2,037 $ 1,67

The accumulated benefit obligation for the defitehefit pension plan was $6,185,000 and $5,026z2December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. Tdser@tirement plan had an accumulated be
obligation of $364,000 and $332,000 at Decembe810 and 2009, respectively.

The significant assumptions used in determiningotineefit obligations as of December 31, 2010 ar@®2fe as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201( 200¢ 201( 200¢
Weighted average discount r: 5.5/% 6.25% 5.54% 6.25%
Rate of increase in future compensation le 3.5(% 3.5(% - -

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a signifieffect on the amounts reported for the pastreent health care plan. The annual rates afase in the per capita cost of covered medica
prescription drug benefits for year-end calculadiarere assumed to be 9.00% for each year. The weatee assumed to decrease gradually to 5.00%1i% 20d remain at that level thereafter. A peecentag
point change in the health care cost trend ratagdiveave the following effects:

1 Percentac 1 Percentac
Point Point
(In thousands Increas Decreas

Effect on total of service and inter¢
cost component $ 1 s 1)
Effect on post retirement benefit obligati 8 (7)

The composition of the net periodic benefit plastdor the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2088 follows:
Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201( 200¢ 201¢ 200¢
(In thousands

Service cos $ 261 $ 226 $ - $ 3
Interest cos 37€ 33z 20 22
Amortization of transition obligatio - - 18 18
Amortization of net losse 20C 26( - 1
Expected return on plan ass (554) (37€) - -
Net periodic benefit plan co $ 28 $ 44z $ 38 $ 44
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The significant assumptions used in determiningntiteperiodic benefit plan cost for years endeddbemer 31 were as follows:

Pension Benefit Postretirement Benefi
201( 200¢ 201C 200¢
Weighted average discount r: 6.25% 6.13% 6.25% 6.12%
Expected long term rate of return on plan as 8.0(% 8.0(% - -
Rate of increase in future compensation le 3.5(% 3.5(% - -

The long-term rate-of-return-on-assets assumptias set based on historical returns earned by equtid fixed income securities, adjusted to refi&pectations of future returns as applied to tae’p targe
allocation of asset classes. Equities and fixedrnime securities were assumed to earn real rateguwh in the ranges of 5.0%-9.0% and 2.0%-6.0%peetively. The longerm inflation rate was estimatec
be 3.0%. When these overall return expectatioeaspplied to the plas’target allocation, the expected rate of retura determined to be in the range of 7.0% to 11.88nagement has chosen to use ar
expected long-term rate of return to reflect curemonomic conditions and expected returns.

The expected longerm rate of return for 2011 will continue to b@®%. The estimated net actuarial loss that wilebeortized from accumulated other comprehensiveitdssnet periodic benefit plan ci
during 2011 is $248,000. The estimated amortinatib the unrecognized transition obligation in 2041$18,000. The expected net periodic benefih last for 2011 is estimated at $403,000 for
retirement plans.

Plan assets are invested in diversified investriiemds of the RSI Retirement Trust (the “Trus#)private placement investment fund. The investrierds include a series of equity and bond mufwiadls o
commingled trust funds, each with its own investtrajectives, investment strategies and risks edsileéd in the Statement of Investment Objectives @uidelines. The Trust has been given discrdtiothe
Plan Sponsor to determine the appropriate stratessiet allocation versus plan liabilities, as goedrby the Trust's Statement of Investment Objestiand Guidelines.

The long-term investment objectives are to mainpdém assets at a level that will sufficiently col@ng-term obligations and to generate a returiplan assets that will meet or exceed the ratehatiwlong-
term obligations will grow. A broadly diversifiebmbination of equity and fixed income portfoliasdavarious risk management techniques are useelpoelchieve these objectives.

In addition, significant consideration is paid tetplan’s funding levels when determining the olleasset allocation. If the plan is considere&well-funded, approximately 65% of the pkussets a
allocated to equities and approximately 35% alledab fixed-income. If the plan is does not sgtisfe criteria for a well-funded plan, approximst&0% of the plars assets are allocated to equities
approximately 50% allocated to fixed-income. Assdtalancing normally occurs when the equity amédiincome allocations vary by more than 10% from thespective targets (i.e., a 20% policy re
guideline).

The investment goal is to achieve investment reghlt will contribute to the proper funding of thension plan by exceeding the rate of inflatioerathe longterm. In addition, investment managers for

Trust are expected to provide above average pesdfocen when compared to their peer managers. Peafmenvolatility is also monitored. Risk/volatilifg further managed by the distinct investn
objectives of each of the Trust funds and the difieation within each fund.
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Pension plan assets measured at fair value are arizet below:

At December 31, 2010

Total Fai

(In thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity

Large-cap value (a $ 711 $ - 8 - $ 711

Smal-cap Core (b 94¢ - - 94¢
Common/collective trust- equity

Large-cap core (c - 81C - 81C

Large-cap value (d - 411 - 411

Large-cap growth (e - 1,164 - 1,164

International Core (f - 1,081 - 1,081
Common/collective trusi- fixed income

Market duration fixed (g - 2,76¢ - 2,76¢
Total $ 1660 $ 6,23( $ - $ 7,89(

At December 31, 200¢
Total Fai

(In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
Asset Category
Mutual funds- equity

Large-cap value (a $ 55¢€ $ - $ - % 55€

Smal-cap Core (b 657 - - 657
Common/collective trust- equity

Large-cap core (c - 62E - 62E

Large-cap value (d - 311 - 311

Large-cap growth (e - 91t - 91t

International Core (f - 884 - 884
Common/collective trust- fixed income

Market duration fixed (g - 2,30¢ - 2,30/
Total $ 121 $ 503 $ - 3 6,257

(a) This category consists of investments whose sectdrindustry exposures are maintained within aowatrand around Russell 1000 index. The portfotitld approximately 150 stock

(b) This category contains stocks whose sector weightare maintained within a narrow band around tlod$iee Russell 2000 index. The portfolio will tgplly hold more than 150 stock

(c) This fund tracks the performance of the S&P 50@inky purchasing the securities represented itnidhex in approximately the same weightings as tiuex.

(d) This category contains lar-cap stock with abow-average yield. The portfolio typically holds beeme60 and 70 stock

(e) This category consists of a portfolio of betweera#8l 65 stocks that will typically overweight teclogy and health carn

(f) This category consists of a broadly diversifiedtfmdio of nor-U.S. domiciled stocks. The portfolio will typicglhold more than 200 stocks, with (- 35% invested in emerging markets securit
(g) This category consists of an index fund that trabksBarclays Capital U.S. Aggregate Bond Indeke Tund invests in Treasury, agency, corporatetgagebacked and as<-backed securitie!
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For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, threkBexpects to contribute approximately $27,00héopostretirement plan, but does not expect toensagontribution to the pension plan.
The following benefit payments, which reflect exigetfuture service, as appropriate, are expectée fmaid from both retirement plans:

Yearsding December

31
(In thousands
2011 $ 18t
2012 19¢
2013 21€
2014 252
2015 27€
Years 201¢- 2020 1,694

The Company also offers a 401(k) plan to its emgésy Contributions to this plan by the Companyev$60,000 and $188,000 for 2010 and 2009, resmégti

The Company maintains optional deferred compensatians for its directors and certain executivéceffs, whereby fees and income normally receiveddaferred and paid by the Company based uj
payment schedule commencing at age 65 and congmaonthly for 10 years. Directors must serve onlibard for a minimum of 5 years to be eligible floe Plan. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, «
liabilities include approximately $1,872,000 and 86,000, respectively, relating to deferred conspénn. Deferred compensation expense for the yemaed December 31, 2010 and 2009 amount
approximately $225,000 and $209,000, respectively.

The Company has a supplemental executive retirepiantfor the benefit of certain executive officesst December 31, 2010 and 2009, other liabilitreduded approximately $259,000 and $298,000 a&u
under this plan. Compensation expense includesoajpately $22,000 relating to the supplemental exge retirement plan for the year ended Decemiier2810 and $50,000 for the year ended Dece
31, 2009. The decrease in expense is primarilyebalt of the suspension of accruals related égptan for the Compang’chief executive officer under the requirementthefagreement entered into in 2
with the United States Department of Treasury.

To fund the benefits under these plans, the Comjmtiye owner of single premium life insurance pie on participants in the nayualified retirement plans. At December 31, 20h@ @009, the ca:
surrender values of these policies were $6,915:0@0$6,956,000, respectively. The decrease isuhender values was the resultirgurance proceeds received relating to the deatlefli associated wi
life insurance coverage on a former director .

NOTE 12: STOCK BASED COMPENSATION PLAN

In February 1997, the Board of Directors approvedption plan and granted options thereunder witlexercise price equal to the market value of then@anys shares at the date of grant. Under the ¢

Option Plan, up to 132,249 options had been auwbdrior grant of incentive stock options and notifige stock options. None of the original optiogganted prior to July 2001 remain outstandin
December 31, 2010.
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In July 2001, the Board approved the issuance gf®Bstock options remaining in the 1997 Stock @pflan. The exercise price was equal to the nhadee of the Company's shares at the date oft
($8.34). The options granted under the issuance &d0-year term and are fully vested.

Activity in the Stock Option Plan is as follows:

Weightec
Options Average Share
(Shares in thousand Outstandin Exercise Pric Exercisabl
Outstanding at January 1, 20 18 3 8.34 19
Exercisec - -
Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1 3 8.3 19
Exercisec - -
Expired - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 18 $ 8.34 19

The aggregate intrinsic value of a stock optiorrespnts the total prex intrinsic value (the amount by which the cutrararket value of the underlying stock exceedsetkercise price of the option) tl
would have been received by the option holdersdiladption holders exercised their options on DelsenB1, 2010. The intrinsic value changes baseflugtuations in the market value of the Company’
stock. At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the maraktevof the Companyg’stock was less than the stock option price, hetefore, the outstanding and exercisable stockmgpthad no aggregate intrin
value.

There were no stock options exercised during 2010.

At December 31, 2010, the 18,850 options outstandihhad an exercise price of $8.34 and an avermaining contractual life of 0.5 years.

NOTE 13: INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the years endedember 31, is as follows:

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Current $ 744 $ 34€
Deferred 262 704

$ 1,007 $ 1,05(

The provision for income taxes includes the follogui

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Federal Income Ta $ 911 $ 993
New York State Franchise Ti 96 57

$ 1,007 $ 1,05C
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The components of the net deferred tax asset,dedlin other assets as of December 31, are asvillo

(In thousands 201( 200¢
Assets:

Deferred compensatic $ 82t % 814
Allowance for loan losse 1,411 1,191
Postretirement benefi 141 12¢
Mortgage recording tax credit carryforwe 242 417
Impairment losses on investment securi 68€ 68€
Other 165 24F
3,47( 3,481

Liabilities:
Pension ass¢ (13€) (61)
Depreciatior (359) (420)
Accretion (48) (48)
Loan origination fee (279) (30¢)
Intangible assel (1,220 (1,030
Investment securitie (52) (16€)
Prepaid expens¢ (16€) (31§)
(2,26]) (2,357)
1,20¢ 1,13(
Less: deferred tax asset valuation allowz (458) (45€)
Net deferred tax ass $ 751 % 672

Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent tipwgeneration of future taxable income or thisterce of sufficient taxable income within thergdsack period. A valuation allowance is provideden i
is more likely than not that some portion, or dltlee deferred tax assets, will not be realized assessing the need for a valuation allowanceagement considers the scheduled reversal of trezrddfta
liabilities, the level of historical taxable incona@d the projected future level of taxable incomerdhe periods in which the temporary differencesprising the deferred tax assets will be dedlectifihe
judgment about the level of future taxable incoménherently subjective and is reviewed on a caemtirbasis as regulatory and business factors chdrgevaluation allowance of $458,000 represenrt
portion of the deferred tax asset that managefeigves may not be realizable, as the Companynmoagenerate sufficient capital gains to offsetdgpital loss carry forward.

A reconciliation of the federal statutory income tate to the effective income tax rate for thergeended December 31, is as follows:

201C 200¢
Federal statutory income tax re 34.(% 34.(%
State tax, net of federal bene 1.8 21
Tax-exempt interest income, net of TEFF 3.9 (1.5
Increase in value of bank owned life insura 2.3 (2.5)
Gain on proceeds from bank owned life insure .5 -
Deferred tax valuation allowan - 7.1
Other 0.1 0.2
Effective income tax rat 28.7% 39.4%
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At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the Company dichawé any uncertain tax positions. The Compsupglicy is to recognize interest and penaltiesorecognized tax benefits, if any, in income tapens:
in the Consolidated Statements of Income. The/éaxs subject to examination by the taxing autlesriare the years ended December 31, 2007 thrduth 2

NOTE 14: EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following is a reconciliation of basic to diut earnings per share for the years ended Dece3iber

(In thousands, except per share de Earning: Share EPS
2010 Netincom: $ 2,50¢

Preferred stock dividends and discount accre 462

Net income available to common shareholc 2,047

Basic EP< 2,04% 2,48t $ 0.8z

Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options - - -

Stock warrant: - 4 -

Diluted EPS $ 2,047 2,48¢ $ 0.82
2009 Net incom: $ 1,61¢
Preferred stock dividends and discount accre 9€
Net income available to common shareholc 1,51¢

Basic EPS 1,51¢ 2,48t % 0.61

Effect of dilutive securities
Stock options - - -
Stock warrant: - - -
Diluted EPS $ 1,51¢ 2,48t $ 0.61

NOTE 15: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Company is a party to financial instrumentshvaff-balance sheet risk in the normal course of busitesseet the financing needs of its customers. &lii@ancial instruments include commitment
extend credit and standby letters of credit. Semimitments involve, to varying degrees, elemehtsedit risk in excess of the amount recognizethi consolidated statement of condition. The @mttra
amount of those commitments to extend credit ré&fléoe extent of involvement the Company has is fharticular class of financial instrument. The @amy’s exposure to credit loss in the ever
nonperformance by the other party to the finanicisirument for commitments to extend credit is espnted by the contractual amount of the instrum&he Company uses the same credit policies inmg
commitments as it does for on-balance sheet ingtntsn
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At December 31, 2010 and 2009, the following finahinstruments were outstanding whose contractumtsorepresent credit risk:

Contract Amoun

(In thousands 201C 200¢
Commitments to grant loai $ 9,591 $ 7,187
Unfunded commitments under lines of cre 18,95( 16,411
Standby letters of crec 1,524 1,60¢

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to feral customer as long as there is no violatioarof condition established in the contract. Committeeyenerally have fixed expiration dates or ¢
termination clauses and may require payment oéaSece some of the commitment amounts are exppéztexpire without being drawn upon, the total ctitment amounts do not necessarily represent f
cash requirements. The Company evaluates eachnoeissocreditworthiness on a case-tsse basis. The amount of collateral obtainedeéhted necessary by the Company upon extensioredit,cis base
on management’s credit evaluation of the countetyp&ollateral held varies but may include restifdreal estate and inconpreducing commercial properties. Loan commitmentistanding at Decemt
31, 2010 with fixed interest rates amounted to epipnately $6.3 million. Loan commitments, includingused lines of credit and standby letters of icreditstanding at December 31, 2010 with vari
interest rates amounted to approximately $23.7anill These outstanding loan commitments carryeturmarket rates.

Unfunded commitments under standby letters of treelolving credit lines and overdraft protectiagreements are commitments for possible futurensidas of credit to existing customers. Thesesliof
credit usually do not contain a specified matudiéafe and may not be drawn upon to the total extewhich the Company is committed.

Letters of credit written are conditional commitrteerssued by the Company to guarantee the perfarenaha customer to a third party. Generally letliers of credit, when issued have expiration slate
within one year. The credit risk involved in issgiletters of credit is essentially the same asettbat are involved in extending loan facilitiesctistomers. The Company generally holds collbtard/or
personal guarantees supporting these commitméfasagement believes that the proceeds obtainedighra liquidation of collateral and the enforcemehguarantees would be sufficient to cover the
potential amount of future payments required urttlercorresponding guarantees. The amount of #idity as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 for guaesiunder standby letters of credit issued is not
material.

The Company leases land and leasehold improvenuertsr agreements that expire in various years witiewal options over the next 30 years. Rentabese, included in building occupancy expe
amounted to $67,000 for 2010 and $66,000 for 2089 ctober 2002, the Company entered into a laadd with one of its directors on an arersgth basis. In January 2006, the Company eniated leas
with Pathfinder Bancorp, MHC for the use of a tmagnfacility. This lease was also executed on nsalength basis. During 2010, the Company enteredan arm$ length lease with Pathfinder Banc:
MHC for space that is then sub-leased by the Compaa charitable organization at below-marketserRRent expense paid to the related parties d@di@ and 2009 was $46,000 and $45,000, respectivel

Approximate minimum rental commitments for non-calable operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending December 3
(In thousands

2011 $ 86
2012 79
2013 36
2014 -
2015 -
Thereaftel -

Total minimum lease paymer $ 201

The total amount of minimum rents to be receivethafuture under non-cancelable subleases is 827,0
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NOTE 16: DIVIDENDS AND RESTRICTIONS

The Board of Directors of Pathfinder Bancorp, M.H.@etermines whether the Holding Company will veadr receive dividends declared by the Company gaehthe Company declares a dividend, whit
expected to be on a quarterly basis. The Holding@my may elect to receive dividends and utilizehsiwunds to pay expenses or for other allowable@ses. The Office of Thrift Supervision (“OT 31«
indicated that (i) the Holding Company shall previtie OTS annually with written notice of its intéa waive its dividends prior to the proposed daft¢he dividend and the OTS shall have the authdo
approve or deny any dividend waiver request; {ig ivaiver is granted, dividends waived by the HugdCompany will be excluded from the Compagapital accounts for purposes of calculatingddint
payments to minority shareholders. During 2016, @mpany paid or accrued dividends totaling $18D0 the Holding Company. The Holding Company miid waive the right to receive its portion of
cash dividends declared during 2010 or 2009.

The Company's ability to pay dividends to its shatders is largely dependent on the Bank's abititppay dividends to the Company. In addition tatestaw requirements and the capital requiren
discussed in Note 17, federal statutes, regulatéom policies limit the circumstances under which Bank may pay dividends. The amount of retaieachings legally available under these regula
approximated $2,789,000 as of December 31, 20i0idéhds paid by the Bank to the Company would behibited if the effect thereof would cause the Bancapital to be reduced below applici
minimum capital requirements. The Company is fidbd from accepting or directing Pathfinder Baakleclare or pay a dividend or other capital distions without prior written approval of the OTS.

Since the Company has chosen to patrticipate iffteasury’s CPP program, its ability to increased#inds to its stockholders is limited without pragrproval by the United States Treasury Department.
NOTE 17: REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capiégjuirements administered by the federal bankingeigs. Failure to meet minimum capital requiremesats initiate certain mandatory and possibly addi
discretionary actions by regulators that, if undkeen, could have a direct material effect on thenfanys financial statements. Under capital adequacyediniels and the regulatory framework for pro
corrective action, the Bank must meet specific tedygiuidelines that involve quantitative measuresoassets, liabilities, and certain dfdance sheet items as calculated under regulatmgunting practice
The capital amounts and classifications are albgestito qualitative judgments by the regulatorsutltomponents, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulati@nsure capital adequacy require the Bank to mairtaiounts and ratios (set forth in the table belofitptal and Tier 1 capital (as defined in theule¢gjons
to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tieadital (as defined) to average assets (as d¢fined

As of December 31, 2010, the Bank’s most recerification from the Federal Deposit Insurance Cogion categorized the Bank as “well-capitalizeatider the regulatory framework for prompt corree

action. To be categorized as “well-capitalizetite Bank must maintain total risk based, Tier 1-hisked and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set forthertahles below. There are no conditions or eventegha
notification that management believes have chatige®ank’s category.
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The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios @&egfember 31, 2010 and 2009 are presented in theviob table.

Minimum
To Be "Wel-
Minimum Capitalized"
For Capital Under Promp
Actual Adequacy Purpose  Corrective Provisior
(Dollars in thousands Amouni Ratic Amouni Ratic Amouni Ratic
As of December 31, 201
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets $ 35,837 13.5% $ 21,19 8.C% $ 26,49¢ 10.(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets $ 32,44( 12.2% $ 10,59¢ 4.C% $ 15,89¢ 6.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assel $ 32,44( 8.1% $ 16,00! 4.C% $ 20,00: 5.C%
As of December 31, 200
Total Core Capital (to Ri-Weighted Assets $ 33,40t 14.(% $ 19,160 8.% $ 23,95¢ 10.(%
Tier 1 Capital (to Ris-Weighted Assets $ 30,39¢ 12.7% $ 9,582 4.C% $ 14,37: 6.C%
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assel $ 30,39¢ 8.4% $ 14,51% 4.C% $ 18,14¢ 5.C%

On September 11, 2009, the Company entered intBuhehase Agreement with the United States Depattofehe Treasury pursuant to which the Comparyissued and sold to Treasury: (i) 6,771 shar
the Companys Fixed Rate Cumulative Perpetual Preferred StBekies A, par value $0.01 per share, having ad&fion amount per share equal to $1,000, for & potee of $6,771,000; and (ii) a Warran
purchase 154,354 shares of the Compsegimmon stock, par value $0.01 per share, at arcise price per share of $6.58. The Company itnéd to Pathfinder Bank, its subsidiary, $5,500,0r 81.239
of the proceeds of the sale of the Series A Prede®tock.

The $6,771,000 of proceeds was allocated to thieSArPreferred Stock and the Warrant based on tékaitive fair values at issuance ($6,065,000 aaeated to the Series A Preferred Stock and $006t¢
the Warrant). The difference between the initalue allocated to the Series A Preferred Stockthadiquidation value of $6,771,000, i.e. the prefd discount, will be charged to retained earniogsr the
first five years of the contract as an adjustmerthe dividend yield using the effective yield mmdh

The Series A Preferred Stock pays cumulative diviideat a rate of 5% per annum for the first fivargeand thereafter at a rate of 9% per annum. SEnies A Preferred Stock is generally nanting. Prior tc
September 11, 2012, and unless the Company hasmedeall of the Series A Preferred Stock or thea3uey Department has transferred all of the SériPseferred Stock to a third party, the approvathe
Treasury Department will be required for the Comptmincrease its common stock dividend or repusetigss common stock or other equity or capital g&es, other than in certain circumstances spedifi
the Purchase Agreement.

The Warrant has a ten-year term and is immediabedycisable. The Warrant provides for the adjustnoé the exercise price and the number of shafréseoCompanys common stock issuable upon exer
pursuant to customary anti-dilution provisions,tsas upon stock splits or distributions of secesitor other assets to holders of the Company’s aomstock, and upon certain issuances of the Company
common stock at or below a specified price relativéhe then current market price of the Compamgmmon stock. Pursuant to the Purchase AgreemhenTreasury Department has agreed not to ee
voting power with respect to any shares of comntooksissued upon exercise of the Warrant.
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The Series A Preferred Stock and the Warrant weseed in a private placement exempt from registnapiursuant to Section 4(2) of the Securities Ac1@83, as amended. The Company has agre
register for resale the Series A Preferred Stduk,Warrant and the shares of common stock underlyie Warrant (the “Warrant Sharesdl soon as practicable after the date of the issuahthe Series
Preferred Stock and the Warrant. Neither the Se&i€referred Stock nor the Warrant will be subjeciny contractual restrictions on transfer.

The Companys goal is to maintain a strong capital positiomsistent with the risk profile of its subsidiaryrka that supports growth and expansion activitibfenat the same time exceeding reguls
standards. At December 31, 2010, Pathfinder Bamleexled all regulatory required minimum capitalosaand met the regulatory definition of a “wellpdalized” institution, i.e. a leverage capital re
exceeding 5%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital raticeering 6% and a total risk-based capital ratio edicey 10%.

The Bank is required to maintain average balanodsand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At Deaer8lh, 2010 and 2009, these reserve balances aetbin$2,804,000 and $2,070,000, respectively.
NOTE 18: INTEREST RATE DERIVATIVE

Derivative instruments are entered into primaréyaarisk management tool of the Company. Finanmtzalatives are recorded at fair value as othestasnd other liabilities. The accounting for chesin the
fair value of a derivative depends on whether & been designated and qualifies as part of a hgdglationship. For a fair value hedge, changeheérfair value of the derivative instrument andragyes in th
fair value of the hedged asset or liability areogrized currently in earnings. For a cash flow leeddpanges in the fair value of the derivativerimsient, to the extent that it is effective, areoreled in othe
comprehensive income and subsequently reclasddiedrnings as the hedged transaction impactsoetrie. Any ineffective portion of a cash flow hedgeecognized currently in earnings. See Notdot
further discussion of the fair value of the instnate derivative.

The Company has $5 million of floating rate trustfprred debt indexed torBenth LIBOR. As a result, it is exposed to variidpin cash flows related to changes in projeciegrest payments caused
changes in the benchmark interest rate. Duriegfélirth quarter of fiscal 2009, the Company emtérgo an interest rate swap agreement, with a $#lilon notional amount, to convert a portion b
variablerate junior subordinated debentures to a fixed fiata term of approximately 7 years at a rate.06%. The derivative is designated as a cash ffileslge. The hedging strategy ensures that chan
cash flows from the derivative will be highly effee at offsetting changes in interest expense ftioenhedged exposure.

The following table summarizes the fair value ofstanding derivatives and their presentation orstatements of condition as of December 31:

(In thousands 201(
Cash flow hedge
Interest rate swe Other liabilities $ 11C

The change in accumulated other comprehensivealudshe impact on earnings from the interest nagpsthat qualifies as a cash flow hedge for the geded December 31 were as follows:

(In thousands 201(

Balance as of January $ -

Amount of (loss) gain recognized in other comprefienincome 170)
Amount of loss reclassified from other compreheasncome

and recognized as interest expe 60

Balance as of December & $ (110
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No amount of ineffectiveness has been includedaimiags and the changes in fair value have beeorded in other comprehensive income. Some or fathe amount included in accumulated o
comprehensive loss would be reclassified into curearnings should a portion of, or the entire leedg longer be considered effective, but at thietimanagement expects the hedge to remain fiiégtafe
during the remaining term of the swap.

The Company posted cash, of $200,000, under crileterangements to satisfy collateral requiremesgociated with the interest rate swap contract.

NOTE 19: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND DISCLOSURES

Accounting guidance related to fair value measurgmand disclosures specifies a hierarchy of vadnatchniques based on whether the inputs to thakmtion techniques are observable or unobses
Observable inputs reflect market data obtained fimaependent sources, while unobservable inpulsatedur market assumptions. These two types aftgpave created the following fair value hierarchy

Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) for identasdets or liabilities in active markets that thetgihas the ability to access as of the measurénhete.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar assets andillt&s in active markets; quoted prices for ideatior similar assets or liabilities in marketstthee not active; and moddkrived valuations in which :
significant inputs and significant value drivers abservable in active markets.

Level 3 — Model-derived valuations in which onenore significant inputs or significant value drigeare unobservable.

An asset’s or liability’s level within the fair va hierarchy is based on the lowest level of inpat is significant to the fair value measurement.

The Company used the following methods and sigaifi@ssumptions to estimate fair value:

Investment securities: The fair values of seasitavailable for sale are obtained from an indepenthird party and are based on quoted prices atiomally recognized exchange (Level 1), wi
available. At this time, only the AMF Large Capuity Institutional Fund qualifies as a Level 1 vaion. If quoted prices are not available, failues are measured by utilizing matrix pricing, whis &
mathematical technique used widely in the industrywalue debt securities without relying exclusiveh quoted prices for specific securities but eathy relying on the securitiesélationship to othe

benchmark quoted securities (Level 2). Managemmte no adjustment to the fair value quotes that¢ wexeived from the independent third party pgcervice.

Interest rate swap derivative: The fair valuehsf interest rate swap derivative is calculated dbasea discounted cash flow model. All future flogtcash flows are projected and both floating fixed casl
flows are discounted to the valuation date. Theeuwtilized for discounting and projecting is liddy obtaining publicly available third party matkgiotes for various swap maturity terms.

Impaired loans: Impaired loans are those loans hichvthe Company has measured impairment genebakbed on the fair value of the loarcollateral. Fair value is generally determineddd upo

independent third party appraisals of the propertie discounted cash flows based upon expectece@dsc These assets are included as Level 3 fhiesjabased upon the lowest level of input th
significant to the fair value measurements. Tleviaue consists of loan balances less their tadnallowances.
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The following tables summarize assets measureairatdlue on a recurring basis as of December&gregated by the level of valuation inputs withie hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

At December 31, 201(

Total Fail
(In thousands Level 1 Level z Level & Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ - $ 2002: $ - $ 20,02t
State and political subdivisiol - 18,97¢ - 18,97¢
Corporate - 5,60( - 5,60(
Residential mortga-backec- agency - 36,40¢ - 36,40¢
Residential mortga-backec- private labe - 837 - 837
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 1,55¢ - - 1,55¢
Large cap equity fun 1,22 - - 1,22
Other mutual fund - 244 - 244
Common stocl- financial services industi 36 41¢ - 45E
Total investment securitie $ 2,81 $ 82511 $ - $ 85,32i
Interest rate swap derivati $ - 3 (110 $ - (110)
At December 31, 200¢
Total Fail
(In thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level & Value
Debt investment securitie
US Treasury, agencies and G¢ $ - $ 1453 % - $ 1453
State and political subdivisiol - 8,92¢ - 8,92¢
Corporate - 4,96t - 4,96t
Residential mortga¢-backec- agency - 35,68 - 35,68
Residential mortga-backec- private labe - 1,257 - 1,257
Equity investment securitie
Mutual funds:
Ultra short mortgage fun 2,51¢ - - 2,51¢
Large cap equity fun 2,08¢ - - 2,08¢
Other mutual fund - 207 - 207
Common stocl- financial services industt 23 34¢ - 372
Other investment - 2,207 - 2,208
Total investment securitie $ 463 $ 68,12¢ $ - $ 72,754
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Certain assets and liabilities are measured avé&ire on a nonrecurring basis; that is, the imsemts are not measured at fair value on an ondmsg but are subject to fair value adjustmenteitain
circumstances (for example, when there is evidefidgapairment).

The following tables summarize assets measureairatdlue on a nonrecurring basis as of Decembgs@jregated by the level of valuation inputs witthie hierarchy utilized to measure fair value:

At December 31, 201(

Total Fai
In thousands Level 1 Level Z Level & Value
(
Impaired loan: $ - $ - % 3,34C $ 3,34(

At December 31, 200¢

Total Fai
(In thousands Level 1 Level 2 Level & Value
Impaired loan $ - $ - $ 907 $ 907

There have been no transfers of assets in or cantyfair value measurement level.

Required disclosures include fair value informatadriinancial instruments, whether or not recogdii® the consolidated statement of condition, fbich it is practicable to estimate that value. &ses whel
quoted market prices are not available, fair valaresbased on estimates using present value or waheation techniques. Those techniques are sogmifly affected by the assumptions used, includire
discount rate and estimates of future cash flowshét regard, the derived fair value estimatesxctibe substantiated by comparison to independamkets and, in many cases, could not be realiz
immediate settlement of the instrument.

Management uses its best judgment in estimatindainevalue of the Compang’financial instruments; however, there are inhevesaknesses in any estimation technique. Thezefor substantially ¢
financial instruments, the fair value estimateseireare not necessarily indicative of the amoumsG@ompany could have realized in a sales tramsroti the dates indicated. The estimated fairevalmount
have been measured as of their respective peridsl-@md have not been egaluated or updated for purposes of these finastaégements subsequent to those respective dAgesuch, the estimated f
values of these financial instruments subsequethitetoespective reporting dates may be differean thhe amounts reported at each period-end.

The following information should not be interpretasl an estimate of the fair value of the entire Gany since a fair value calculation is only prodder a limited portion of the Compars/assets at
liabilities. Due to a wide range of valuation te@fues and the degree of subjectivity used in ntakiire estimates, comparisons between the Comgatigtlosures and those of other companies majpa
meaningful. The Company, in estimating its failueadisclosures for financial instruments, usedftilewing methods and assumptions:

Cash and cash equivalents — The carrying amouriteesé assets approximate their fair value.
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Investment securities Fhe fair values of securities available for sake aotained from an independent third party andased on quoted prices on nationally recognizetlange (Level 1), where available
quoted prices are not available, fair values arasueed by utilizing matrix pricing, which is a mathatical technique used widely in the industry atue debt securities without relying exclusively quotec
prices for specific securities, but rather by nefybn the securitieselationship to other benchmark quoted securities€l 2). Management made no adjustment to threvédue quotes that were received fi
the independent third party pricing service.

Loans —The fair values of portfolio loans, excluding immal loans (see previous discussion of methods asdngptions), are estimated using an option adjudisembunted cash flow model that discor
future cash flows using recent market interestsiatearket volatility and credit spread assumptions.

Federal Home Loan Bank stock — The carrying amofithese assets approximates their fair value.
Accrued interest receivable and payable — The tagrgmount of these assets approximates theivéire.
Mortgage servicing rights - The carrying amounthefse assets approximates their fair value.

Interest rate swap derivativeThe fair value of the interest rate swap derivatévealculated based on a discounted cash flow madl€uture floating cash flows are projected abdth floating and fixed ca
flows are discounted to the valuation date. Theeuwtilized for discounting and projecting is liddy obtaining publicly available third party matkgiotes for various swap maturity terms.

Deposit liabilities — The fair values disclosed fliamand deposits (e.g., interest-bearing and nengistbearing checking, passbook savings and certairstgbenoney management accounts) are, by defin
equal to the amount payable on demand at the iepadate (i.e., their carrying amounts). Fair esldor fixedrate certificates of deposit are estimated usimisaounted cash flow calculation that apg
interest rates currently being offered in the madrecertificates of deposits to a schedule of egated expected monthly maturities on time deposits

Borrowings — Fixed/variable term “bullet” structsrare valued using a replacement cost of fundsoappr These borrowings are discounted to the FHL.BMNvance curve. Option structured borrowinigs
values are determined by the FHLB for borrowingat thclude a call or conversion option. If marketing is not available from this source, currerarket indications from the FHLBNY are obtained aine
borrowings are discounted to the FHLBNY advancereless an appropriate spread to adjust for thierpt

Junior subordinated debenture€wrrent economic conditions have rendered the ndokehis liability inactive. As such, we are U@ to determine a good estimate of fair valuenc8ithe rate paid on t
debentures held is lower than what would be reduivesecure an interest in the same debt at yehragm we are unable to obtain a current fair vakeshave disclosed that the carrying value appnatés th
fair value.

Off-balance sheet instruments — Fair values forGbenpany’s offbalance sheet instruments are based on fees dyrcbarged to enter into similar agreements, takiig account the remaining terms of
agreements and the counterparties’ credit standigh fees were not material at December 31, 208®009.
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The carrying amounts and fair values of the Comjsafityancial instruments as of December 31 aregurtesd in the following table:

NOTE 20: PARENT COMPANY — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

2010 2009
Carrying Estimater Carrying Estimate
(Dollars in thousands Amounts Fair Value: Amounts Fair Value
Financial asset:
Cash and cash equivalel $ 13,76: $ 13,76: $ 14,631 $ 14,63:
Investment securitie 85,321 85,321 72,75¢ 72,75¢
Net loans 281,64t 290,04¢ 259,38" 266,29(
Federal Home Loan Bank sto 2,13¢ 2,13¢ 1,89¢ 1,89¢
Accrued interest receivab 1,70¢ 1,70¢ 1,482 1,48:
Mortgage servicing right 35 35 61 61
Financial liabilities:
Deposits $ 326,50: $ 328,96 $ 296,83¢ $ 299,61
Borrowed funds 41,000 41,98¢ 36,000 37,11¢
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 5,15¢ 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Accrued interest payab 152 152 18¢ 18¢
Interest rate swap derivati' 11C 11C - -
Off-balance sheet instrumen
Standby letters of crec $ - $ - $ - $ -
Commitments to extend cret - - - -
The following represents the condensed financfalrimation of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. as of andtfe years ended December 31:
Statements of Condition 201( 200¢
(In thousands
Assets
Cash $ 1,19¢  $ 1,247
Investment: 24 20
Investment in bank subsidia 34,40¢ 32,82(
Investment in no-bank subsidiar 15¢ 15¢E
Other asset 16€ 257
Total asset $ 3595: $ 34,49:
Liabilities and Shareholders' Equity
Accrued liabilities $ 208 $ 101
Junior subordinated debentu 5,15¢ 5,15¢
Shareholders' equit 30,59: 29,23¢
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ $ 3595: $ 34,49
Statements of Income 200¢ 200¢
(In thousands
Income
Dividends from bank subsidia $ 70C % 82t
Dividends from no-bank subsidiar 4 5)
Losses on impairment of investment secu - (4)
Total income 704 82€
Expenses
Interest 164 157
Operating 171 162
Total expense 33E 31¢
Income before taxes and equity in undistributedimaame of subsidiarie 36¢ 507
Tax benefit 98 101
Income before equity in undistributed net incomswbsidiarie: 467 60¢
Equity in undistributed net income of subsidial 2,03¢ 1,007
Net income $ 2,508 $ 1,61t
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Statements of Cash Flow: 201( 200¢
(In thousands
Operating Activities
Net Income 2,50¢ 1,61%
Equity in undistributed earnings of subsidial (2,03¢) (1,007%)
Impairment writ-down on investment securi - 4
Other operating activitie 127 (113)
Net cash provided by operating activit 594 49¢
Investing Activities
Capital contributed to wholly owned bank subsidi - (5,500
Net cash used in investing activiti - (5,500)
Financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of preferred stock amimon stock warrant - 6,771
Cash dividends paid to preferred sharehol (339) (60)
Cash dividends paid to common shareholi (29¢) (47€)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activi (637) 6,237
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equive (43) 1,23z
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of 1,24z 10
Cash and cash equivalents at end of 1,19¢ 1,247
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ITEM 9: CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A: CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

REPORT OF MANAGEMENS RESPONSIBILITY

The Company’s management, including the Company’xipal executive officer and principal financizficer, have evaluated the effectiveness of thenGany’s “disclosure controls and procedures 'suc
term is defined in Rule 13a-15(e) promulgated uriderSecurities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendlee,“Exchange Act”)Based upon their evaluation, the principal exeeutfficer and principal financi
officer concluded that, as of the end of the pedodered by this report, the Compasylisclosure controls and procedures were effeébivéhe purpose of ensuring that the informatiequired to be disclos
in the reports that the Company files or submitdaurthe Exchange Act with the Securities and Exgea@ommission (the “SEC”1f is recorded, processed, summarized and repaitaih the time perioc
specified in the SEC’s rules and forms, and (Zdsumulated and communicated to the Compameanagement, including its principal executive pridcipal financial officers, as appropriate ttoal timely
decisions regarding required disclosure.

MANAGEMEN"S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL RERRET

Management’s report on internal control over finahgeporting is contained in “ltem 8 — Financiah®ments and Supplementary Data” in this annymrtén Form 10-K.

This annual report does not include an attestagémort of the Company’s independent registeredipwdaicounting firm regarding internal control o¥erancial reporting pursuant to the rules of thedBo
Frank Act that exempts the Company from such atiest and requires only management’s report.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN

There were no changes in the Company’s internarabaver financial reporting that occurred durithg Companys last fiscal quarter that have materially affectadare reasonably likely to materially afft
the Company’s internal control over financial retpag.

ITEM 9B: OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART llI
ITEM 10: DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS, PROMOTERS, CONTROL PERSONS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE, COMPLIANC E WITH SECTIONS 16 (A) OF EXCHANGE
ACT

(a) Information concerning the directors of the Compeniyncorporated by reference hereunder in the Gmys Proxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of &tieolders.
(b) Set forth below is information concerning the ExeaiOfficers of the Company at December 31, 2(

Name Age Positions Held With the Company

Thomas W. Schneidt 49 President and Chief Executive Offic

James A. Dowd, CP. 43 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Offic
Edward A. Mervine 54 Senior Vice President, General Cour
Melissa A. Miller 53 Senior Vice President, Chief Operating Offir
Ronald Tascarella 52 Senior Vice President, Chief Credit Officer

ITEM 11: EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information with respect to management compensati@htransactions required under this item is ipomated by reference hereunder in the Company¥yRVaterials for the Annual Meeting of Stockholc
under the caption "Compensation Committee".

ITEM 12: SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTER S

The information required by this item is incorpadtby reference hereunder in the ComparBroxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stocktess under the caption "Voting Securities and &pal
Holders Thereof"

ITEM 13: CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this item is incorp@atby reference hereunder in the ComparBroxy Materials for the Annual Meeting of Stockless under the caption "Transactions with CerRatate
Persons”.

ITEM 14: PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this item is incorpegby reference hereunder in the Company’s ProxieNéds for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders unthe caption "Audit and Related Fees".
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PART IV

ITEM 15: EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

@)

@@

(b)
3.1
3.2
4
10.1
10.2
10.3
10.4

105

10.6

10.7

10.8

Financial Statements - The Compaghgobnsolidated financial statements, for the yeaded December 31, 2010 and 2009, together witRéport of Independent Registered Public Accoul
Firm are filed as part of this Form 10-K reporeeSitem 8: Financial Statements and Supplemeatg.”

Financial Statement Schedules - All finahatatement schedules have been omitted as thiedgnformation is inapplicable or has been ideld in ‘item 7: Management Discussion i
Analysis.”

Exhibits

Certificate of Incorporation of Pathfinder Barp, Inc. (Incorporated herein by reference toGoenpany's Current Report on Form 8-K filed on J25£2001)

Bylaws of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (Incorpechherein by reference to the Company's QuartezfyoR on Form 10-Q filed on August 15, 2005 and &wober 28, 2007)

Form of Stock Certificate of Pathfinder Bancdmg. (Incorporated herein by reference to the Camyts Current Report on Form 8-K dated June 251200

Form of Pathfinder Bank 1997 Stock OptiomRlacorporated herein by reference to the Comsa®s8 file no. 333-53027)

Form of Pathfinder Bank 1997 Recognition Bedention Plan (Incorporated by reference to thengany's S-8 file no. 333-53027)

2003 Executive Deferred Compensation Placotfrorated herein by reference to the Company’suéhReport on Form 10-K for the year ended Decer8tieR008 file no. 000-23601)
2003 Trustee Deferred Fee Plan (Incorporiageein by reference to the Company’s Annual Reporfform 10-K for the year ended December 31, 200&16. 000-23601)

Employment Agreement between the Bank andriBisoW. Schneider, President and Chief Executivéc@ffIncorporated by reference to the Company'suah Report on Form 1B-for the
year ended December 31, 2008 file no.-23601)

Employment Agreement between the Bank and Edwarfdévine, Vice President, General Counsel and $agréIncorporated by reference to the Company'suah Report on Form 1B-for
the year ended December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank anthRorascarella (Incorporated by reference to tham@any’s Annual Report on Form ¥Ofor the year ended December 31, 2008 file
000-23601)

Change of Control Agreement between the Bank anmedaA. Dowd (Incorporated by reference to the CamjsaAnnual Report on Form 1R-for the year ended December 31, 2008 file
000-23601)
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10.9 Change of Control Agreement between the Bank anlisb4eA. Miller (Incorporated by reference to then@pany’s Annual Report on Form Ofor the year ended December 31, 2008 file
000-23601)
10.10
Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwieerBank and Chris C. Gagas (Incorporated by eefsr to the Company’s Annual Report on FornK1f@r the year ended Deceml|
10.11 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601)

Executive Supplemental Retirement Agreement betwkerBank and Thomas W. Schneider (Incorporatedebsrence to the Company’s Annual Report on ForrK0r the year ende
December 31, 2008 file no. 000-23601

14 Code of Ethics (Incorporated by reference to then@any's Annual Report on Form -K for the year ended December 31, 20
21 Subsidiaries of Company

23 Consent of ParenteBeard LLC

311 Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificationtw Chief Executive Officer

31.2 Rule 13a-14(apd114(a) Certification of the Chief Financial Offic

321 Section 1350 Cantifion of the Chief Executive and Chief Finandficer

99.1 Certification of Chief Eautive Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) & Bmergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2(
99.2 Certification of Chiefriéincial Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) & Emergency Economic Stabilization Act of 2(
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of #muBties Exchange Act of 1934, the Company hag dalised this report to be signed on its behathbyundersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

Date:

March 24, 2011

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.

By: /s/ Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgé of 1934, this report has been signed belothdyollowing persons on behalf of the Registrard & the capacities and on the dates indicated.

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

/s/ Thomas W. Schneid

Thomas W. Schneider, President i

Chief Executive Office
(Principal Executive Officer
March 24, 201:

/sl Janette Resnic

Janette Resnick, Direct
Chairman of the Boar

March 24, 201:

/s/ Bruce E. Manwarin

Bruce E. Manwaring, Directc
March 24, 201:

/s/ L. William Nelson

L. William Nelson, Directol
March 24, 201:

/sl Corte J. Spenc:

Corte J. Spencer, Direct
March 24, 201:

/s/ Lloyd Stemple

Lloyd Stemple, Directo
March 24, 201:
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By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

By:

Date

/sl James A. Dow

James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President
Chief Financial Office

(Principal Financial Officer

March 24, 201:

/sl Shelley J. Tafe

Shelley J. Tafel, Vice President a
Controller

(Principal Accounting Officer
March 24, 201:

/s/ Steven W. Thome

Steven W. Thomas, Direct
March 24, 201:

/s/ Chris R. Burrit

Chris R. Burritt, Directo
March 24, 201:

/sl George P. Joyc

George P. Joyce, Direct
March 24, 201:
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EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Company Percent Owne Jurisdiction or State of Incorporatit
Pathfinder Banl 10C% New York
Pathfinder Statutory Trust 10C% Delaware
Pathfinder Commercial Bank ( 10C% New York
Pathfinder REIT, Inc. (1 100% New York
Whispering Oaks Development

Corp. (1) 100% New York

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of Pathfinder Bank.

EXHIBIT 23: CONSENT OF PARENTEBEARD LLC
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndhe Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No.-83327) of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. of our repaatetl March 24, 2011, relating to the consolidated
financial statements, which appear in this Annugp&t on Form 10-K.

/sl PARENTEBEARD LLC

ParenteBeard LLC
Syracuse, New York
March 24, 201:
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EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificaibn of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exeeifficer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKL6f Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notago any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to maketéteraents made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were, matiisleading with respect to the period covédrgdhis report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects fimancial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and fag,gériods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer drae responsible for establishing and maintairmiisglosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nhge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e)) and internal control over financial reporti@ag defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervision, torerthat material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidi& is made known to us by others within thos#ties, particularly during the period in which shieport is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting, to be designed under our supiamj to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdithe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with generally accegtedunting principles
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmsalisclosure controls and procedures and predemthis report our conclusions about the effectess of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period coveretiibyreport based on such evaluation;
(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant's internal control over financial rejrmgtthat occurred during the registrant's mostmetiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that retemally affected, or is reasonably likely to miéby affect, the registrant's internal controlem\financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of direct

(@)  Allsignificant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intermatcbover financial reporting which are reasondilgly to adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; an

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant's internal contooker financial reporting.
March 24, 2011 /sl Thomas W. Schneider

Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic
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EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificaibn of the Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chieéncial Officer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKLOf Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notago any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to makesti@ments made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were,matieisleading with respect to the period covédrgdhis report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects fimancial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and fag,gériods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer drae responsible for establishing and maintairmiisglosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nhge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15
(e)) and internal control over financial reporti@ag defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervision, torerthat material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidi& is made known to us by others within thos#ties, particularly during the period in which shieport is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting, to be designed under our supiamj to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingcthe preparation of financial — statements fdgemal purposes in accordance with generally geceaccounting principle:

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'slassire controls and procedures and presentedisnréport our conclusions about the effectivendsthe disclosure controls a
procedures, as of the end of the period coveretiibyeport based on such evaluation;

(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant's internal control over financial rejrmgtthat occurred during the registrant's mostmetiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that hetemally affected, or is reasonably likely to méby affect, the registrant's internal controlem\financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's auditors and the audit
committee of the registrant's board of direct

(@)  Allsignificant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intermatcbover financial reporting which are reasondilgly to adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; an

(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant's internal contooker financial reporting.

March 24, 2011 /sl James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chef Executive and Chief Financial Officers
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarbsy@ct of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exec@ifieer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President &hief Financial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorpe! (the "Company"), each certify in his capaci
an officer of the Company that he has revieweddheual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for tiearyended December 31, 2010 and that to the bést &howledge:

1.  the report fully complies with the requirenmenf Sections 13(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAd934; and
2. theinformation contained in the report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the Company.
The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Udii&tates Code, as amended by Section 906 of tixai$es-Oxley Act of 2002.
March 24, 2011 / sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 24, 2011 /s/ James A. Dowd

James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi
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EXHIBIT 99.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergendyconomic Stabilization Act of 2008
I, Thomas W. Schneider, the Chief Executive OfficEPathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) certibased on my knowledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of the Company lissudsed, reviewed, and evaluated with seniorafikers at least every six months during any pédrthe most recently completed fiscal year that @
TARP period, senior executive officer (SEO) compios plans and employee compensation plans andstkeethese plans pose to the Company;

(ii) The Committee has identified and limited dyithe applicable period any features of the SEOpmsation plans that could lead SEOs to take ussacg and excessive risks that could threatenahe
of the Company, and identified any features inettrgployee compensation plans that pose risks t@¢mepany and limited those features to ensure klta€bmpany is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The Committee has reviewed at least every mianths during the applicable period the terms afheemployee compensation plan and identified &aufes in the plan that could encourage
manipulation of reported earnings of the Compangrtbance the compensation of an employee andrhiedithose features;

(iv) The Committee will certify to the reviews dfé SEO compensation plans and employee compengdaios required under (i) and (iii) above;

(v) The Committee will provide a narrative desdoptof how it limited during any part of the mostently completed fiscal year that included a TARHFod the features in
(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs touakecessary and excessive risks that could threlagevalue of the Compan
(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysextiee Company to risks; a
(C) Employee compensation plans that could encouragetnipulation of reported earnings of the Compamgnhance the compensation of an emplo

(vi) The Company has required that bonus paymaestslefined in the regulations and guidance estaaisinder section 111 of EESA (bonus paymentdh)@BEOs and twenty next most highly compen:
employees be subject to a recovery or “clawbagkbvision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially inacc
financial statements or any other materially inaateiperformance metric criteria;

(vii) The Company has prohibited any golden par&epayment, as defined in the regulations and guiel@stablished under section 111 of EESA, to a 8E&y of the next five most highly compens
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The Company has limited bonus payments $oapplicable employees in accordance with sectidnaf EESA and the regulations and guidance estadui thereunder during any part of the most reg
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(ix) The Company and its employees have complieti tie excessive or luxury expenditures policydefined in the regulations and guidance establisheter section 111 of EESA, during any part o
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARHod; and any expenses that, pursuant to tHisypeequired approval of the board of directomscommittee of the board of directors, a SEO, ¢
executive officer with a similar level of resporibty, were properly approved;

(x) The Company will permit a nobinding shareholder resolution in compliance witly applicable federal securities rules and regutetion the disclosures provided under the fedelrities laws relate
to SEO compensation paid or accrued during anygidhte most recently completed fiscal year thas wa ARP period;

(xi) The Company will disclose the amount, natwaed justification for the offering during any parftthe most recently completed fiscal year that @aBARP period of any perquisites, as defined &
regulations and guidance established under setfiérof EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,00@dch employee subject to the bonus payment limitatidentified in paragraph (vii);

(xii) The Company will disclose whether the Compatine board of directors of the Company, or the @rittee has engaged during any part of the moshtgceompleted fiscal year that was a TARP peri
compensation consultant; and the services the cosagien consultant or any affiliate of the compéiesaconsultant provided during this period;

(xiii) The Company has prohibited the payment of gnossups, as defined in the regulations and guidanabbsited under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOstlh@dext twenty most highly compens:
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The Company has substantially complied witlother requirements related to employee compémsé#bat are provided in the agreement betweeiCtrapany and Treasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The Company has submitted to Treasury a cot@pled accurate list of SEOs and the twenty nextrighly compensated employees for the currenafigear and the most recently completed fiscat,
with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order afllefannual compensation, with the name, title] amployer of each SEO and most highly compensatguloyee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful faleefraudulent statement made in connection with ¢ertification may be punished by fine, imprisamt or both. See for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

Date: March 24, 2011 / s/ Thomas W. Schneide
Thomas W. Schneider,
President and Chief Executive Officer
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EXHIBIT 99.2 Certification of Chief Financial Offic er Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergencyddnomic Stabilization Act of 2008
I, James A. Dowd, the Chief Financial Officer otlffander Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) certify, lealson my knowledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of the Company lissudsed, reviewed, and evaluated with seniorafikers at least every six months during any pédrthe most recently completed fiscal year that @
TARP period, senior executive officer (SEO) compios plans and employee compensation plans andstkethese plans pose to the Company;

(ii) The Committee has identified and limited dyithe applicable period any features of the SEOpmsation plans that could lead SEOs to take ussacg and excessive risks that could threatenahe
of the Company, and identified any features inettrgployee compensation plans that pose risks t@¢mepany and limited those features to ensure klta€bmpany is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The Committee has reviewed at least every mignths during the applicable period the terms adheemployee compensation plan and identified éaufes in the plan that could encourage
manipulation of reported earnings of the Compangrtbance the compensation of an employee andrhiedithose features;

(iv) The Committee will certify to the reviews df¢ SEO compensation plans and employee compengddios required under (i) and (iii) above;

(v) The Committee will provide a narrative desdoptof how it limited during any part of the mostently completed fiscal year that included a TARHFod the features in
(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs touakecessary and excessive risks that could threlagevalue of the Compan
(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysexite Company to risks; a
(C) Employee compensation plans that could encouragentmipulation of reported earnings of the Compamgnhance the compensation of an emplo

(vi) The Company has required that bonus paymaestslefined in the regulations and guidance estaalisinder section 111 of EESA (bonus paymentdh)@BEOs and twenty next most highly compen:
employees be subject to a recovery or “clawbagkbvision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially inacc
financial statements or any other materially inaateiperformance metric criteria;

(vii) The Company has prohibited any golden par&epayment, as defined in the regulations and guiel@stablished under section 111 of EESA, to a 8E&y of the next five most highly compens
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The Company has limited bonus payments soapplicable employees in accordance with sectidnaf EESA and the regulations and guidance estadai thereunder during any part of the most reg
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(ix) The Company and its employees have compligti tie excessive or luxury expenditures policydefined in the regulations and guidance establishmeter section 111 of EESA, during any part o

most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARHod; and any expenses that, pursuant to tHisypeequired approval of the board of directomscommittee of the board of directors, a SEO, ¢
executive officer with a similar level of resporibty, were properly approved;
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(x) The Company will permit a nobinding shareholder resolution in compliance witly applicable federal securities rules and regutetion the disclosures provided under the fedelrities laws relate
to SEO compensation paid or accrued during anygidhte most recently completed fiscal year thas wa ARP period;

(xi) The Company will disclose the amount, natwaed justification for the offering during any paftthe most recently completed fiscal year that waBARP period of any perquisites, as defined &
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,00@dch employee subject to the bonus payment limitatidentified in paragraph (vii);

(xii) The Company will disclose whether the Compatine board of directors of the Company, or the @uittee has engaged during any part of the moshtgceompleted fiscal year that was a TARP peri
compensation consultant; and the services the cosapien consultant or any affiliate of the compéiosaconsultant provided during this period;

(xiii) The Company has prohibited the payment of gnossups, as defined in the regulations and guidanabksited under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOstlh@dext twenty most highly compens:
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The Company has substantially complied witlother requirements related to employee compémsétat are provided in the agreement betweeiCtrapany and Treasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The Company has submitted to Treasury a cot@pled accurate list of SEOs and the twenty nextrighly compensated employees for the currengfigear and the most recently completed fiscat,
with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order cdllefannual compensation, with the name, title] amployer of each SEO and most highly compensatguloyee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful falsefraudulent statement made in connection with ¢ertification may be punished by fine, imprisemt) or both. Seefor example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

Date: March 24, 2011 /sl James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXHIBIT 21: SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Jurisdiction or State of Incorporation

Company Percent Owne

Pathfinder Banl 100% New York
Pathfinder Statutory Trust 100% Delaware
Pathfinder Commercial Bank ( 100% New York
Pathfinder REIT, Inc. (1 100% New York
Whispering Oaks Development Corp. 100% New York

(1) Wholly owned subsidiary of Pathfinder Bank.



EXHIBIT 23: CONSENT OF PARENTEBEARD LLC
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.
Oswego, New York

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéndhe Registration Statement on Form S-8 (No.-83327) of Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc. of our repaatetl March 24, 2011, relating to the consolidated
financial statements, which appear in this Annugp&t on Form 10-K.

/s/ PARENTEBEARD LLC
ParenteBeard LLC

Syracuse, New York
March 24, 201:






EXHIBIT 31.1: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificaibn of the Chief Executive Officer
Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exeeifficer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKL6f Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notago any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to maketéteraents made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were,matimisleading with respect to the period covdrgdhis report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeartd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects fimancial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and far,glriods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer drae responsible for establishing and maintairmiisglosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nhge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15

(e)) and internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaes, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervision, torerthat material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidi& is made known to us by others within thos#ties, particularly during the period in which shieport is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financgdorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting, to be designed under our supiamj to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdithe preparation of financial statements for exdepurposes in accordance with generally accegtedunting principles
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmsalisclosure controls and procedures and predemthis report our conclusions about the effectess of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period coveretiibyreport based on such evaluation;
(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant's internal control over financial rejrmgtthat occurred during the registrant's mostmetiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that retemally affected, or is reasonably likely to miéby affect, the registrant's internal controlem\financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's auditors and the audit

committee of the registrant's board of direct
(@)  Allsignificant deficiencies and materiaéaknesses in the design or operation of intermatcbover financial reporting which are reasondilgly to adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and repadrftial information; an
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant's internal contooker financial reporting.

March 24, 2011 /sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Offic






EXHIBIT 31.2: Rule 13a-14(a) / 15d-14(a) Certificaibn of the Chief Financial Officer
Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002
I, James A. Dowd, Senior Vice President and Chieéncial Officer, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKLOf Pathfinder Bancorp, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notago any untrue statement of a material fact oit torstate a material fact necessary to makestéements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were,matieisleading with respect to the period covéredhis report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemantd other financial information included in theport, fairly present in all material respects fimancial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and fa,lriods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer drate responsible for establishing and maintairmiisglosure controls and procedures (as defineckah&nhge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15

(e)) and internal control over financial reportifag defined in Exchange Act Rules -15(f) and 15-15(f)) for the registrant and hav
(a) Designed such disclosure controls and phaess, or caused such disclosure controls and guoes to be designed under our supervision, torerikat material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidi& is made known to us by others within thos#ties, particularly during the period in which shieport is being prepared;
(b) Designed such internal control over financgédorting, or caused such internal control ovearficial reporting, to be designed under our supiamj to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reportingcthe preparation of financial statements for exepurposes in accordance with generally accegtedunting principles
(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regmsadisclosure controls and procedures and predénthis report our conclusions about the effectess of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period coveretiibyreport based on such evaluation;
(d) Disclosed in this report any change inrégistrant's internal control over financial rejrmgtthat occurred during the registrant's mostmetiscal quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal
quarter in the case of an annual report) that hetemally affected, or is reasonably likely to miéhy affect, the registrant's internal controlem\financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer drfthve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuafiinternal control over financial reporting,ttee registrant's auditors and the audit

committee of the registrant's board of direct
(@)  Allsignificant deficiencies and materia¢aknesses in the design or operation of intermatkabover financial reporting which are reasondilgly to adversely affect the registrant's
ability to record, process, summarize and repagrftial information; an
(b)  Any fraud, whether or not material, thatdives management or other employees who havendisant role in the registrant's internal contooker financial reporting.

March 24, 2011 /s/ James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi



EXHIBIT 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of the Chef Executive and Chief Financial Officers
Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 13%0adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbarkst@ct of 2002

Thomas W. Schneider, President and Chief Exec@ifieer, and James A. Dowd, Senior Vice Presidewt @hief Financial Officer of Pathfinder Bancorpg! (the "Company"), each certify in his capaci
an officer of the Company that he has reviewedAieual Report of the Company on Form 10-K for tlearyended December 31, 2010 and that to the bést &howledge:

1.  the report fully complies with the requirenmenf Sections 13(a) of the Securities ExchangeoAd934; and
2. theinformation contained in the report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finanmaldition and results of operations of the Company.
The purpose of this statement is solely to compth Witle 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the Udii8tates Code, as amended by Section 906 of tiai$zs-Oxley Act of 2002.
March 24, 2011 /sl Thomas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider
President and Chief Executive Officer
March 24, 2011 /s/ James A. Dowd

James A. Dowd
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Offi






EXHIBIT 99.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergendyconomic Stabilization Act of 2008
I, Thomas W. Schneider, the Chief Executive OfficEPathfinder Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) certibased on my knowledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of the Company hssudsed, reviewed, and evaluated with seniorafikers at least every six months during any pérthe most recently completed fiscal year that &
TARP period, senior executive officer (SEO) compios plans and employee compensation plans andstkethese plans pose to the Company;

(i) The Committee has identified and limited dyithe applicable period any features of the SEOpmsation plans that could lead SEOs to take ussacg and excessive risks that could threatenahe
of the Company, and identified any features inettrgployee compensation plans that pose risks t€¢mepany and limited those features to ensure klea€bmpany is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The Committee has reviewed at least every mignths during the applicable period the terms adheemployee compensation plan and identified éaufes in the plan that could encourage
manipulation of reported earnings of the Compangrtbance the compensation of an employee andrhiedithose features;

(iv) The Committee will certify to the reviews df¢ SEO compensation plans and employee compengddios required under (i) and (iii) above;

(v) The Committee will provide a narrative desdoptof how it limited during any part of the mostently completed fiscal year that included a TARHFod the features in
(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs touakecessary and excessive risks that could threlagevalue of the Compan
(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysexite Company to risks; a
(C) Employee compensation plans that could encouragetmipulation of reported earnings of the Compamgnhance the compensation of an emplo

(vi) The Company has required that bonus paymaestslefined in the regulations and guidance estadaisinder section 111 of EESA (bonus paymentdh)@BEOs and twenty next most highly compen:
employees be subject to a recovery or “clawbagkbvision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially inacc
financial statements or any other materially inaateiperformance metric criteria;

(vii) The Company has prohibited any golden par&epayment, as defined in the regulations and guiel@stablished under section 111 of EESA, to a 8E&y of the next five most highly compens
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The Company has limited bonus payments soapplicable employees in accordance with sectidnaf EESA and the regulations and guidance estadui thereunder during any part of the most reg
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(ix) The Company and its employees have compligti tie excessive or luxury expenditures policydefined in the regulations and guidance establishmeter section 111 of EESA, during any part o
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARHod; and any expenses that, pursuant to tHisypeequired approval of the board of directomscommittee of the board of directors, a SEO, ¢
executive officer with a similar level of resporibty, were properly approved;

(x) The Company will permit a nobinding shareholder resolution in compliance witly applicable federal securities rules and regutetion the disclosures provided under the fedelrities laws relate
to SEO compensation paid or accrued during anygidhte most recently completed fiscal year thas wa ARP period;

(xi) The Company will disclose the amount, natwaed justification for the offering during any paftthe most recently completed fiscal year that waBARP period of any perquisites, as defined &
regulations and guidance established under setfitrof EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,00@#ch employee subject to the bonus payment limitatidentified in paragraph (vii);

(xii) The Company will disclose whether the Compgatine board of directors of the Company, or the @rittee has engaged during any part of the moshtgceompleted fiscal year that was a TARP peri
compensation consultant; and the services the cosapien consultant or any affiliate of the compéiosaconsultant provided during this period;

(xiii) The Company has prohibited the payment of gnossups, as defined in the regulations and guidanabbsited under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOstlh@dext twenty most highly compens:
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The Company has substantially complied witlother requirements related to employee compémsétat are provided in the agreement betweeiCtrapany and Treasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The Company has submitted to Treasury a cot@pled accurate list of SEOs and the twenty nextrighly compensated employees for the currenafigear and the most recently completed fiscat,
with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order a#llefannual compensation, with the name, titlel employer of each SEO and most highly compensatggloyee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful faleefraudulent statement made in connection with ¢ertification may be punished by fine, imprisamt or both. See for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

Date: March 24, 2011 /sldrhas W. Schneider
Thomas W. Schneider,
President and Chief Executive Officer






EXHIBIT 99.2 Certification of Chief Financial Offic er Pursuant to Section 111(b)(4) of the Emergencydénomic Stabilization Act of 2008
I, James A. Dowd, the Chief Financial Officer otlfander Bancorp, Inc. (the “Company”) certify, lealson my knowledge, that:

(i) The compensation committee of the Company lissudsed, reviewed, and evaluated with seniorafikers at least every six months during any édrthe most recently completed fiscal year that @
TARP period, senior executive officer (SEO) compios plans and employee compensation plans andstkeethese plans pose to the Company;

(i) The Committee has identified and limited dyithe applicable period any features of the SEOpmsation plans that could lead SEOs to take ussacg and excessive risks that could threatenahe
of the Company, and identified any features inettrgployee compensation plans that pose risks t@¢mepany and limited those features to ensure klta€bmpany is not unnecessarily exposed to risks;

(iii) The Committee has reviewed at least every mianths during the applicable period the terms afheemployee compensation plan and identified gaufes in the plan that could encourage
manipulation of reported earnings of the Compangrtbance the compensation of an employee andrhiedithose features;

(iv) The Committee will certify to the reviews dfé SEO compensation plans and employee compengdaios required under (i) and (iii) above;

(v) The Committee will provide a narrative desdoptof how it limited during any part of the mostently completed fiscal year that included a TARHFod the features in
(A) SEO compensation plans that could lead SEOs touakecessary and excessive risks that could threlagevalue of the Compan
(B) Employee compensation plans that unnecessarilysextiee Company to risks; a
(C) Employee compensation plans that could encouragetnipulation of reported earnings of the Compamgnhance the compensation of an emplo

(vi) The Company has required that bonus paymaestslefined in the regulations and guidance estaaisinder section 111 of EESA (bonus paymentdh)@BEOs and twenty next most highly compen:
employees be subject to a recovery or “clawbagkbvision during any part of the most recently ctetgd fiscal year that was a TARP period if the impayments were based on materially inacc
financial statements or any other materially inaateiperformance metric criteria;

(vii) The Company has prohibited any golden par&epayment, as defined in the regulations and guiel@stablished under section 111 of EESA, to a 8E&y of the next five most highly compens
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(viii) The Company has limited bonus payments soapplicable employees in accordance with sectidnaf EESA and the regulations and guidance estadui thereunder during any part of the most reg
completed fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(ix) The Company and its employees have complieti trie excessive or luxury expenditures policydefined in the regulations and guidance establisheter section 111 of EESA, during any part o
most recently completed fiscal year that was a TARHod; and any expenses that, pursuant to tHisypeequired approval of the board of directomscommittee of the board of directors, a SEO, ¢
executive officer with a similar level of resporibty, were properly approved;

(x) The Company will permit a nobinding shareholder resolution in compliance witly applicable federal securities rules and regutetion the disclosures provided under the fedelrities laws relate
to SEO compensation paid or accrued during anygidhte most recently completed fiscal year thas wa ARP period;

(xi) The Company will disclose the amount, natwaed justification for the offering during any parftthe most recently completed fiscal year that @aBARP period of any perquisites, as defined &
regulations and guidance established under setfidrof EESA, whose total value exceeds $25,00@dch employee subject to the bonus payment limitatidentified in paragraph (vii);

(xii) The Company will disclose whether the Compatine board of directors of the Company, or the @rittee has engaged during any part of the moshtgceompleted fiscal year that was a TARP peri
compensation consultant; and the services the cosagien consultant or any affiliate of the compéiesaconsultant provided during this period;

(xiii) The Company has prohibited the payment of gnossups, as defined in the regulations and guidanabbsited under section 111 of EESA, to the SEOstlh@dext twenty most highly compens:
employees during any part of the most recently deted fiscal year that was a TARP period;

(xiv) The Company has substantially complied witlother requirements related to employee compémsé#bat are provided in the agreement betweeiCtrapany and Treasury, including any amendments;

(xv) The Company has submitted to Treasury a cot@pled accurate list of SEOs and the twenty nextrighly compensated employees for the currenafigear and the most recently completed fiscat,
with the non-SEOs ranked in descending order afllefannual compensation, with the name, title] amployer of each SEO and most highly compensatguloyee identified; and

(xvi) I understand that a knowing and willful faleefraudulent statement made in connection with ¢ertification may be punished by fine, imprisamt or both. See for example, 18 U.S.C. 1001.)

Date: March 24, 2011 s/ James A. Dowd
James A. Dowd,
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



